
Page 1 of 3 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, AUGUST 01, 2022 

7:00 PM AT COMMUNITY CENTER, 528 MAIN STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular meeting of July 18, 2022. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Presentations 

2. Proclamation recognizing August 2022 as Gastroparesis Awareness Month. 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics relevant to City 
business.) 

Special Order of Business 

3. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2022 
Sidewalk Assessment Project - Zone 5. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published July 22, 2022) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost 
for the 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project - Zone 5. 

Old Business: 

4. Pass Ordinance #3014, amending Section 26-118 of the Code of Ordinances by removing certain 
property located at 2209 North Union Road from the R-1, Residence District and placing the same in 
the A-1, Agricultural District, upon its second consideration. 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 

discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

5. Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of July 18, 2022 relative to the 
following items: 
a) City Council Meeting Procedures. 
b) Cedar Falls Rotary Memorial Plaza – West 1st Street. 
c) Private Shared Parking Requirements. 
d) West 12th Street Speed Limit – Barnett Drive to Union Road. 

1



Page 2 of 3 

6. Approve the following recommendation of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to 
Boards and Commissions: 
a) Charles Blair-Broeker, Library Board of Trustees, term ending 06/30/2028. 

7. Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to the certified list for 
the position of Public Safety Officer. 

8. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of June 2022. 

9. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Vintage Iron, 104 Main Street, Class B wine – renewal. 
b) King Star, 2228 Lincoln Street, Class C beer & Class B native wine - renewal. 
c) Kwik Star, 4515 Coneflower Parkway, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 
d) The Black Hawk Hotel/Bar Winslow/Carter House Market & Cafe, 115-119 Main Street, Class B 
liquor, Class B wine & outdoor service - renewal. 
e) Cypress Lounge, 209 A State Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
f) David’s Taphouse and Dumplings, 200 West 1st Street, Class C liquor – renewal. 
g) The Pump Haus Pub & Grill, 311 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
h) River Place Plaza, 200 East 2nd Street – Plaza, Special Class C liquor & outdoor service – 
temporary expansion of outdoor service area. (August 12-13, August 19-20, August 26-27, 
September 9-10, & September 23-24, 2022) 
i) Amvets, 1934 Irving Street, Class A liquor & outdoor service - temporary expansion of outdoor 
service area. (August 1- October 1,2022) 
j) Fast Track Racing, 200 block West 2nd Street, Class B beer & outdoor service - 5-day permit. 
k) The Library, 2222 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - new - change in ownership. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

10. Resolution approving and adopting revised City Council Meeting Procedures. 

11. Resolution approving and adopting amendments to the City’s Accounting Policies and Procedures 
and Purchasing Manual. 

12. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Second Amendment to Agreement for 
Professional Services with Operation Threshold for Community Development Block Grant (CDGB-
CV3 funding relative to the CARES Act. 

13. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product Agreement with Iowa Northland 
Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) for grant administration and technical services for 
activities relative to FY2023 (FFY2022) Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding 
project delivery. 

14. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product Agreement with Iowa Northland 
Regional Council of Governments (INRCOG) for grant administration and technical services for 
activities relative to FY2023 (FFY2022) HOME Investment Partnership Program funding project 
delivery. 

15. Resolution approving a Hwy-1, Highway Commercial Zoning District site plan for construction of a 
financial institution to be located at 1000 Brandilynn Boulevard. 

16. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Benton's Sand & Gravel, Inc. for the 
2022 University Avenue Bio Cells Project. 

17. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Blacktop Service Company for the 
2022 Seal Coat Project. 

18. Resolution receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting the bid of Peterson 
Contractors, in the amount of $2,699,537.74, being the only bid received for the Olive Street Box 
Culvert Replacement Project. 

2



Page 3 of 3 

19. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to the 
Professional Service Agreement with Foth Infrastructure & Environment, LLC for addtional services 
relative to the Center Street Corridor Streetscape Project. 

20. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of thirty Owner Purchase Agreements, and 
approving and accepting thirty Temporary Construction Easements, in conjunction with the Main 
Street Reconstruction (6th Street to University) Project. 

21. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Joint Funding Agreement for Water Resource 
Investigations with the U.S. Geological Survey relative to the Cedar River Streamgage Station. 

22. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Professional Service Agreement with 
Ritland+Kuiper Landscape Architects for design services relative to the Seerley Park Improvements 
Project. 

Ordinances: 

23. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to electric vehicle (EV) charging parking spaces, upon its first consideration. 

Allow Bills and Claims 

24. Allow Bills and Claims for August 1, 2022. 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

Staff Updates 

Adjournment 

3



COMMUNITY CENTER 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, JULY 18, 2022 
REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 

MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 
  

The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:30 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Absent: None.  
 

53893 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr that the minutes of the Regular 
Meeting of July 5, 2022 be approved as presented and ordered of record. Motion 
carried unanimously.  

 
53894 -   The Mayor then asked if there were any agenda revisions. City Clerk Danielsen 

noted that item #2 under Special Presentations was being removed from the 
agenda. 

   
53895 -    Mayor introduced Colonel Garrett Gingrich who spoke about the Ironman 

Battalion and accepted the proclamation that was presented at the July 5, 2022 
City Council Meeting. 

Rosemary Beach, 5018 Sage Road, commented on the need for convenient 
public restrooms in the Downtown area and requested a taskforce to complete a 
study. She also commented on the speed limit on South Main and asked for a 
review from University Avenue to the Western Home Community, requesting one 
speed limit for the entire length of the roadway. 

52896 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding to receive and file bids 
received for the sale of $3,860,000 General Obligation Loan Notes, Series 2022. 
Following a brief summary of the proposed sale and comments on the City’s AAA 
bond rating by Jon Burmeister, PFM Financial Advisors, LLC, the motion carried 
unanimously.  

 
52897 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,858, 

directing the sale of $3,860,000 General Obligation Loan Notes, Series 2022, be 
adopted. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question 
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Ganfield, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding. Nay: Sires. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #22,858 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53898 - Mayor Green announced the continuation of the public hearing on the FY2023 

(FFY2022) Annual Action Plan for Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
and HOME Consortium. Planner III Pezley provided a brief summary of the 
proposed plan in response to Council concerns. There being no one else present 
to speak about the proposed plan, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and 
passed to the next order of business. 

 
53899 -    It was moved by Harding and seconded by Dunn that Resolution #22,859, 

4

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

approving the FY2023 (FFY2022) Annual Action Plan for Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Consortium, be adopted. 
Following questions and comments by Councilmembers deBuhr, Harding, Kruse, 
Sires and Schultz, and responses by Community Development Director Sheetz 
and Planner III Pezley, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of 
the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Ganfield, Dunn, 
Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding. Nay: Sires. Motion carried. The Mayor then 
declared Resolution #22,859 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53900 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of July 11, 

2022, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the Status of Funded 
Activities for the State Award of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG-
CV2) funding relative to the CARES Act. It was then moved by Ganfield and 
seconded by Harding that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be 
received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
53901 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed on the 

status of funded activities. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Community 
Development Director Sheetz provided a brief summary of the status of activities 
and description of remaining work. There being no one else present wishing to 
speak about the status of funded activities, the Mayor declared the hearing 
closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
53902 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Dunn that Resolution #22,860, 

approving the Status of Funded Activities for the State Award of Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG-CV2) funding relative to the CARES Act, be 
adopted. Following a question by Mayor Green and response by Community 
Development Director Sheetz, the Mayor put the question on the motion and 
upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Ganfield, 
Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The 
Mayor then declared Resolution #22,860 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53903 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of July 8, 

2022, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed rezoning 
from R-1, Residence District to A-1, Agricultural District of property located at 
2209 North Union Road. It was then moved by Ganfield and seconded by 
Harding that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed 
on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
53904 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed rezoning. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planner III 
Weintraut provided a brief summary of the proposed rezoning. There being no 
one else present wishing to speak about the proposed rezoning, the Mayor 
declared the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
53905 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #3014, 

amending Section 26-118 of the Code of Ordinances by removing certain 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

property located at 2209 North Union Road from the R-1, Residence District and 
placing the same in the A-1, Agricultural District, be passed upon its first 
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Harding. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
53906 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of July 6, 

2022, this was the time and place for a public hearing on proposed amendments 
to Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to Planning & Zoning 
Commission review of site plans in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT). It 
was then moved by Harding and seconded by Schultz that the proof of 
publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
53907 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed amendments. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Planning & 
Community Services Manager Howard provided a brief summary of the proposal. 
There being no one else present wishing to speak about the proposed 
amendments, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next 
order of business. 

 
53908 - It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Harding that an ordinance, amending 

Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to Planning & Zoning 
Commission review of site plans in the Downtown Character District (CD-DT), be 
passed upon its first consideration. Following questions by Councilmembers 
Harding and Kruse, and responses by City Attorney Rogers and Planning & 
Community Services Manager Howard, it was moved by Kruse and seconded by 
Sires to petition the Planning & Zoning Commission to include review of any site 
plan that would expand the floor plan or where residential is being added, similar 
to language in Section 26-196, C.2.b. Following comments and questions by 
Councilmembers deBuhr, Kruse, Dunn, Harding and Sires, and responses by 
Howard, it was moved by Harding to call the question on the original motion. 
Motion failed 3-4, with deBuhr, Kruse, Ganfield and Sires voting Nay. Following 
comments by Mayor Green, and questions and comments by Councilmembers 
deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Dunn and Schultz, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion to petition the Planning & Zoning Commission. Motion carried 4-3, with 
Dunn, Schultz and Harding voting Nay. 

 
53909 -    It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #3013, 

amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to prohibiting parking on portions of South Lawn Road, be passed upon 
its third and final consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the 
Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Ordinance 
#3013 duly passed and adopted. 

 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

53910 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse that the following items on the 
Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 

 
Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment 
of members to Boards and Commissions: 
a) Tori Hale, Community Center & Senior Services Board, term ending 
06/30/2024. 
b) Lorene Hosler, Community Center & Senior Services Board, term ending 
06/30/2025. 

Receive and file the following resignation of members from Boards and 
Commissions: 
a) Sarah Corkery, Parks & Recreation Commission. 

Receive and file communications from the Civil Service Commission relative to 
the following certified lists: 
a) Cultural Programs Supervisor. 
b) Information Systems Technician I. 
c) Public Works & Parks Supervisor. 

Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Dollar General, 1922 Valley Park Drive, Class C Beer & Class B Wine - 
renewal. 
b) Smokin Oak Wood Fired Pizza, 1525 West Ridgeway Avenue, Class B beer – 
renewal. 
c) Buffalo Wild Wings, 6406 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service 
- renewal. 
d) Hy-Vee Market Grille, 6301 University Avenue, Class C liquor - renewal. 
e) Octopus, 2205 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
f) The Other Place, 4214 University Avenue, Class C liquor & outdoor service - 
renewal. 
g) River Place Plaza, 200 East 2nd Street – Plaza, Special Class C liquor & 
outdoor service – temporary expansion of outdoor service area. (September 3-4, 
2022) 

Motion carried unanimously. 

53911 - It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Harding that the following resolutions 
be introduced and adopted: 

 
 Resolution #22,861, approving and authorizing execution of a Cooperative 

Agreement with the Iowa Civil Rights Commission for FY23. 

 Resolution #22,862, approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product 
Agreement with Amperage Marketing relative to FY23 Digital Advertising. 

 Resolution #22,863, approving and authorizing execution of a Red House Studio 
Lease relative to the use of 224 West Seerley Boulevard as artist studio space, in 
conjunction with the Hearst Center’s Visiting Artist Program. 

 Resolution #22,864, approving and authorizing execution of a Subrecipient 

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

Agreement for Federally Funded Project with Operation Threshold for 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG-CV2) funding relative to the 
CARES Act. 

 Resolution #22,865, approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the 
purchase of two polymer mixing pumps for biosolids handling operations of the 
Water Reclamation Division. 

 Resolution #22,866, approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental 
Agreement No. 2 to the Professional Service Agreement with Snyder & 
Associates, Inc. for administration and design services relative to the Oak Park 
Boulevard Sewer Replacement Project. 

 Resolution #22,867, approving and authorizing execution of twenty-three Owner 
Purchase Agreements, and approving and accepting twenty-three Temporary 
Construction Easements, in conjunction with the Main Street Reconstruction 
(6th Street to University) Project. 

 Resolution #22,868, receiving and filing, and setting August 1, 2022 as the date 
of public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & 
estimate of cost for the 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project - Zone 5. 

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #22,861 through #22,868 duly 
passed and adopted. 

53912 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Dunn that Resolution #22,869, 
approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement with the University of 
Northern Iowa relative to a City Employee Climate Survey, be adopted. Following 
questions and comments by Councilmembers Sires, Kruse, Harding, Dunn and 
Ganfield, and responses by Human Resources Manager Schindel, City Attorney 
Rogers, City Administrator Gaines and Mayor Green, the Mayor put the question 
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding. Nay: None. 
Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #22,869 duly passed and 
adopted. 

53913- It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,870, 
approving and authorizing execution of a Master Service Agreement with 
Heartland Business Systems, LLC relative to migration of the City's computer 
network to Microsoft 365, be adopted. Following questions by Councilmembers 
Harding and Kruse, and responses by Information Systems Manager Sorensen, 
the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution 
#22,870 duly passed and adopted. 

53914 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,871, 
approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product Agreement with 

8

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

Inteconnex relative to replacement of the City’s door access control systems, be 
adopted. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question 
on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding. Nay: None. 
Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #22,871 duly passed and 
adopted. 

53915 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the bills and claims of July 
18, 2022 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City Treasurer be 
authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the proper funds in 
payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding. Nay: None. 
Motion carried. 

 
53916 - Following comments by City Administrator Gaines, it was moved by Sires and 

seconded by Kruse to direct staff to request from UNI, an amendment to the 
Employee Climate Survey, that would include former full-time employees who left 
the City two years ago from July 1, 2022, to be considered as a separate set of 
data from current employees, and indicating the relevance of the data. Following 
comments by Councilmembers Harding, deBuhr, Kruse and Dunn, and 
responses by Gaines, the motion carried 6-1, with Dunn voting Nay. 

 
  It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse to refer to the Community 

Relations & Planning Committee a discussion to determine if a public restroom 
study downtown is warranted. Motion carried unanimously.  

 
53917 - Community Development Director Sheetz responded to a request by 

Councilmember Dunn for an update on the Cedar River Project. Sheetz also 
responded to a question by Mayor Green.  

 
53918 -     It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield to adjourn to Executive 

Session to discuss Property Acquisition per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(j) to 
discuss the purchase or sale of particular real estate only where premature 
disclosure could be reasonably expected to increase the price the governmental 
body would have to pay for that property or reduce the price the governmental 
body would receive for that property. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted.  Aye: Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, 
Harding.  Nay: None.  Motion carried. 

 
     The City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 9:23 P.M. 
 
     Mayor Green reconvened the Council meeting at 9:58 P.M.   
 
53919 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the meeting be adjourned 

at 9:59 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
    ________________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

9

Item 1.



 

   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

 

 
 

 

 

 
GASTROPARESIS AWARENESS MONTH 

August 2022  
 

WHEREAS, Gastroparesis is a paralysis of the stomach which causes extreme 

pain, nausea, vomiting, early satiety, and can lead to serious complications 

such as malnourishment, dehydration, extreme weight loss, overwhelming 

fatigue, a severe decrease in quality of life, and in some cases, even death; and  

WHEREAS, Gastroparesis is a chronic illness affecting more than 5 million 

people in the United States, yet public awareness and medical understanding 

of this condition is severely lacking; and 

WHEREAS, no known cure exists for Gastroparesis, and the few treatment 

options available can lead to even more serious complications such as sepsis; and  

WHEREAS, those affected by Gastroparesis seek more research, additional 

treatment options and effective medications, better patient support, and hope 

for a future free of the constant suffering and pain; and 

WHEREAS, the people of Cedar Falls can benefit from increased awareness of 

the devastating effects of Gastroparesis for the good of public health and to 

better support those inflicted with this disorder; 

THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of the City of Cedar Falls, do hereby 

designate August 2022 as Gastroparesis Awareness Month in Cedar Falls, 

and I do hereby encourage residents to learn about Gastroparesis and to seek 

out ways to support our neighbors who suffer from this debilitating illness.  

Signed this 11th day of July, 2022. 

 

 

______________________________________                                          

Mayor Robert M. Green 

 10

Item 2.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 
 DATE: August 1, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project – Zone 5 
  City Project Number: SW-000-3293 
  Public Hearing 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs 
and Quantities for the 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project – Zone 5.  
 
This project involves the replacement of deficient sidewalk adjacent to various property owners. 
The project will replace the deficient sidewalk for the adjacent property owner and assess the 
cost of replacement to the property owner.   
 
Once the replacement has been completed, the Engineering Division will submit a bill to the City 
Clerk. The City Clerk will then send notice of bill in the mail to the adjacent property owner. The 
adjacent property owner will have 30 days to pay the bill without interest or penalty. If the 
adjacent property owner fails to pay the bill in 30 days, the cost of replacement will be applied to 
the property owners’ property taxes. 
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $40,591.00.  
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving the Plans, 
Specifications and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project 
– Zone 5.  
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I 

11

Item 3.



ITEM ITEM UNIT TOTAL

NO. CODE DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE QUANTITY COST

1 2010-108-D-3 OFF SITE TOPSOIL C.Y. $100.00 17.25 1,725.00$           

2 7030-108-A-0 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK S.Y. $40.00 217.1 8,684.00$           

3 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 4 INCH S.Y. $80.00 209.90 16,792.00$         

4 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT, P.C.C., CLASS "C", 6 INCH S.Y. $150.00 7.20 1,080.00$           

5 8030-108-A-0 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. $10,000.00 1.0 10,000.00$         

6 9010-108-B-0 SEEDING, FERTILIZING, AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING S.F. $2.50 924.0 2,310.00$           

$40,591.00

BID TABULATION

2022 SIDEWALK ASSESSMENT PROJECT
CITY PROJECT NO. SW - 000 - 3293

Base Bid 

TOTAL PROJECT ESTIMATE

12

Item 3.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
             TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Thom Weintraut, AICP, Planner III 

 DATE: July 11, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Rezoning Request 2209 N Union Road (RZ22-002) 
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

Rezone property from R-1: Residence District to A-1: Agriculture District. 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Kel-Mar, LC (Shawn and Paula Kelly) 
 

LOCATION: 
 

2209 N. Union Road  

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The proposal is to rezone approximately 0.98 acre portion of the property located at 2209 N 
Union Road, formerly the Martyrs Retreat, and 8.86 acres of a 17.86 acre parcel located 
adjacent to the south of 2209 N Union Road from the R-1: Residence District, to A-1: 
Agriculture District.  
 
BACKGROUND 
This property was established as the American Martyrs Retreat House by the Archdiocese of 
Dubuque in 1960. The property was annexed into Cedar Falls in 1971 at which time a 1,450’ x 
600’ area was zoned to R-1 to accommodate the existing private institutional use, which was 
not permitted in an agriculture district. In 2019, the facility closed and Mr. Kelly purchased both 
tracts. 
 
In February 2021, Mr. Kelly approached the City with a request rezone Tract 2 (shown in blue 
on the next page and attached zoning illustration) and the portion of Martyrs Retreat property, 
Tract 1 (outlined in black), to R-1 to create a buildable lot for the construction of a new 
residential structure. However, this was not possible, because in order to rezone the property 
to R-1, city services would have to be extended to the lot per City Code requirement. The 
nearest available utilities are greater than 2,000 feet to the south and the existing railroad right-
of-way would make extending the utilities cost-prohibitive.  
 
In March 2021, staff set up a meeting to discuss possible options that would allow the owner to 
achieve their goal of building one house on the property.  At that meeting, staff suggested 

13

Item 4.



exploring the possibility for reconfiguring the existing parcel lines with plats of survey. 
Research by Mr. Kelly’s surveyor identified two existing lots of record, which could be 
reconfigured to allow a house to be built in the desired location overlooking the Cedar River. 
This reconfiguration of the lots of record involve two plats of survey:  a transfer of the portion of 
Tract 1 outlined in black to Tract 2; and the transfer of the portion of Tract 2 outlined in red, 
which contains the existing  Martyrs Retreat building, to Tract 1. The condition for a plat of 
survey is that no new building lots can be created nor can the transfer area constitute more 
than 25 percent of a parcel after the transfer takes place. Staff also recommended rezoning 
the portion of the property not associated with the Martyrs Retreat building from R-1 
Residential to A-1, Agricultural District, both to acknowledge the lack of city services and so 
that zoning boundaries coincide with the new parcel lines created with the plats of survey. In 
other words, the proposed rezoning will clean up the split zoning on these tracts.   
 

 
 
In February 2022, VJ Engineering, Mr. Kelly’s surveyor, requested further discussion about the 
next steps for the rezoning. Staff recommended completing a plat of Survey for Parcel ‘E’ to 
define the area involved in the request to rezone from R-1 to A-1. As part of the approval of the 
plats of survey for the property, staff recommended Tract 2 share access from N. Union Road 
with the Martyrs Retreat property and a note be added to the plats of survey stating no building 
permits can be issued for the transfer areas unless merged with  the receiving parcels. Cedar 
Falls Utilities requested utility easements be dedicated for electric and communication services 
and that all existing utility easements be maintained. Staff also recommended a meeting with 
Mr. Kelly to discuss the future use of the Martyrs Retreat property.   
 
On April 18, 2022, the applicant’s surveyor submitted a plat of survey for Tract 2 and a survey 
showing the location of easements for both utilities and access.  
 
On May 9th 2022, staff met with Mr. Kelly and his daughter to finalize the documentation 
needed for the rezoning and to discuss future options for the Martyrs Retreat property. The 
owners do not have any immediate plans for re-use of the Martyrs Retreat building, but the 
recent zoning code amendment that allows consideration of requests for alternative uses of 

14

Item 4.



defunct institutional buildings will provide more flexibility for an appropriate adaptive re-use of 
the building with Board of Adjustment approval of a conditional use permit. In the meantime, 
the owner has acknowledged that any re-use of the building must be approved by the City 
according to City Code requirements and that the property will not be used for residential 
purposes.    
 
ANALYSIS 
 
CURRENT ZONING 
R-1 Residence District and A-1 Agriculture District 
 
The R-1 Residence District allows one and two unit dwellings and a limited number of other 
uses, including private institutional or community recreation centers; however, all subdivision of 
property in the R-1 Residence District requires the installation of public sewer and water.   
 
The purpose of the A-1 Agriculture District is to act as a “holding zone” in areas of the city that 
are undeveloped and not served by essential municipal services.  
 
PROPOSED ZONING 
The request is to downzone approximately 0.98 acre of land at 2209 N Union Road and 8.86 
acres on the adjacent tract to the south from the R-1 Residence zoning district to A-1 
Agriculture.  The requested change will place those portions of the reconfigured parcel that do 
not have adequate services available back into the “holding zone” and clean up the split zoning 
on the parcel. The remaining R-1 zoned area where the Martyrs Retreat building is located will 
remain zoned R-1 to allow the potential for an adaptive reuse of the building under the R-1 
standards.   
 
The A-1 district allows no more than one single-unit or one two-unit residential dwelling in the 
following circumstances:  

1. as an incidental use to a permitted agriculture use, such as growing crops, grain, and 
limited animal production (20 acres minimum lot area) or  

2. if located on a lot of record as of August 1, 1979 with a minimum lot area of three acres. 
The existing Tract 2 (see image above) is considered a lot of record, so it would be 
allowed one single-unit dwelling, as proposed by the applicant.   

 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
The Future Land Use Map identifies this entire property and the properties south of the rail line 
as Low Density Residential. The characteristics of this designation include an emphasis on 
single-family residential forms and civic uses. The intent is that at build-out development is 
provided a full range of municipal services (see map next page). Staff finds that the proposed 
rezoning is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan as the long term goal is for low density 
residential development. At this time, however, the A-1 Zoning is appropriate to acknowledge 
the lack of city services.  
 

15

Item 4.



 
 
ACCESS TO PUBLIC SERVICES 
The property is located in an area of the city where public services are not currently available 
and it is difficult to extend water and sewer because of the railroad right-of-way. This lack of 
services indicates that the A-1 Agricultural District is an appropriate zoning district, because it 
is considered a holding zone until adequate city services are extended to allow for residential 
development at an urban density.  
 
ACCESS TO ADEQUATE STREET NETWORK 
The property currently has access from N. Union Road. There will be no new streets proposed 
to serve this area until city services are available. Therefore, the request to downzone the 
property from R-1 to A-1 is warranted and will keep traffic volumes low. A single private drive 
that shares the street access point with the Martyrs Retreat property will serve the proposed 
single unit dwelling. With the new zoning, no additional development can occur beyond the 
construction of the one residential dwelling proposed.  
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
City staff mailed letters to the surrounding property owners notifying them of the rezoning 
request. A notice of Public hearing was published in the Courier on June 15, 2022  
 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
The City technical staff, including Cedar Falls Utilities, has no concerns with the proposed 
rezoning request. The two plats of survey that reconfigure the parcel lines to coincide with the 
proposed zoning boundaries can be approved administratively by the Zoning Administrator, 
per the City Subdivision Code regulations.   
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The Community Development recommends approval of RZ22-002, A request to rezone 
approximately 0.98 acre portion of the property located at 2209 N Union Road, formerly the 
Martyrs Retreat, and 8.86 acres of a 17.86 acre parcel located adjacent to the south of 2209 N 
Union Road from the R-1: Residence District, to A-1: Agriculture District.  
 
 

16

Item 4.



 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction 
6/8/2022 

Chair Leeper introduced the item and Mr. Weintraut provided background 
information. He explained that this is a request to rezone approximately 9.94 acres 
of the Martyrs Retreat and a parcel to the south property from R-1, Residential to A-
1, Agricultural, which would allow for one residence to be built on the tract of land. 
No further residential development would be allowed. The new zoning boundaries 
will then match the lot boundaries. Staff recommends that comments be gathered 
from the Planning and Zoning Commission and the public and a public hearing be 
set for the next Commission meeting on June 22. 
 
Mr. Holst made a motion to move the item forward to public hearing. Ms. Saul 
seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously with 9 ayes (Crisman, 
Grybovych, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Saul), and 0 nays. 

 
Discussion 
& Vote 
6/22/2022 

The first item of business was a public hearing regarding a rezoning request for 2209 
North Union Road. Acting Chair Hartley introduced the item and Mr. Weintraut provided 
background information. He stated that the request is to rezone approximately 9.94 
acres of land located at 2209 North Union Road and displayed a rendering of the 
location and rezoning plat. The petitioner would like to rezone the area from R-1, 
Residential to A-1, Agriculture to allow for the addition of one residential structure.  
 
Ms. Saul made a motion to approve the item. Ms. Crisman seconded the motion. The 
motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes (Crisman, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Lynch 
and Saul), and 0 nays. 

 

 
Attachments: Location Map 
  Rezoning Plat 
  Zoning Illustration  
 Letter of Request 
  Published Public Notice 

17

Item 4.



Cedar Falls Planning & Zoning Commission 

June 8, 2022 

Corporate Limits 

Location 
Map 

 

2209 N Union Road 
R-1 to A-1 
 

18

Item 4.



19

Item 4.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Thomas Weintraut, Planner III, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA 50613 (319) 273-8600 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO._____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

IOWA FOR APPROXIMATELY 9.94 ACRES OF LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN, 

REMOVING SAID AREA FROM THE R-1, RESIDENCE DISTRICT AND ADDING IT TO 

THE A-1, AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT 

 

 

WHEREAS, a proposal was submitted to the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 

Commission to rezone approximately a 0.98 acre portion of the property located at 2209 North 

Union Road and 8.86 acres of a 17.86 acre parcel located adjacent to the south of 2209 North 

Union Road from the R-1: Residence District, to A-1, Agricultural District: and  

 

WHEREAS, said A-1, Agricultural District allows for the establishment a single-unit 

residential dwelling on a lot of record as of August 1, 1979 and recognizes the A-1: Agriculture 

District as a holding district for property(s) until services are available; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered the rezoning request and 

find that said rezoning is consistent with the City of Cedar Falls Comprehensive Plan and the 

intent of the A-1, Agricultural District; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission has recommended approval of said 

rezoning under case #RZ22-002; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of Cedar Falls, Iowa, deems it to be in the best interests of 

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, to approve said rezoning; and 

 

  WHEREAS, Section 26-118, District Boundaries of Division I, Generally, of Article III, 

Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter Twenty-Six (26), Zoning, of the Code of 

Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, provides that the zoning map of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa, attached thereto, is incorporated into and made a part of said Ordinance; 

 

20

Item 4.



 WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been published, as provided by law, and such 

hearing held on the proposed amendment; and 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

 

Section 1. That the zoning map of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, be and the same is 

hereby amended to show the property legally described below, as now being in the A-l, 

Agricultural District, and the amended map is hereby ordained to be the zoning map of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, as amended. 

 

The West 1450.0 feet of the North 300.0 feet of the Northwest Quarter (NW ¼) of 

Section Three (3), Township Eighty-nine (89) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the 

Fifth (5TH) Principal Meridian, except the North 70 feet of the East 700 feet of the 

Northwest Fractional Quarter of said Section 3, and that part of West 1450.0 feet of the 

South 300.0 feet of the Southwest Quarter (SW ¼) of Section Thirty-four (34) Township 

Ninety (90) North, Range Fourteen (14) West of the Fifth (5th) Principal Meridian, Black 

Hawk County, Iowa, lying within the Southeast Quarter of said Southwest Quarter except 

that parcel of Land recorded on File 2018-00018291 in the office of the Black Hawk 

County Recorder.  

 

 

INTRODUCED:              July 18, 2022     

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:   July 18, 2022   

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:       

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:       

ADOPTED:          

 

 

 

        ______________________________ 

        Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

21

Item 4.



MEETING OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
Community Center 

July 18, 2022 
 

The meeting of Standing Committees met at the Community Center at 5:36 p.m. on July 18, 2022, with 
the following Committee persons in attendance:  Councilmembers Susan deBuhr, Kelly Dunn, Daryl 
Kruse, Simon Harding, Dustin Ganfield, Gil Schultz, and Dave Sires.  Staff members from all City 
Departments and members of the community attended in person.   

Administration Committee: 

Chair Dunn called the meeting to order and introduced the only item on the Administration Committee 
agenda, City Council Meeting Procedures and introduced Mayor Green.  Mayor Green gave a brief 
overview of the two additional change requests for Council Meeting Procedures.  Chair Dunn opened for 
questions from Council; Councilmembers discussed changes and came to the consensus on the below 
items.   

1. Rename the Standing Committees to: Administration, Finance & Business Operations, Public Safety, 
Community Development, Public Works and Committee of the Whole.   

2. Limit on remarks (Rule 4.14) – Consensus:  each member shall limit remarks to a reasonable length.  
Remove, as determined by the presiding officer.   

3. Council referrals presented in writing (Rule 8.2) - Consensus is to change to: Except for the exigent 
circumstances in Rule 8.4, all council referrals requests should (instead of shall) be provided to the 
City Clerk in writing no later than 5:00 pm on the Monday prior to the next regular council meeting.  
The request should (instead of shall) contain sufficient information to enable the council to determine 
if the request merits referral to a council standing committee, a city board or commission, or to staff 
for further consideration. 

Community Relations & Planning Committee: 

Chair Ganfield introduced the first item on the Community Relations & Planning Committee agenda, 
Cedar Falls Rotary Memorial Plaza – West 1st Street and introduced Mike Butler & Gale Bonsall.  Mr. 
Butler & Mr. Bonsall stated the Rotary will be turning 100, February 2024.  The Rotary would like to 
celebrate with a bike path and memorial to Essential Workers between the Little Red School House and 
the Behrens Rapps Station on First Street.  Materials will be paid for by Rotary fundraising.  Mr. Butler & 
Mr. Bonsall stated the levee will be avoided, 2-3 trees may need to be removed and the current signs and 
bench will be relocated.  Councilmembers discussed concerns with removal of the trees; consensus by 
Council was to recommend to staff to work with CF Rotary on the project and save the trees if possible 
but shall replace any trees that are removed. 

Chair Ganfield introduced the second item on the Community Relations & Planning Committee agenda, 
Private Shared Parking Requirements and introduced Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services 
Manager.  Ms. Howard gave an overview of current zoning regulations for off-site shared parking options, 
on-street parking as shared parking and time of day rules for shared parking.  Councilmembers discussed 
concerns with 600’ walking distance in the shared parking section and on-street public parking directly 
abutting the project site counting toward the shared parking requirement. Council discussed various other 
potential distances that might be acceptable.  Councilmembers consensus is to refer the shared parking 
regulations to the Planning & Zoning Commission, with consideration including but not limited to the 
location and time of day rules for shared parking in Downtown.    

Public Works Committee: 

Chair Schultz introduced the only item on the Public Works Committee, West 12th Street Speed Limit – 
Barnett Drive to Union Road and introduced David Wicke, City Engineer.  Mr. Wicke informed 
Councilmembers of the traffic study that is being conducted between Barnett Drive to Union Road.  The 
posted speed limit is 45 mph, the 2007 data shows the 85th percentile of speed (safest % of speed that 
motorist feel comfortable traveling) at 47.82 mph (Westbound), 49.28 mph (Eastbound) and in 2018 data 
shows the 85th percentile at 46.87 mph (Westbound, 43.37 mph (Eastbound).  Mr. Wicke stated within the 
last 10 years 6 accidents have occurred and if a significant decrease or increase is implemented and the 
85th percentile is not factored in this decision could impact accidents to increase or decrease on this minor 
arterial roadway.  In 2009 around 2,400 motorist per day traveled this roadway and in 2017 around 2,500 
motorist per day.  Mr. Wicke stated data of the traffic study should be complete within 2-4 weeks, pending 
acceptable data.  Councilmembers discussed crosswalks, volume of motorists, different radar trailers and 
requested a radar trailer be placed on 12th Street when school starts.  Councilmembers consensus is for 
staff to present data/report when traffic study is complete.              

Meeting adjourned at 7:19 p.m. 

Minutes by Kim Kerr, Administrative Supervisor 
22

Item 5.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

  

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: July 26, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Reappointment to the Library Board of Trustees 

 REF: Code of Ordinances, City of Cedar Falls §2-407 

 

1. In accordance with the candidacy and qualification requirements of reference (a), I hereby 

nominate Mr. Charles Blair-Broeker for reappointment to the Library Board of Trustees for 

a six-year term ending June 30, 2028.  

 

2. Please contact me with any questions you may have about this re-appointment. 

 

 

Xc:   City Administrator 

  Director, Finance and Business Operations 

  Library Director 

 

### 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

23

Item 6.



24

Item 7.



25

Item 8.



26

Item 8.



27

Item 8.



28

Item 8.



29

Item 8.



30

Item 8.



31

Item 8.



32

Item 8.



33

Item 8.



34

Item 8.



35

Item 8.



36

Item 8.



37

Item 8.



38

Item 8.



39

Item 8.



40

Item 8.



41

Item 8.



42

Item 8.



43

Item 8.



44

Item 8.



45

Item 8.



46

Item 8.



47

Item 8.



48

Item 8.



49

Item 8.



50

Item 8.



51

Item 8.



52

Item 8.



53

Item 8.



54

Item 8.



55

Item 8.



56

Item 8.



57

Item 8.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Craig Berte, Public Safety Services Director 

  Mark Howard, Acting Police Chief 

Date:  July 25, 2022 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Vintage Iron, 104 Main Street, Class B wine – renewal. 
 

b) King Star, 2228 Lincoln Street, Class C beer & Class B native wine - renewal. 
 

c) Kwik Star, 4515 Coneflower Parkway, Class C beer & Class B wine - renewal. 
 

d) The Black Hawk Hotel/Bar Winslow/Carter House Market & Cafe, 115-119 Main Street, Class 
B liquor, Class B wine & outdoor service - renewal. 

 
e) Cypress Lounge, 209 A State Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 

 
f) David’s Taphouse and Dumplings, 200 West 1st Street, Class C liquor – renewal. 

 
g) The Pump Haus Pub & Grill, 311 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 

 
h) River Place Plaza, 200 East 2nd Street – Plaza, Special Class C liquor & outdoor service – 

temporary expansion of outdoor service area. (August 12-13, August 19-20, August 26-27, 
September 9-10, & September 23-24, 2022) 

 
i) Amvets, 1934 Irving Street, Class A liquor & outdoor service - temporary expansion of outdoor 

service area. (August 1- October 1,2022) 
 

j) Fast Track Racing, 200 Block West 2nd Street, Class B beer & outdoor service - 5-day permit. 
 

k) The Library, 2222 College Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - new. 
 

58

Item 9.



CFD 1121.TBD – City Council Meeting Procedures CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 1 of 14 

 

  
 

CFD 1121: City Council Meeting Procedures 
Approved XXXX, 2022 by the Cedar Falls City Council 

Adopted & Amended: 

01/28/91; 04/2003; 10/2006; 12/2013, 09/15/2014; 10/06/2014; 03/07/2016; 03/06/2017; 

04/03/2017; 04/16/2018; 02/01/2021; 05/03/2021; 08/16/2021; 05/02/2022 

Purpose: 

The Cedar Falls City Council operates under the authority of state law (Iowa Code Chapter 372) 

and has established these special rules to ensure the orderly conduct of the council’s business 

during its meetings. The mayor and committee chairs shall be responsible for enforcing these 

rules. All members are encouraged to familiarize themselves with the standing rules, to aid in 

their proper use, and to suggest improvements as may be needed from time to time. 

Procedure: 

1. General Rules 

1.1. Definitions. In this text, “member” shall be defined as any member of the Cedar Falls 

City Council. “All members” shall be defined as the seven City Council seats, whether or 

not the seat is vacant. “A two-thirds majority” shall mean at least five of seven members. 

1.2. Scope of rules. These rules shall govern the conduct of the mayor and members and 

shall be interpreted to ensure fair and open deliberations and decision-making as 

required by the Iowa Open Meetings Law (Iowa Code Chapter 21). 

1.3. Applicability of rules. These rules shall apply to the council when meeting in regular 

council meetings, in committee, and during council work sessions. Presiding officers will 

endeavor to fairly apply these rules; nonetheless, nonconformance with any part of these 

rules shall not affect the legality of any action of the council. 

1.4. Reference to and applicability of Robert’s Rules of Order. The Cedar Falls City 

Council has adopted Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised (RONR), Twelfth Edition, 

as its underlying parliamentary procedure. In cases not provided for by the Cedar Falls 

Code of Ordinances, or not specifically provided for in these City Council Meeting 

Procedures, Robert’s Rules of Order shall prevail. 

1.5. Consent required to suspend or amend the rules. These rules may be temporarily 

suspended by consent of three-fourths of the  members present, but shall not be 

repealed, altered or amended unless by concurrence of two-thirds of all the 

members.(see RONR 25:7; 25:14) 

1.6. Matters not covered. Any matter of order or procedure not covered by these rules shall 

be referred to the presiding officer, who shall decide the matter with the assistance and 

advice of the city attorney in conformity with the purpose of these rules in a fair and 

59

Item 10.



CFD 1121.TBD – City Council Meeting Procedures CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 2 of 14 

 

  
 

expeditious manner.  

1.7. Council prevalence in meeting decisions.  Any determination by a presiding officer 

may be reversed by a two-thirds majority of all members. 

1.8. Interpretation. These rules supplement and shall be interpreted to conform to the 

statutes of the State of Iowa and the ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls.   

1.9. Duty to vote; conflict of interest. Each member who is present when a question is 

stated by the presiding officer shall vote thereon unless directly interested in the 

question, in which case the member shall abstain from voting. When any member 

refuses to vote when not excused, the member’s vote shall be recorded in the negative. 

(See RONR 45.4)   

1.10. Informational requests. During the consideration of any matter, or in the course of a 

hearing, members may request and receive information, explanations or the opinions of 

the mayor, city administrator, city attorney, city clerk, department director, or their 

designee. 

2. Time and Place of Meeting 

2.1. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Cedar Falls City Council shall be held the 

first and third Monday of each month at 7:00 P.M. in the City Hall Council Chambers, 

except when Monday falls on a legal holiday, then the meeting shall be held at the 

regular hour on the next succeeding day not a holiday; provided, however, council may, 

by resolution, reschedule any regular meeting to another date and time, or may cancel a 

meeting. All hearings shall be scheduled for 7:00 P.M. the day of a regular meeting.  

(Sec. 2-45(a)) 

2.2. Special Meetings. Special meetings may be called by the mayor or by any four or more 

members who separately file a special meeting request with the city clerk. Such request 

shall include the proposed agenda item(s) for the special meeting. As with regular 

meetings, the agenda for the special meeting shall specify the day, hour and subject of 

the meeting and shall be posted in City Hall and notice given to the media at least 24 

hours in advance. 

2.3. Quorum. A majority of all members shall constitute a quorum for transaction of 

business. (see Iowa Code 372.13.1) 

2.4. Remote Attendance. Members may attend City Council meetings via remote means, as 

long as a quorum (4 members) is present in person. Members attending remotely shall 

provide advance notice to the City Clerk by noon on the business day prior to the 

meetings, unless unexpected circumstances arise. If members participate via video 

conference, it is preferred that members have their cameras on and remain visible 

throughout the meeting. Unless otherwise approved by the mayor, the presiding officer 

of council and committee meetings must be in physical attendance at the meeting. 

60

Item 10.



CFD 1121.TBD – City Council Meeting Procedures CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 3 of 14 

 

  
 

3. Meeting Agenda 

3.1. Preparation of agenda. Prior to each regular council meeting the city clerk shall 

prepare an agenda that contains all items the council anticipates acting upon at the 

meeting. The order of business shall be as follows: 

a. Roll Call 

b. Pledge of Allegiance (led by presiding officer) 

c. Approval of Minutes 

d. Agenda Revisions 

e. Special Presentations (if necessary) 

f. Public Forum (5 minutes maximum per speaker) 

g. Staff Updates 

h. Special Order of Business(primarily public and quasi-adjudicative hearings and 

related actions) 

i. Old Business 

j. New Business: 

1. Consent Calendar 

2. Resolution Calendar 

3. New ordinances that do not require public hearings 

k. Bills and Claims 

l. Council Referrals 

m. Council Updates and Announcements. 

n. Executive Session (if necessary) 

o. Adjournment 

 

3.2. Consent and Resolution Calendars. In preparing an agenda, the city clerk shall 

separately designate items as Consent Calendar or Resolution Calendar, which may be 

acted upon by the council under Rules 5.16 and 5.17. These items shall consist of 

routine non-controversial items that in the city clerk's determination can be appropriately 

considered in bulk at the council meeting or a listing of resolutions which are subject to 

council action on that date. (see RONR 41:32) 

3.3. Agenda deadline. Any member, the city administrator, city attorney, city clerk, or 

department director, with the mayor's approval, may have an item included upon the 

agenda by requesting the city clerk to include the item by 5:00 P.M. on the Monday one 

week prior to the council meeting. Items requested or filed after this time shall not be 

included upon the agenda unless the mayor deems the item of sufficient urgency to 

warrant immediate council action. 

61

Item 10.



CFD 1121.TBD – City Council Meeting Procedures CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 4 of 14 

 

  
 

3.4. Published agenda. Agendas and meeting materials shall be made available to the 

public at 5:00 P.M. on the Wednesday preceding the council meeting via web link on the 

City website. Members will receive a printed copy of the council packet upon request. 

3.5. Mayor withdrawal of items. The mayor may withdraw any item prior to the council 

meeting, but in withdrawing the item shall state to the council the reason therefore. An 

item withdrawn by the mayor may nonetheless, in the discretion of the council, be acted 

upon in its regular order. 

3.6. Council action to defer, continue or not act. A member  may not withdraw any item 

prior to the start of council meetings, provided however, a member wishing council to 

defer action or continue an item may move to continue, defer or not act on any item 

considered before any other action which council may consider. 

3.7. Public agenda requests. Anyone from the public may request to have an item placed 

on the agenda by filing such request in writing with the mayor prior to 5:00 P.M. on the 

Monday one week prior to the regular council meeting. The mayor may either grant the 

request by placing it on the next agenda or deny the request for stated reasons, 

conveyed to the requester. Anyone may utilize the Public Forum portion of the meeting 

agenda to raise any issue not on the formal agenda, which issue shall then be governed 

by the rules set forth in Part 10 of these rules. 

4. Conduct of Meetings 

4.1. Presiding officer. The mayor, or in the mayor's absence or incapacity the mayor pro 

tem, shall be the presiding officer at all council meetings. If both the mayor and mayor 

pro tem are absent, the most senior member in terms of council service shall preside.  

4.2. Control of discussion. The presiding officer shall control discussion of the council on 

each agenda item to assure full participation in accordance with these rules. (See RONR 

§43; 47:19). 

4.3. Roll call. Before proceeding with the business of the council, committee, or work 

session, the city clerk shall call the roll of members present and enter those names in 

the minutes. The city clerk shall determine the presence of a quorum as required by law 

and these rules. 

4.4. Presiding officer to decide question of priority of business. A question relating to 

the priority of business shall be decided by the presiding officer without debate.   

4.5. Order of consideration of agenda. Except as otherwise provided in these rules, each 

agenda item shall be considered in the numerical order assigned by the city clerk. Each 

agenda item shall be separately announced by the presiding officer, or city clerk, for 

purposes of discussion and consideration. To announce an item, it shall be sufficient to 

identify the item by the number assigned by the city clerk, unless greater specificity is 

requested by some person in attendance. This rule shall not apply to consideration of 

62

Item 10.



CFD 1121.TBD – City Council Meeting Procedures CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 5 of 14 

 

  
 

items under Rule 5.16 or Rule 5.17. 

4.6. Presiding officer to recognize speaker. When two or more members rise at once to 

speak at a council meeting, the presiding officer shall name the member who is to 

speak.(See RONR 42:2) 

4.7. Speaking on questions restricted. No member shall speak more than twice on one 

question before the council without leave of the council, nor more than once in any case 

until every member choosing to speak shall have spoken. 

4.8. Motions to be seconded; when to be written. No motion shall be put or debated 

unless seconded. When a motion is seconded, it shall be stated by the presiding officer 

before debate and every motion shall be reduced to writing if required by the presiding 

officer or any member. 

4.9. Gaining the floor. Every member, previous to speaking, shall address the presiding 

officer, and say, “Mister / Madam Chair” and shall not proceed with remarks until 

recognized and named by the presiding officer. 

4.10. Order of consideration of agenda. Except as otherwise provided in these rules, each 

agenda item shall be considered in the numerical order assigned by the city clerk. Each 

agenda item shall be separately announced by the presiding officer, or city clerk, for 

purposes of discussion and consideration. To announce an item, it shall be sufficient to 

identify the item by the number assigned by the city clerk, unless greater specificity is 

requested by some person in attendance. This rule shall not apply to consideration of 

items under Rule 5.16 or Rule 5.17. 

4.11. Order required while others are speaking. While a member is speaking, no other 

member shall hold any private discourse or interrupt except as allowed for a Point of 

Order (Rule 4.18) and Point of Privilege (Rule 4.19). 

4.12. Order required when question is being put. While the presiding officer is putting the 

question, no one shall walk across or out of the council chambers.   

4.13. Discussion. A member shall speak only after being recognized by the presiding officer. 

A member recognized for a specific purpose shall limit remarks to that purpose. A 

member, after being recognized, shall not be interrupted except by the presiding officer 

to enforce these rules. 

4.14. Limit on remarks. Each member shall limit remarks to a reasonable length. 

4.15. Presiding officer's right to enter into discussion. The presiding officer may enter into 

any discussion. 

4.16. Presiding officer's right to speak last. The presiding officer has the right to close 

debate. 

4.17. Closing debate. Discussion, including public participation, shall be closed on any item 

63

Item 10.



CFD 1121.TBD – City Council Meeting Procedures CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 6 of 14 

 

  
 

by the presiding officer with the concurrence of a majority of members. Except as 

provided by Rule 5.8, a call for the vote shall not close discussion if any member of the 

council still wishes to be heard or the presiding officer determines the continued 

participation of the public will be helpful to the council. 

4.18. Bringing a Point of Order. At any time during a meeting, a member may interrupt to 

declare a “Point of Order” to address a perceived discrepancy or a violation of these 

rules. The presiding officer shall determine the best action based on the point made, 

without debate. 

4.19. Bringing a Point of Privilege. At any time during a meeting, a member may interrupt to 

declare a “Point of Privilege” to address an urgent matter relating to the rights of the 

members or the assembly, including ability to hear speakers and room comfort. The 

presiding officer shall determine the best action based on the point made, without 

debate. 

4.20. Calling member to order; appeal. A member called to order while speaking at a 

council meeting shall immediately cease speaking unless permitted to explain. If there is 

no appeal, the decision of the presiding officer shall be conclusive, but if the member 

appeals the decision of the chair, the council shall decide the question without debate. 

5. Council Action 

5.1. Motions. At any appropriate place on the agenda, any member may make a motion for 

the council to act upon any matter if the motion is relevant to the matter under 

consideration.  

5.2. Motion required. All action requiring a vote shall be first moved by a member and 

seconded by another member. 

5.3. Consideration out of agenda order. With the consent of the council, any agenda item 

may be considered out of its listed order on the agenda at the request of a member. 

5.4. Recording names of moving members. The city clerk shall record the name of the 

member making each motion and second. 

5.5. No motions by presiding officer. The presiding officer may suggest a motion, but may 

not make a motion. A member acting as presiding officer may second a motion. 

5.6. Majority vote required for adoption. No resolution or ordinance shall be adopted 

without a concurrence of a majority of all of the members of the council by call of the 

ayes and nays that shall be recorded. Passage of a motion requires a majority vote of a 

quorum of the council. As used in this section, “all of the members” refers to all of the 

seats of the council including a vacant seat and a seat where the member is absent, but 

does not include a seat where the member declines to vote by reason of a conflict of 

interest.  

64

Item 10.



CFD 1121.TBD – City Council Meeting Procedures CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 7 of 14 

 

  
 

5.7. Preferential motions. 

a. When a question is under debate the only motions in order shall be: 

 First To adjourn. 

Second The previous question. 

Third To lay on the table. 

Fourth To postpone to a certain time. 

Fifth To adjourn to a certain day. 

Sixth To refer. 

Seventh To amend. 

 

b. Such motions shall be given precedence in the order herein arranged, the first 

three (3) to be decided without debate. 

5.8. Calling the previous question. When a member desires to cease debate and to vote 

on the pending question, the member shall request the floor and state: “I move to call the 

previous question.” If seconded, then the council shall then vote, without debate, on 

whether to call the question. If carried by a two-thirds majority of members present, all 

proposed amendments and all further motions, debates and public participation shall be 

excluded, and the original motion shall immediately be voted on. 

5.9. Debate of motions to table, amendment. A motion to lay a question on the table 

simply is not debatable, but a motion to lay on the table and publish, or with any other 

condition, is subject to amendment and debate.  

5.10. Motions postponed to a certain time. When a motion is postponed to a certain time, 

the proposed date shall be specified as part of the motion.  

5.11. Precedence of motions to refer to committee. A motion to refer to a standing 

committee shall take precedence over a similar motion for a special committee. 

5.12. Motions to amend. Amendments shall be governed by the following: 

a. A motion to amend an amendment shall be in order, but a motion to amend an 

amendment to an amendment shall not be entertained. 

b. An amendment modifying the intention of a motion shall be in order, but an 

amendment relating to a different subject shall not be in order. 

c. Motions to strike and insert. On a motion to strike out and insert, the paragraph to 

be amended shall first be read as it stands, then the words proposed to be struck 

out and those to be inserted, and finally the paragraph as it would stand if so 

amended. 

5.13. Withdrawal of a motion. After a motion or resolution is stated by the presiding officer, it 

shall be deemed to be in the possession of the council, but may be withdrawn at any 

65

Item 10.



CFD 1121.TBD – City Council Meeting Procedures CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 8 of 14 

 

  
 

time before decision by the original mover by stating “Mister/Madam Chair, I ask 

permission to withdraw the motion”.  If any amendment has been proposed or adopted, 

the main motion shall not be withdrawn without the consent of the mover of such 

amendment. (See RONR 33:11) 

5.14. Division of question containing distinct propositions. If a question in debate 

contains several distinct propositions, any member may have the same divided prior to 

the vote thereon when the sense of it requires such division.(See RONR §27) 

5.15. Separate consideration. Except as otherwise allowed by these rules, each agenda item 

shall be voted upon separately and shall be recorded by the city clerk.  

5.16. Action on Consent Calendar. Items on the Consent Calendar shall be acted upon by 

voice vote in a single motion without separate discussion, unless the presiding officer, a 

member, or the public requests that a specific item be considered separately.  

5.17. Action on Resolution Calendar. Items on the Resolution Calendar shall be acted upon 

by roll call vote in a single motion without separate discussion, unless the presiding 

officer, a member, or the public requests that a specific item be considered separately. 

5.18. Announcement of Items in the Consent and Resolution Calendars. Items in the 

consent and resolution calendars may be announced by having the full titles read, 

summarized, or by stating the number assigned to the item by the city clerk. Any item in 

the Consent Calendar or Resolution Calendar which is pulled for separate consideration 

shall have its full title read aloud by the presiding officer prior to entertaining a motion 

and a second on the measure. 

5.19. Recording of Resolution Calendar votes. The city clerk shall record the yes and no 

votes on each resolution calendar item separately as if each item had been moved and 

voted upon separately. Rule 4.10 shall not apply here. 

5.20. Action on multiple items. With the consent of a majority of the council, Rule 5.15 

notwithstanding, the council may consider for voting purposes more than one item, but in 

such event the vote upon each item will be separately recorded by the city clerk noting 

specific yes or no votes of each member on each item. 

5.21. Public hearings. Any other rule to the contrary notwithstanding, unless required by 

statute or necessary to conform to proceedings required for a special purpose, a hearing 

shall commence when declared open by the presiding officer and shall close when 

closed by the presiding officer or by other formal action of the council. 

5.22. When motions may be reconsidered; renewal of motion. A motion may be 

reconsidered at any time during the same meeting at which the motion was made, or at 

the first meeting held thereafter. A motion for reconsideration, being once made and 

decided in the negative, shall not be renewed before the next meeting.  (See RONR 

37:9) 

66

Item 10.



CFD 1121.TBD – City Council Meeting Procedures CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 9 of 14 

 

  
 

5.23. Who may move to reconsider. A motion to reconsider must be made and seconded by 

members who voted on the prevailing side, or by those who were absent and did not 

vote upon the motion to be reconsidered (See RONR 37.10) 

5.24. Reconsideration when member is absent.  Rule 5.23 notwithstanding, when less than 

seven members are in attendance at a meeting and an agenda item fails to receive a 

majority of affirmative or negative votes of those in attendance, then the agenda item 

shall, upon the request of any member in attendance at the meeting, be placed by the 

city clerk on the agenda for the next council meeting, and continued thereafter upon the 

agenda for subsequent meetings until it shall receive a majority of affirmative or negative 

votes of those in attendance. An ordinance continued under this rule shall not be 

considered to have been read or considered for its first or any subsequent passage until 

it receives four affirmative votes. 

5.25. Council Updates and announcements.  Members may use this time during a Council 

meeting to ask for updates from staff on projects or issues and to make announcements 

to the public and to council on civic matters. The presiding officer shall ensure that such 

discussion remains in compliance with the Iowa Open Meetings Law (Iowa Code 

Chapter 21); as a safeguard, no motions will be entertained at this time.  Matters 

requiring deliberation by council for final action shall instead be submitted for inclusion 

on a future regular council or committee meeting agenda to ensure transparency and 

public participation. 

5.26. When motion to adjourn is in order. A motion to adjourn the council shall be in order 

except: 

a. When a member is in possession of the floor. 

b. While the members are voting. 

c. When adjournment was the last preceding motion. 

d. When it is decided that the previous question shall be taken. 

5.27. Amendment, debate of motions to adjourn. A motion to adjourn simply cannot be 

amended, but a motion to adjourn to a given time may be and is open to debate.  (see 

RONR §21). 

6. Standing and Special Committees 

6.1. Purpose of committees.  Committees exist to allow members to consider certain topics 

in detail prior to final consideration in the regular council meeting.   

6.2. Powers of committees. Committees are only empowered to make recommendations to 

the City Council; all final actions pertaining to a referred item must be determined by the 

City Council at a regular or special meeting called for that purpose. (see RONR §50) 

6.3. Referral by council or mayor. Committees may receive referrals through an approved 

referral request as described in Part 8 of these rules, or as determined by the mayor.  

67

Item 10.



CFD 1121.TBD – City Council Meeting Procedures CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 10 of 14 

 

  
 

6.4. Standing committees. The following shall be the Council’s standing committees: 

a. Administration. 

b. Finance & Business Operations. 

c. Public Safety. 

d. Public Works. 

e. Community Development. 

f. Committee of the Whole. 

6.5. Appointment of committee members.. All standing committees shall be appointed by 

the mayor annually at the first regular meeting of the council in January of each year, or 

as soon thereafter as practicable. Special committees shall be appointed by the mayor 

unless otherwise directed by the council. The first person named on each committee 

shall be the chair. (Sec. 2-68) Absence of Committee Chair.  In the absence of the 

committee chair, the Mayor Pro-Tem may preside if such action is approved by the 

designated chair or by the mayor. 

6.6. Number of committee members. The standing committees of the council shall consist 

of all seven members. All special committees shall consist of five members each, unless 

some other number is specified.  (Sec. 2-69) 

6.7. Motion to recommend; continuance.  After any presentations and initial discussion, 

members may move to recommend a course of action to the City Council; this will 

typically be a recommendation for council approval or disapproval of a certain action or 

resolution.  Members may also move to continue the discussion in a future committee 

meeting prior to making a recommendation to the City Council. 

6.8. Procedure for committees to report. Standing and special committees of the council 

to whom referrals are made shall report the state of facts and the committee’s 

recommendation through the approved committee minutes unless another form of report 

is specified by the council.  

6.9. Acceptance of final report discharges special committees. On the acceptance of a 

final report from a special committee of the council, the committee shall be considered 

discharged without a vote, unless otherwise ordered. 

7. Ordinance Adoption 

7.1. Ordinances to be presented in writing. All ordinances shall be presented in writing 

before being considered by the council. (Sec. 2-125) 

7.2. Consideration and passage of ordinances. Ordinances must be considered and voted 

upon for passage at three separate council meetings, unless this requirement is 

suspended by a recorded vote of not less than three-fourths of all of the members of the 

council. (Sec. 2-126) 

7.3. Procedure for passage of ordinances. The following procedure shall be followed by 

68

Item 10.



CFD 1121.TBD – City Council Meeting Procedures CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 11 of 14 

 

  
 

the council in the passage of all ordinances: 

a. A motion to pass the ordinance upon its first consideration or a motion to 

suspend the rules requiring ordinances to be considered at three (3) separate 

council meetings. 

b. In the event the ordinance is passed upon its first consideration, the ordinance 

shall be given the second and third considerations either in adjourned meetings 

of the meeting of its passage on first reading, or at some following special or 

regular meetings of the council.  

c. In the event that a motion to suspend the rules has passed, a motion shall be 

made to adopt the ordinance upon its third and final consideration. 

d. Upon the passage of the third and final consideration of the ordinance, the mayor 

shall declare the ordinance duly passed and adopted.   

7.4. Contents of amendments to ordinances. An amendment to an ordinance must 

specifically repeal the ordinance, or the section, subsection, paragraph, or subpart to be 

amended, and must set forth the ordinance, section, subsection, paragraph, or subpart 

as amended.  (Sec. 2-127) 

8. Council Referrals  

8.1. Referral initiation. During the Council Referrals portion of a regular council meeting, 

any member may move to refer any topic or question to a council standing committee, 

city board or commission, or to staff for further consideration, using the process outlined 

in Rules 8.2 and 8.4. 

8.2. Council referrals presented in writing. Except for the exigent circumstances in Rule 

8.4, all council referral requests should be provided to the City Clerk in writing no later 

than 5:00 pm on the Monday prior to the next regular council meeting. The request 

should contain sufficient information to enable the council to determine if the request 

merits referral to a council standing committee, a city board or commission, or to staff for 

further consideration. 

8.3. Referral discussion. Upon a motion and second, the council may choose to discuss the 

referral in question. The presiding officer shall ensure that the deliberation is focused on 

the desirability of referral approval, rather than the merits of the proposed initiative.  

8.4. Moving an exigent referral. In some cases, a council agenda item or other discussion 

may necessitate an immediate referral to committee without the prior documentation or 

notice to the council as required by Rule 8.2. In these instances, a member may move 

an exigent referral.  

8.5. Validity of an exigent referral. The presiding officer shall determine the validity of an 

exigent referral. Referrals not deemed exigent shall be ruled out of order by the 

69

Item 10.



CFD 1121.TBD – City Council Meeting Procedures CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 12 of 14 

 

  
 

presiding officer. This determination may be overruled by a two-thirds majority vote of all 

members per Rule 1.7. 

8.6. Referrals at work sessions. In addition to the above processes, the City Council may 

directly refer topics to committee via consensus during a work session.  

8.7. Withdrawal of referrals. The requesting member may withdraw a requested referral 

from the council agenda at any time. 

9. Council Work Sessions 

9.1. Purpose of Work Sessions. From time to time the mayor or city council may direct that 

a work session be held for informal study and discussion of a topic prior to formal council 

action.  Additionally, a work session may be used to facilitate a meeting between the 

Cedar Falls City Council and other entities. 

9.2. Session Agenda. Work sessions shall be preceded by a published agenda, which shall 

include the meeting location and time, in accordance with all applicable provisions of the 

Iowa Open Meetings Law (Iowa Code Chapter 21). 

9.3. Parliamentary procedure not applicable. Unlike council meetings and committee 

meetings, council work sessions are not required to follow the regimentation of 

parliamentary procedure.   

9.4. Direction to staff by consensus. No votes shall be taken at a work session, but council 

consensus shall be gauged in order to provide direction to staff for further staff action. 

9.5. No final action during work sessions. In no case shall a work session consensus be 

construed as a final council decision for action.  Each action consented to during a work 

session shall then be placed on the agenda for a future council meeting, committee 

meeting, or work session (as appropriate) for further consideration. 

9.6. Mayor and/or facilitator responsibilities. The mayor or a trained expert shall serve as 

the work session facilitator to ensure that the council has sufficient information and 

guidance to develop a consensus (if needed) on the topic at hand.  

9.7. Public participation in work sessions. The public is encouraged to observe the 

deliberations of the council during work sessions, but public comment will not be 

solicited or allowed during these meetings. 

9.8. Recording work sessions. All work sessions shall be recorded. 

  

70

Item 10.



CFD 1121.TBD – City Council Meeting Procedures CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 13 of 14 

 

  
 

10. Public Participation  

10.1. General Considerations. 

a. Identification of the Speaker. Any person desiring to speak in Public Forum or 

public comment shall first be recognized by the presiding officer and then shall step 

to the podium, state their name, address, and group affiliation (if any) for the public 

record, and will speak clearly into the microphone. 

b. Speakers to address the presiding officer. Speakers shall be required to direct 

their comments to the presiding officer only, and not to individual members or staff. 

(See RONR 43:22).  

10.2. Public comment during public hearings and on agenda items.  

a. While an item is being considered for action at a council or committee meeting, the 

public will be granted an opportunity to comment prior to a vote by the members. 

b. Speakers shall be limited to speaking once, for up to five minutes, unless additional 

time is granted by the presiding officer or by motion and approval of a two-thirds 

majority of members. The presiding officer will advise the speaker when one minute 

remains.  

c. Total speaker input on any subject under consideration can be limited to a fixed 

period by the presiding officer. A majority vote of the council may extend the time 

limitations of this rule. (See RONR 43:16) 

d. Speaker comments must remain civil and be directed to the subject under 

consideration. The presiding officer shall rule on the relevance of speaker 

comments. Speakers making comments that could be construed to be obscene, 

integral to illegal conduct, inciting imminent lawless action, threatening or 

slanderous remarks towards another party shall be ruled out of order and barred by 

the presiding officer from further comment at the current meeting. (See RONR 

9:29) 

10.3. Speaking during public forum.  

a. Applicability. Anyone may address the presiding officer during the Public Forum 

segment of the agenda, regarding any issue not on the agenda. The topic must be 

related to City operations or business, as determined by the presiding officer. No 

formal action on the subject presented by the speaker may be taken by the council, 

other than a referral to City staff or a council committee or placement on an 

upcoming council agenda, in accordance with State law. The presiding officer may 

seek information from city staff in response to comments or questions by the public.  

b. Time limit. Speakers shall be limited to speaking once, for up to five minutes, 

unless additional time is granted by the presiding officer or by motion and approval 

71

Item 10.



CFD 1121.TBD – City Council Meeting Procedures CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA | Page 14 of 14 

 

  
 

of a two-thirds majority of members. The presiding officer will advise the speaker 

when one minute remains. 

c. Campaigning prohibited. Public Forum is not to be used as a platform to promote 

individuals running for elected office or ballot measures at any governmental level. 

Such conduct will result in the speaker being barred from further comment at the 

current meeting. Campaign materials for specific candidates, political parties or 

ballot measures at any governmental level are also prohibited from display to 

ensure good order during council meetings. 

10.4. City employees not to speak on employment matters. Employees and collective 

bargaining groups will not be recognized to speak about employment-related issues to 

avoid violating adopted policies, collective bargaining agreements and State and Federal 

law. 

10.5. Visual Aids. Any visual aids that a speaker desires to have displayed in public forum 

during public comment must be submitted to the City Clerk by 10:00 a.m. on the day of 

the Council meeting for the presiding officer’s review and approval.  

10.6. Recording. The public may use cameras or recording devices at any open council 

session. The presiding officer may make and enforce reasonable rules for the conduct of 

council meetings to assure those meetings are orderly, and free from interference or 

interruption by spectators. (See Iowa Code 21.7) 

10.7. Written Communications. On any matters before the city council, the public may 

choose to submit comments in writing (whether in letter or e-mail form). This 

communication should be directed to the City Clerk for inclusion in the council packet by 

e-mailing cityclerk@cedarfalls.com, by dropping the correspondence off at City Hall 

(attn.: City Clerk) or by mailing it to City Clerk, Cedar Falls City Hall, 220 Clay Street, 

Cedar Falls, IA 50613. Any public correspondence sent to the City Clerk regarding 

council agenda items will become a public record. Correspondence arriving before 5 pm 

on the Monday before the council meeting will be included in the council packet for 

mayor, council and public consideration. Members of the public who file written 

communications may also make verbal comments at the meeting, per Rules 10.2 and 

10.3 above. 

 

 

72

Item 10.

mailto:cityclerk@cedarfalls.com


   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Green & City Council Members 

 FROM: Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer 

 DATE: July 25, 2022 

 SUBJECT:  Updated Purchasing Manual 

 
Attached is the Accounting Policies and Procedures and Purchasing Manual.  The 
manual has been updated to incorporate the following revisions: 
 

 Updated Finance & Business Operations Organizational Chart 

 Section 11: Public improvement bidding threshold requirements as set by the 
State of Iowa have been updated 

 Section 17: Overnight and out-of-state travel requests are approved by the 
City Administrator, as well as all non-budgeted travel requests are approved 
by the City Administrator and Department Director per Personnel Policy 403. 
The addition of sample forms: Request for Travel and Statement of 
Expenses and the Employee Reimbursement. 

 Section 19: Conflict of Interest has been updated per Personnel Policy 807. 

 Section 29: City General Obligation bond rating has been updated to Aaa 
rating. 

 As well as miscellaneous formatting, job titles, and minor adjustments to 
processes have been updated in the manual. 
 

 
If you have any questions regarding the manual, please feel free to contact me.  
 
CC: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 
 

73

Item 11.



74

Item 11.



75

Item 11.



76

Item 11.



77

Item 11.



78

Item 11.



79

Item 11.



80

Item 11.



81

Item 11.



82

Item 11.



83

Item 11.



84

Item 11.



85

Item 11.



86

Item 11.



87

Item 11.



88

Item 11.



89

Item 11.



90

Item 11.



91

Item 11.



92

Item 11.



93

Item 11.



94

Item 11.



95

Item 11.



96

Item 11.



97

Item 11.



98

Item 11.



99

Item 11.



100

Item 11.



101

Item 11.



102

Item 11.



103

Item 11.



104

Item 11.



105

Item 11.



106

Item 11.



107

Item 11.



108

Item 11.



109

Item 11.



110

Item 11.



111

Item 11.



112

Item 11.



113

Item 11.



114

Item 11.



115

Item 11.



116

Item 11.



117

Item 11.



118

Item 11.



119

Item 11.



120

Item 11.



121

Item 11.



122

Item 11.



123

Item 11.



124

Item 11.



125

Item 11.



126

Item 11.



127

Item 11.



128

Item 11.



129

Item 11.



130

Item 11.



131

Item 11.



132

Item 11.



133

Item 11.



134

Item 11.



135

Item 11.



136

Item 11.



137

Item 11.



138

Item 11.



139

Item 11.



140

Item 11.



141

Item 11.



142

Item 11.



143

Item 11.



144

Item 11.



145

Item 11.



146

Item 11.



147

Item 11.



148

Item 11.



149

Item 11.



150

Item 11.



151

Item 11.



152

Item 11.



153

Item 11.



154

Item 11.



155

Item 11.



156

Item 11.



157

Item 11.



158

Item 11.



159

Item 11.



160

Item 11.



161

Item 11.



162

Item 11.



163

Item 11.



164

Item 11.



165

Item 11.



166

Item 11.



167

Item 11.



168

Item 11.



169

Item 11.



170

Item 11.



171

Item 11.



172

Item 11.



173

Item 11.



174

Item 11.



175

Item 11.



176

Item 11.



177

Item 11.



178

Item 11.



179

Item 11.



180

Item 11.



181

Item 11.



182

Item 11.



183

Item 11.



184

Item 11.



185

Item 11.



186

Item 11.



187

Item 11.



188

Item 11.



189

Item 11.



190

Item 11.



191

Item 11.



192

Item 11.



193

Item 11.



194

Item 11.



195

Item 11.



196

Item 11.



197

Item 11.



198

Item 11.



199

Item 11.



200

Item 11.



201

Item 11.



202

Item 11.



203

Item 11.



204

Item 11.



205

Item 11.



206

Item 11.



207

Item 11.



208

Item 11.



209

Item 11.



210

Item 11.



211

Item 11.



212

Item 11.



213

Item 11.



214

Item 11.



215

Item 11.



216

Item 11.



217

Item 11.



218

Item 11.



219

Item 11.



220

Item 11.



221

Item 11.



222

Item 11.



223

Item 11.



224

Item 11.



225

Item 11.



226

Item 11.



227

Item 11.



228

Item 11.



229

Item 11.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-268-5126 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 
 

  

  

 

 
 
   

 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Michelle Pezley, Planner III 

 DATE: July 20, 2022 

 SUBJECT: CARES Act Community Development Block Grant Funds (CDBG-CV3) 
Service Agency Contract- Operation Threshold Second Amendment 

 
In April 2020, the CARES Act was passed in response to COVID-19.  The Act provides 
additional funds through the Community Development Block Grant to support activities 
that prevent, prepare for, and respond to the pandemic.  On September 11, 2020, the 
City was notified that Cedar Falls would receive $157.775.00 from the Round 3 funds.  
HUD prioritized Round 3 funds for households struggling to meet their rental or 
mortgage obligations, allowing temporary assistance.   
 
On February 1, 2021, the City Council approved the contract with Operation Threshold 
for $135,000 to provide financial assistance for qualifying households for rent or 
mortgage for six months.  The remaining funds are used for administrative costs of City 
Staff and INRCOG.  January 3, 2022, City Council approved a first amendment 
extending the contract until June 30, 2022.  At that time, The Operation Threshold has 
$20,000 remaining of their allotted $135,000.  As of July 1, 2022, Operation Threshold 
had $7,600 remaining.   
 
July 7, 2022, Operation Threshold asked for a second extension.  The extension would 
allow them a chance to assist additional clients, while completing their monitoring visit 
with INRCOG and closing all the program’s administrative files.   
 
The City Attorney has reviewed the contract amendment. Staff recommends approving 
the contract amendment with Operation Threshold.   
 
Please contact staff with any questions.  Thank you.  
 
Xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development  
       Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager      

230

Item 12.



231

Item 12.



232

Item 12.



233

Item 12.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-268-5126 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  

 FROM: Michelle Pezley. Planner III 

 DATE: July 22, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Community Development Block Grant - Grant Administration and   
  Technical Services 
  Federal Fiscal Year 2022 (City FY2023) 
 
 
Cedar Falls is a recipient of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME 
funds.  In Federal Fiscal Year 2022, funding for the entitlement CDBG program is 
$259,801.  The City has contracted with INRCOG to help with administration and 
technical services related to projects eligible for CDBG and HOME funds since February 
2018.  INRCOG’s support helps the City maintain these programs, without adding staff. 
 
The City recently adopted the Federal Fiscal Year 2022 Annual Action Plan to include 
the following activities: 
 
 

Activity 
FFY22 AAP 
Proposal 

Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Owner Occupied 
Rehabilitation 

$25,000 

Maintain Existing Affordable Housing: Renter Occupied 
Rehabilitation 

$75,000 

Prevent Homelessness Through Agency and Organizational 
Support (Service Agencies – capped at 15% of annual allocation) 

$38,970 

Neighborhood Accessibility Improvements (i.e Sidewalks, 

Trail, Curb Cuts) 
$112,871 

Neighborhood Recreational Amenities (i.e Parks, 

Playgrounds, Trees) 
$20,000 

CDBG Planning and Administration 
(capped at 20% of annual allocation) 

$51,960 

FFY22 Total (including carryover/reallocation) $323,801 
 
 
 

 

234

Item 13.



INRCOG’s proposed services include CDBG general administration (preparing plans, 
reports, and monitoring service agencies), technical support for housing rehabilitation 
projects, as well as technical support for the Neighborhood Infrastructure Improvements 
(sewer lining) and the Sidewalk Replacement Project covering federal requirements for 
construction management and Davis-Bacon wages verification.  The total cost for 
services outlined in the attached contract is $55,000 
 
The City Attorney has reviewed the contract.  Staff recommends continuing services 
with INRCOG in FFY22 (City FY23).  Attached is the proposed agreement with all 
required attachments. 
 
This proposal meets Organizational Goal #3: Deliver public services in a cost effective, 
efficient, professional, and timely manner and Organizational Goal #4: Equitably 
allocate the community’s resources in a manner which cost effectively accomplishes the 
City’s mission. 
 
Please contact me with any questions.   Thank you. 
 
 
Xc:  Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development  
 Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

235

Item 13.



236

Item 13.



237

Item 13.



238

Item 13.



239

Item 13.



240

Item 13.



241

Item 13.



242

Item 13.



243

Item 13.



244

Item 13.



245

Item 13.



246

Item 13.



247

Item 13.



248

Item 13.



249

Item 13.



250

Item 13.



251

Item 13.



252

Item 13.



253

Item 13.



254

Item 13.



255

Item 13.



256

Item 13.



257

Item 13.



258

Item 13.



259

Item 13.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-268-5126 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  

 FROM: Michelle Pezley, Planner III 

 DATE: July 22, 2022 

 SUBJECT: HOME Investment Partnership Program - Technical Services 
 
 
Cedar Falls is a recipient of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME 
funds.  Through a consortium agreement with the City of Waterloo, Cedar Falls receives 
HOME Investment Partnership Program funds.  Our agreement in July 2019 provided 
that Cedar Falls would receive approximately $90,000 per year, depending on the HUD 
annual award.  While Waterloo handles the general administrative requirements for the 
HOME Program (submitting annual plans and reports), in the past Cedar Falls has 
contracted with INRCOG for technical services related to the projects HOME funding 
supports. 
 
INRCOG’s proposed services include technical support for housing rehabilitation 
projects as well as environmental review preparation and processing for projects.  The 
total cost for INRCOG’s services as outlined in the attached contract is $20,000. 
 
The City Attorney has reviewed the contract.  Staff recommends entering into an 
agreement with INRCOG for this needed support.  Attached is the proposed agreement 
with all required attachments.   
 
This proposal meets Organizational Goal #3: Deliver public services in a cost effective, 
efficient, professional, and timely manner and Organizational Goal #4: Equitably 
allocate the community’s resources in a manner which cost effectively accomplishes the 
City’s mission. 
 
Please contact me with any questions.   Thank you. 
 
 
Xc: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development  
 Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 

260

Item 14.



261

Item 14.



262

Item 14.



263

Item 14.



264

Item 14.



265

Item 14.



266

Item 14.



267

Item 14.



268

Item 14.



269

Item 14.



270

Item 14.



271

Item 14.



272

Item 14.



273

Item 14.



274

Item 14.



275

Item 14.



276

Item 14.



277

Item 14.



278

Item 14.



279

Item 14.



280

Item 14.



281

Item 14.



282

Item 14.



283

Item 14.



284

Item 14.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

   

   

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Jaydevsinh Atodaria (JD), City Planner I 

  Luke Andreasen, PE, Principal Engineer 

 DATE: July 22, 2022 

 SUBJECT: HWY-1 Site Plan for Veridian Credit Union  
 

 
REQUEST: 
 

HWY-1 Site plan approval for construction of a new Veridian Credit 
Union.(Case # SP22-007) 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Veridian Credit Union, Owner; Olsson, Inc., Engineer; Primus Companies, 
Architect 

LOCATION: 
 

1000 Brandilynn Boulevard 

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The applicant proposes to construct 3,666 
square foot financial institution, Veridian 
Credit Union, on 1000 Brandilynn 
Boulevard. The proposal includes site 
work, landscaping, private access way, 
parking area, drive-thru area, signage, 
and a new building for the Veridian Credit 
Union. The proposed layout of the 
building sits on about 1.21 acres of land 
located on south-west corner of the 
round-about at Brandilynn Boulevard and 
Prairie Parkway. This project will include 
two access points from the shared private 
drive established with Pinnacle Prairie 
Commercial South-Phase V, a replat of 
Lot 2 Final Plat.  
 
 

Location Map 

285

Item 15.



BACKGROUND 
The subject parcel (Lot 1) was created by Pinnacle Prairie Commercial South-Phase V, 
a replat of Lot 2 Final Plat to Cedar Falls, Iowa in 2021. The property is in the HWY-1, 
Highway Commercial Zoning District.  
 
This proposal is to develop the Lot 1 (see highlighted red boundary in image below), of 
the subdivision to include a new Veridian Credit Union with a drive-through. The 
subdivision “Pinnacle Prairie Commercial South-Phase V, a replat of Lot 2 Final Plat 
(see image below) is comprised of four developable lots and includes L-shaped shared 
private drive connecting to Prairie Parkway on the west and to Brandilynn Blvd. to the 
north. As of today, Lot 2 has been built out with Unity Point Express Clinic and the rest 
of the three lots are undeveloped. All infrastructure necessary for development of this 
lot, has been installed, except for the public sidewalk along Brandilynn Boulevard, which 
will be extended as a part of this project to the private drive located along the eastern 
boundary of the subdivision, which will provide bicycle and pedestrian access to the 
new bank building from Brandilynn Blvd. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Pinnacle Prairie Commercial South-Phase V, a replat of Lot 2 Final Plat Pinnacle Prairie Commercial South-Phase V, a replat of Lot 2 Final Plat 

286

Item 15.



ANALYSIS 
The proposed site plan development is in the HWY-1 Highway Commercial Zoning 
District. The HWY-1 District is intended to promote and facilitate comprehensively 
planned commercial developments located adjacent to major transportation corridors 
and interchanges. The purpose of these regulations is to encourage high standards of 
building architecture, and site planning which will foster commercial development that 
maximizes pedestrian convenience, comfort and pleasure. The ordinance requires a 
detailed site plan review before approval to ensure that the development site satisfies 
several basic aesthetic standards. Attention to details such as parking, open green 
space, landscaping, signage, building design, and other similar factors help to ensure 
orderly development in the entire area.  
 
Following is a review of the zoning ordinance requirements for the proposed 
development: 
 

1) Use: A financial institution serving traveling public or a regional customer base is a 
permitted use in the HWY-1 District. Use is allowed. 
 

2) Building Location and Access: The proposed building will be placed close to the 
south-west intersection of Prairie Parkway and Brandilynn Blvd. and the drive-thru 
lane will be located east of the building. Proposed location of building is at least 70 
feet setback from north, west and south property line.  As per code, a 20-foot 
setback consisting of landscape material shall be established around the 
perimeter of the district. This 20-foot setback should be free of any structure or 
parking areas. The proposed site plan follows the required 20 feet setback along 
the south, west, and north property line by the provision of required landscaping.  

 

The building will have two main public ingress/egress areas along the south and 
west wall of the building and will have a door on each façade to provide staff 
access. In addition, a 5-foot sidewalk will be added southward from the existing 
public sidewalk along Brandilynn Blvd. to the proposed building to provide 
pedestrian access. 
 

There will be two vehicular access points from the shared private drive: one that 
crosses Lot 4 from the east and one access drive from the south. There will be no 
direct access of the building from Brandilynn Boulevard or Prairie Parkway. 
Building setbacks and building and site access are satisfied. 
 

3) Parking: The parking requirement for the new building is 14 parking stalls (1 stall 
per 300 square feet of gross floor area). The provided site plan shows 32 parking 
stalls, which includes 2 ADA stalls. Parking is provided around the periphery of the 
building. The parking lot dimension meets the zoning standards with 9’ x 19’ stalls 
and 24’ wide aisles. The parking requirements are met.  

 

4) Open Space Requirements: This property is located within the HWY-1 Highway 
Commercial Zoning District. This zoning district requires that open 
space/landscaping requirements be provided at the rate of 10% of the total 

287

Item 15.



development site area excluding the perimeter setback area. Following is a 
summary of the landscape plan that details how this provision is met.   
 
 
 

New Development Site 43,464 SF  

Required Open/Green Space 4,346 SF 10% 
Provided Open/Green Space 8,316 SF 19% 

 
Landscaping is shown throughout the site, both around the building as well as 
within the parking lot, and along the streets within required setbacks. The open 
green space exceeds the minimum requirement and is well distributed. 

 
5) Landscaping: The HWY-1 Highway Commercial Zoning District requires minimum 

landscaping at the rate of 0.02 points per sq. ft. of total development site area. 
This can be achieved with the planting a combination of trees and shrubbery. A 
minimum of 0.75 points per linear foot of street frontage shall be planted with 
Street tree plantings. In addition, parking lot landscaping requirements must be 
met, including peripheral landscape screening and parking lot trees according to 
City Code Section 26-220(i).  
 
Peripheral landscaping requirements for parking lots include placement of 
continuous landscaped strip not less than 5 feet in width and at least three feet in 
height, and one tree for every 50 lineal feet of landscaping barrier to screen the 
parking areas from the public streets and abutting lots. And Internal landscaping 
requirement includes placement of one overstory tree for every 21 parking stalls to 
shade the internal parking areas.  

 
Overall, the total required landscaping points is 1,184 points which include 869 
site area points and 315 street frontage points. In response, the applicant 
proposes landscaping points summing to 1,320 Points (960 site points & 360 
street frontage points). Planting point details can be seen in the attached 
landscaping plan for review. 
 
Also, 3 parking lot trees and 4 peripheral landscaping trees are required as per 
calculation, in response applicant proposes 3 parking lot trees and 4 peripheral 
landscaping trees. Shrubs are shown around the periphery of the parking lot to 
meet the screening requirement. Overall, landscaping on the site is well 
distributed on all four sides of the building including parking lot screening with 
shrubs and trees, landscaping islands with trees and ground cover in remaining 
areas. Landscaping requirements are met.  

 

6) Design Review: As per HWY-1 Highway Commercial Zoning district, all structures 
established within the district shall be reviewed for architectural compatibility with 
surrounding structures. The review must also focus on building materials, exterior 
materials on all sides, coloration, roof-line, size, and location of windows and doors, 
facades, and signage. Overall, staff finds that the proposed building design 
meets the zoning standards based on the following analysis.  

 

288

Item 15.



Proportion: The relationship between the width and height of the front elevations of 

adjacent buildings shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building; the 
relationship of width to height of windows and doors of adjacent buildings shall be 
considered in the construction or alteration of a building.  

 
The scale and proportion of the proposed new building will be similar to other 
nearby establishments. It is 1-story with variable wall heights ranging from 18 
feet to 24 feet. The neighboring buildings to south and west have similar 
dimensions. Staff finds that the proposal is consistent with neighboring buildings 
and with the height allowances in the zoning district.  
 
Roof shape, pitch, and direction: The similarity or compatibility of the shape, pitch, 

and direction of roofs in the immediate area shall be considered in the construction or 
alteration of a building. 

 
The adjacent buildings utilize flat roofs with a parapet around the edge. The 
proposed new building will likewise utilize a flat roof with metal coping around the 
edge. Also, the new proposed building will include enhanced entrance features 
like adding more mass and heights than the rest of the building. The proposed 
entrance area within the building will enhance the building façade. Staff finds that 
the proposed design matches the existing roofing styles of the neighboring 
building. 
 
Pattern: Alternating solids and openings (wall to windows and doors) in the front facade 

and sides and rear of a building create a rhythm observable to viewers. This pattern of 
solids and openings shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building.  
 
The new building will be constructed of an aluminum curtain wall system on west 
and south facade, aluminum storefront windows, glass and doors on all the 
façades of the building. The building design shows a good balance of solids and 
openings throughout the building. Placements of all the openings are well 
distributed throughout the building. Overall, the building pattern meets the city’s 
standards. 
 
Materials and texture: Materials and texture. The similarity or compatibility of 
existing materials and textures on the exterior walls and roofs of buildings in the 
immediate area shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. 
A building or alteration shall be considered compatible if the materials and 
texture used are appropriate in the context of other buildings in the immediate 
area. 
 
In addition to the fenestration (windows and doors), brick masonry, stone 
masonry, aluminum composite panels, and two contrasting tones of fiber cement 
exterior cladding are the exterior materials proposed for the new building. The 
stone masonry is mostly laid out throughout the perimeter of the building in the 
lower area of the facades, while the upper area of the façade is a mix of fiber 
cement panels, brick and aluminum composite materials. All the building walls 

289

Item 15.



are topped with metal coping and the openings are equipped with aluminum 
sunshade.  In total, approximately 60% of the building will be made up of brick 
and stone masonry, 25% mixture of aluminum composite panels and fiber 
cement panels, and 15% glass. The proposed materials and texture choices 
demonstrate a high quality of design and will enhance the overall appearance of 
the building and the neighborhood. 
 
Color: The similarity or compatibility of existing colors of exterior walls and roofs 
of buildings in the area shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a 
building. 
 
The new building will primarily include a mix of grey, brown and ivory tones. The 
façade will also include two contrasting tones of metal coping that will enhance 
the architectural elements of the building.  
 
Architectural features: Architectural features, including but not limited to, 
cornices, entablatures, doors, windows, shutters, and fanlights, prevailing in the 
immediate area, shall be considered in the construction or alteration of a building. 
It is not intended that the details of existing buildings be duplicated precisely, but 
those features should be regarded as suggestive of the extent, nature, and scale 
of details that would be appropriate on new buildings or alterations. 
 
The design of the building is contemporary in nature, with a good balance 
between opening sizes and solid masses of the building. Architectural features of 
the new building include flat roof with metal coping, double-heighted entrance 
area of the building located in the south-west corner of building. The building will 
mostly utilize a flat roof except for the entrance area. The color choice also 
stands out while the materials are generally consistent with the neighbors. 

 
7) Trash Dumpster Site: The dumpster enclosure is located in the south-east corner 

of the site, behind the building. Trash enclosure is about 7 feet in height and will 
have similar exterior materials as the main building, including stone masonry in 
the lower area and brick masonry on the upper areas of the enclosure separated 
by stone band. Dumpster enclosure will have painted steel doors as openings. 
The placement of the dumpster and its design meet City standards. 
 

8) Lighting: The HWY-1 District regulations do not have 
specific lighting design guidelines. The applicant has 
proposed both wall mount lights to highlight the 
building on all four sides and pole lights at three 
different locations of the site. The lights will be LED 
luminaires with a single head that light the parking lot 
on the site. All the lights are downcast and fully 
shielded to prevent spillover light on to adjacent 
properties. A photometric plan has been attached to 
the packet for review. Lighting is acceptable.  

 

290

Item 15.



9) Signage: For the proposed new building, two wall signs are illustrated on the 
building; one facing south and another facing west. As per code, wall sign areas 
cannot exceed 20 percent of the surface area of the single wall to which it is affixed. 
No more than two wall surfaces of any single structure may be utilized for sign 
displays. Both wall sign areas meet the code requirement.  

 
In addition, the applicant is proposing a free-standing monument sign in the south-
western part of the lot. As per code, the maximum allowable square footage for all 
free-standing signs combined is 250 square feet and the allowable sign height is 40 
feet. The proposed freestanding monument sign is about 12 feet in height and 78 
square feet in area, meeting the code requirements (see image below). Proposed 
Signage is acceptable. 
 

 

10) Sidewalks: There is a 5-foot-wide PCC sidewalk proposed in the site plan which will 
extend the existing sidewalk along Brandilynn Blvd. eastward up to the private drive 
entrance. In addition, the proposal also includes adding a 5-foot-wide sidewalk 
extension southward from the sidewalk along Brandilynn Blvd. to provide a 
pedestrian access to the site.  

 
Storm Water Management: The Veridian Credit Union development will include 0.85 
impervious acres. All runoff will be collected by a private storm sewer that ties into the 
public storm sewer along Prairie Parkway and Brandilynn Boulevard. This public storm 
sewer flows to the regional detention pond approximately 1,000 feet east of the project 
site. No on-site detention will be required since the Veridian Credit Union development 
falls within the area the regional detention facility was originally designed to 
accommodate.  

291

Item 15.



TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
 
Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) has reviewed the Hwy 1 Site Plan for the proposed Veridian 
Credit Union. Water, electric, gas, and communications utility services are available in 
accordance with the service policies of CFU. Water is available from the north side of 
Brandilynn Blvd and the west side of Prairie Parkway.  Natural gas is available from the 
east side of Prairie Parkway and the south side of Brandilynn Blvd.  There is an 8” water 
service stub into the property.  If it is not used, it is required to be abandoned at the 
water main per the CFU water service policy. Cedar Falls Utilities will install and own 
the gas service.  Coordinate gas meter location and building load with CFU Gas & 
Water Department. The site plan and the landscaping plan shows paving and trees in 
the utility easements.  Any future repair or replacement of concrete or special surfaces 
of the parking, driveway, and other landscaping features due to utility work is the 
responsibility of the property owner and will be done at the property owner’s expense. 

 
Major technical comments from the City’s Technical Review Committee have been 
addressed by the applicant.  
 
A courtesy notice to surrounding property owners was mailed on July 1, 2022. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval of the submitted HWY-1 Site 
Plan for Veridian Credit Union at their regular meeting on 13th July 2022 with a vote of 7 
ayes, and 0 nays. The Community Development Department also recommends 
approval of the proposed site plan for Veridian Credit Union with the following 
stipulation: 
 

1) Any comments or direction specified by the Planning and Zoning Commission.   
2) Conform to all city staff recommendations and technical requirements. 

 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction 
& 
Vote 
7/13/2022 

Chair Leeper introduced the item and Mr. Atodaria provided background 
information. He explained that the site is located at 1000 Brandilynn Boulevard 
and it is proposed to build a 3,666 square foot Veridian Credit Union building with 
a drive thru area on 1.21 acres of land. Public sidewalk along Brandilynn Blvd. 
would be extended east to the shared private drive of the subdivision by the 
developer to provide pedestrian connectivity and access to the building. Mr. 
Atodaria discussed site lighting, landscaping, monument sign and dumpster 
enclosure and design review of the proposed site plan. He noted the applicant 
submitted a request for changes in the landscaping plan the day before the 
meeting and staff has not had a chance to review them for compliance. He spoke 
about stormwater management and how runoff will be collected. Staff 
recommends approval subject to any comments or direction by the Commission 
and conformance to all city staff recommendations and technical requirements, 
including review of the revised landscaping plan for compliance with City Code.  

 

292

Item 15.



Mr. Holst commented that if large changes have been made to the landscaping 
plan he would like to see staff bring it back to the Commission. 

 
Mr. Larson made a motion to approve the plan subject to satisfying details for 
landscaping plan. Ms. Lynch seconded the motion. The motion was approved 
unanimously with 7 ayes (Crisman, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Leeper, Lynch and 
Moser), and 0 nays. 

 

293

Item 15.



PrairiePkwyTrail

Viking Rd Trail

â
â

â

â

â
â

â

â

â

Winterber ryDr

Brandilynn Blvd
Prair ie Pkwy

E Viking Rd

M-2-PA-1

HWY-1

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission
July 13, 2022

HWY-1 Site Plan for
Veridian Credit Union (SP22-007)
1000 Brandilynn Blvd.

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St

C ente rS t

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V ikin

g Rd
W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

^

Location
Map

294

Item 15.



R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.
R

E
V

.
D

A
TE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

project no.:

approved by:
checked by:
drawn by:

drawing no.:

QA/QC by:

date:

SHEET

w
w

w
.o

ls
so

n.
co

m
TE

L 
 5

15
.3

31
.6

51
7 

S
ui

te
 1

11
D

es
 M

oi
ne

s,
 IA

 5
03

09

17
17

 In
ge

rs
ol

l A
ve

V
E

R
ID

IA
N

 C
R

E
D

IT
 U

N
IO

N
B

R
A

N
D

IL
Y

N
N

 B
LV

D

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
LL

S
, I

A
20

22

RMG
BAF
BAF
BAF

0210-05599

06.10.2022

C
O

V
E

R
 S

H
E

E
T

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

C_TTL01_A2105599

C0.0

SITE DATA

SITE CONTROL:

VERTICAL DATUM:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
(TITLE COMMITMENT DATED DECEMBER 28, 2021 BY FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY
COMMITMENT NO.: NCS-1076194-OMHA)
LOT 1, PINNACLE PRAIRIE COMMERCIAL SOUTH PHASE V, CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA.

PROJECT TEAM:

CIVIL ENGINEER:

SURVEYOR:

ARCHITECT:

COMPREHENSIVE / ZONING INFORMATION
ZONING: 

COMPREHENSIVE 

VERIDIAN CREDIT UNION
BRANDILYNN BLVD,

CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA

SITE LOCATION MAP

OWNER:

APPLICANT:

SITE PLAN
FOR

SURVEY METADATA :

Sheet List Table

295

Item 15.

MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_DEM01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_SIT01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_SIT01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_SIT01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_SIT01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_SIT01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_SIT01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_SIT01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_SIT01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_SIT01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_SIT01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_SIT01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_SIT01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_SIT01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_SIT01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_SIT01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_SIT01_A2105599-SITE
MULTICORELINK:C_GRD01_A2105599-GRD DTL
MULTICORELINK:C_GRD01_A2105599-GRD DTL
MULTICORELINK:C_GRD01_A2105599-GRD DTL
MULTICORELINK:C_GRD01_A2105599-GRD DTL
MULTICORELINK:C_GRD01_A2105599-GRD DTL
MULTICORELINK:C_GRD01_A2105599-GRD DTL
MULTICORELINK:C_GRD01_A2105599-GRD DTL
MULTICORELINK:C_GRD01_A2105599-GRD DTL
MULTICORELINK:C_GRD01_A2105599-GRD DTL
MULTICORELINK:C_GRD01_A2105599-GRD DTL
MULTICORELINK:C_GRD01_A2105599-GRD DTL
MULTICORELINK:C_GRD01_A2105599-GRD DTL
MULTICORELINK:C_GRD01_A2105599-GRD DTL
MULTICORELINK:C_GRD01_A2105599-GRD DTL
MULTICORELINK:C_GRD01_A2105599-GRD DTL
MULTICORELINK:C_GRD01_A2105599-GRD DTL
MULTICORELINK:C_GRD01_A2105599-GRD DTL
MULTICORELINK:C_GRD01_A2105599-GRD DTL
MULTICORELINK:C_GRD01_A2105599-GRD DTL
MULTICORELINK:C_GRD01_A2105599-GRD DTL
MULTICORELINK:C_GRD01_A2105599-GRD DTL
MULTICORELINK:C_GRD01_A2105599-GRD DTL
MULTICORELINK:C_GRD01_A2105599-GRD DTL
MULTICORELINK:C_GRD01_A2105599-GRD DTL
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_TURN01_A2105599-TURN
MULTICORELINK:C_ERC01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_ERC01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_ERC01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_ERC01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_ERC01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_ERC01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_ERC01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_ERC01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_ERC01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_ERC01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_ERC01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_ERC01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_ERC01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_ERC01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_ERC01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_ERC01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_ERC01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_ERC01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_ERC01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_ERC01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_ERC01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_ERC01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_ERC01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_ERC01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_ERC01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_ERC01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_ERC01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_ERC01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP DETAILS
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP DETAILS
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP DETAILS
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP DETAILS
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP DETAILS
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP DETAILS
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP DETAILS
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP DETAILS
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP DETAILS
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP DETAILS
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP DETAILS
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP DETAILS
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP DETAILS
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP DETAILS
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP DETAILS
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP DETAILS
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP DETAILS
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP DETAILS
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP DETAILS
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP DETAILS
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP DETAILS
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP DETAILS
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP DETAILS
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP DETAILS
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP DETAILS
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP DETAILS
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP DETAILS
MULTICORELINK:C_LSC01_A2105599-LSCP DETAILS


S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

STSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTST

ST

ST

ST

ST

SS

SS

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

SSSSSSSS

SS

S
S

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

D1
SW-403, 84'' X 54''
RIM = 939.98
INV IN = 927.68 S (30")
INV OUT = 924.54 E (60")
INV IN = 924.62 W (60")

S1
SW-301

RIM = 939.65
INV IN = 931.63 S (6")

INV OUT = 931.52 N (6")
INV IN = 931.63 W (4")

D2
SW-505
RIM = 937.77
INV OUT = 930.55 N (30")
INV IN = 934.25 W (18")
INV IN = 933.75 NW (18")

MARK END WITH POST
INV = 934.35

D3
NYLOPLAST, 24'' DIA.
RIM = 943.55
INV OUT = 939.10 E (18")
INV IN = 939.25 SW (18")

D4
NYLOPLAST, 24'' DIA.

RIM = 944.43
INV OUT = 939.50 NE (18")

INV IN = 940.44 S (8")

S2
SW-301
RIM = 939.29
INV OUT = 934.08 N (6")
INV IN = 934.18 W (4")

45° BEND
INV = 937.80

LOT 1

LOT 2
LOT 3

LOT 4

BRANDILYNN BLVD.

P
R

A
IR

IE
 P

K
W

Y

OWNER: TIGER LILY INVESTMENTS LLC
PID: 891330351027

OWNER: OSTER PARTNERS LP, AND

GREENHILL ESTATES INC
PID: 891330351024

OWNER: OSTER PARTNERS LP, AND
GREENHILL ESTATES INC
PID: 891330351025

OWNER: OSTER PARTNERS LP, AND
GREENHILL ESTATES INC
PID: 891330351026

PRIVATE DRIVE

P
R

IV
A

TE
 D

R
IV

E

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.
R

E
V

.
D

A
TE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

project no.:

approved by:
checked by:
drawn by:

drawing no.:

QA/QC by:

date:

SHEET

w
w

w
.o

ls
so

n.
co

m
TE

L 
 5

15
.3

31
.6

51
7 

S
ui

te
 1

11
D

es
 M

oi
ne

s,
 IA

 5
03

09

17
17

 In
ge

rs
ol

l A
ve

V
E

R
ID

IA
N

 C
R

E
D

IT
 U

N
IO

N
B

R
A

N
D

IL
Y

N
N

 B
LV

D

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
LL

S
, I

A
20

22

RMG
BAF
BAF
BAF

0210-05599

06.10.2022

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
S

 A
N

D
 D

E
M

O
LI

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

C_DEM01_A2105599

C1.0

DEMOLITION LEGEND

296

Item 15.

/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q


PROPOSED
BUILDING
3,666 SF

FFE= 945.50

BRANDILYNN BLVD.

P
R

A
IR

IE
 P

K
W

Y

PRIVATE DRIVE

P
R

IV
A

TE
 D

R
IV

E

LR R

STSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTST

ST

SS

SS

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

24
5 

L.
F.

 O
F 

6"
 P

V
C

 @
 1

.0
0%

SSSSSSSS 165 L.F. OF 4" PVC @ 2.19%

S
S

ST

ST

ST

ST

S1
SW-301

RIM = 939.65
INV IN = 931.63 S (6")

INV OUT = 931.52 N (6")
INV IN = 931.63 W (4")

MARK END WITH POST
INV = 934.35

D3
NYLOPLAST, 24'' DIA.
RIM = 943.55
INV OUT = 939.10 E (18")
INV IN = 939.25 SW (18")

D4
NYLOPLAST, 24'' DIA.

S2
SW-301
RIM = 939.29
INV OUT = 934.08 N (6")
INV IN = 934.18 W (4")

L

R

R
R

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.
R

E
V

.
D

A
TE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

project no.:

approved by:
checked by:
drawn by:

drawing no.:

QA/QC by:

date:

SHEET

w
w

w
.o

ls
so

n.
co

m
TE

L 
 5

15
.3

31
.6

51
7 

S
ui

te
 1

11
D

es
 M

oi
ne

s,
 IA

 5
03

09

17
17

 In
ge

rs
ol

l A
ve

V
E

R
ID

IA
N

 C
R

E
D

IT
 U

N
IO

N
B

R
A

N
D

IL
Y

N
N

 B
LV

D

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
LL

S
, I

A
20

22

RMG
BAF
BAF
BAF

0210-05599

06.10.2022

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

C_SIT01_A2105599

C2.0

DETAIL A
SCALE: 1"=10'

PAVING LEGEND

SITE PLAN KEYNOTES

SITE PLAN LEGEND
T
R
L

PAVING NOTES:

“
”

“
”

SITE PLAN NOTES:

297

Item 15.

/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC
MULTICORELINK:C_DTL01_A2105599-ERC


PROPOSED
BUILDING
3,666 SF

FFE= 945.50

BRANDILYNN BLVD.

P
R

A
IR

IE
 P

K
W

Y

PRIVATE DRIVE

P
R

IV
A

TE
 D

R
IV

E

STSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTST

ST

SS

SS

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

24
5 

L.
F.

 O
F 

6"
 P

V
C

 @
 1

.0
0%

SSSSSSSS 165 L.F. OF 4" PVC @ 2.19%

S
S

ST

ST

ST

ST

S1
SW-301

RIM = 939.65
INV IN = 931.63 S (6")

INV OUT = 931.52 N (6")
INV IN = 931.63 W (4")

MARK END WITH POST
INV = 934.35

D3
NYLOPLAST, 24'' DIA.
RIM = 943.55
INV OUT = 939.10 E (18")
INV IN = 939.25 SW (18")

D4
NYLOPLAST, 24'' DIA.

S2
SW-301
RIM = 939.29
INV OUT = 934.08 N (6")

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.
R

E
V

.
D

A
TE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

project no.:

approved by:
checked by:
drawn by:

drawing no.:

QA/QC by:

date:

SHEET

w
w

w
.o

ls
so

n.
co

m
TE

L 
 5

15
.3

31
.6

51
7 

S
ui

te
 1

11
D

es
 M

oi
ne

s,
 IA

 5
03

09

17
17

 In
ge

rs
ol

l A
ve

V
E

R
ID

IA
N

 C
R

E
D

IT
 U

N
IO

N
B

R
A

N
D

IL
Y

N
N

 B
LV

D

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
LL

S
, I

A
20

22

RMG
BAF
BAF
BAF

0210-05599

06.10.2022

G
R

A
D

IN
G

 P
LA

N
S

IT
E

 P
LA

N

C_GRD01_A2105599

C3.0

GRADING NOTES:

GRADING PLAN LEGEND:

298

Item 15.

/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q


LOT 1

V
A

LL
E

Y

V
A

LL
E

Y

V
A

LL
E

Y

V
A

LL
E

Y

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.
R

E
V

.
D

A
TE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

project no.:

approved by:
checked by:
drawn by:

drawing no.:

QA/QC by:

date:

SHEET

w
w

w
.o

ls
so

n.
co

m
TE

L 
 5

15
.3

31
.6

51
7 

S
ui

te
 1

11
D

es
 M

oi
ne

s,
 IA

 5
03

09

17
17

 In
ge

rs
ol

l A
ve

V
E

R
ID

IA
N

 C
R

E
D

IT
 U

N
IO

N
B

R
A

N
D

IL
Y

N
N

 B
LV

D

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
LL

S
, I

A
20

22

RMG
BAF
BAF
BAF

0210-05599

06.10.2022

G
R

A
D

IN
G

 D
E

TA
IL

S
S

IT
E

 P
LA

N

C_GRD01_A2105599

C3.1

GRADING PLAN LEGEND:

GRADING DETAIL B

GRADING DETAIL C

GRADING DETAIL A

299

Item 15.



P
A

R
C

E
L "L"

FILE
 # 2022-00013090

(P
A

R
C

E
L N

O
T ID

E
N

TIFIE
D

O
N

 A
S

S
E

S
S

O
R

 W
E

B
 S

ITE
)

STSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTST

ST

SS

SS

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

24
5 

L.
F.

 O
F 

6"
 P

V
C

 @
 1

.0
0%

SSSSSSSS 165 L.F. OF 4" PVC @ 2.19%

S
S

ST

ST

ST

ST

S1
SW-301

RIM = 939.65
INV IN = 931.63 S (6")

INV OUT = 931.52 N (6")
INV IN = 931.63 W (4")

MARK END WITH POST
INV = 934.35

D3
NYLOPLAST, 24'' DIA.
RIM = 943.55
INV OUT = 939.10 E (18")
INV IN = 939.25 SW (18")

D4
NYLOPLAST, 24'' DIA.

S2
SW-301
RIM = 939.29
INV OUT = 934.08 N (6")

PROPOSED
BUILDING
3,666 SF

FFE= 945.50

BRANDILYNN BLVD.

P
R

A
IR

IE
 P

K
W

Y

PRIVATE DRIVE

P
R

IV
A

TE
 D

R
IV

E

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.
R

E
V

.
D

A
TE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

project no.:

approved by:
checked by:
drawn by:

drawing no.:

QA/QC by:

date:

SHEET

w
w

w
.o

ls
so

n.
co

m
TE

L 
 5

15
.3

31
.6

51
7 

S
ui

te
 1

11
D

es
 M

oi
ne

s,
 IA

 5
03

09

17
17

 In
ge

rs
ol

l A
ve

V
E

R
ID

IA
N

 C
R

E
D

IT
 U

N
IO

N
B

R
A

N
D

IL
Y

N
N

 B
LV

D

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
LL

S
, I

A
20

22

RMG
BAF
BAF
BAF

0210-05599

06.10.2022

U
TI

LI
TY

 P
LA

N
S

IT
E

 P
LA

N

C_UTL01_A2105599

C4.0

UTILITY PLAN LEGEND:

SANITARY SEWER KEYNOTES

WATER KEYNOTES

ELECTRICAL KEYNOTES

SANITARY SEWER PLAN NOTES

 

’ 
’ 

DRY UTILITY PLAN NOTES

NATURAL GAS KEYNOTES

STORM SEWER KEYNOTES

300

Item 15.

/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q


LOT 1

LOT 4

PROPOSED
BUILDING
3,666 SF

FFE= 945.50

BRANDILYNN BLVD.

P
R

A
IR

IE
 P

K
W

Y

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

STSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTST

ST

SS

SS

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

24
5 

L.
F.

 O
F 

6"
 P

V
C

 @
 1

.0
0%

SSSSSSSS 165 L.F. OF 4" PVC @ 2.19%

S
S

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

D1
SW-403, 84'' X 54''
RIM = 939.98
INV IN = 927.68 S (30")
INV OUT = 924.54 E (60")
INV IN = 924.62 W (60")

S1
SW-301

RIM = 939.65
INV IN = 931.63 S (6")

INV OUT = 931.52 N (6")
INV IN = 931.63 W (4")

INV OUT = 930.55 N (30")
INV IN = 934.25 W (18")
INV IN = 933.75 NW (18")

MARK END WITH POST
INV = 934.35

D3
NYLOPLAST, 24'' DIA.
RIM = 943.55
INV OUT = 939.10 E (18")
INV IN = 939.25 SW (18")

D4
NYLOPLAST, 24'' DIA.

S2
SW-301
RIM = 939.29
INV OUT = 934.08 N (6")

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.
R

E
V

.
D

A
TE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

project no.:

approved by:
checked by:
drawn by:

drawing no.:

QA/QC by:

date:

SHEET

w
w

w
.o

ls
so

n.
co

m
TE

L 
 5

15
.3

31
.6

51
7 

S
ui

te
 1

11
D

es
 M

oi
ne

s,
 IA

 5
03

09

17
17

 In
ge

rs
ol

l A
ve

V
E

R
ID

IA
N

 C
R

E
D

IT
 U

N
IO

N

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
LL

S
, I

A
20

22

RMG

0210-05599

E
R

O
S

IO
N

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

P
LA

N
S

IT
E

 P
LA

N

C_ERC01_A2105599
4.20.2022

C5.0

“ ”

EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL NOTES

CONSTRUCTION AND EROSION CONTROL SCHEDULE 

PLAN
SECTION

CONCRETE WASHOUT

EROSION CONTROL PLAN LEGEND:LEGEND

301

Item 15.

/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q


P
A

R
C

E
L "L"

FILE
 # 2022-00013090

(P
A

R
C

E
L N

O
T ID

E
N

TIFIE
D

O
N

 A
S

S
E

S
S

O
R

 W
E

B
 S

ITE
)

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

STSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTST

ST

SS

SS

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

24
5 

L.
F.

 O
F 

6"
 P

V
C

 @
 1

.0
0%

SSSSSSSS 165 L.F. OF 4" PVC @ 2.19%

S
S

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

D1
SW-403, 84'' X 54''
RIM = 939.98
INV IN = 927.68 S (30")
INV OUT = 924.54 E (60")
INV IN = 924.62 W (60")

S1
SW-301

RIM = 939.65
INV IN = 931.63 S (6")

INV OUT = 931.52 N (6")
INV IN = 931.63 W (4")

D2
SW-505
RIM = 937.77
INV OUT = 930.55 N (30")
INV IN = 934.25 W (18")
INV IN = 933.75 NW (18")

MARK END WITH POST
INV = 934.35

D3
NYLOPLAST, 24'' DIA.
RIM = 943.55
INV OUT = 939.10 E (18")
INV IN = 939.25 SW (18")

D4
NYLOPLAST, 24'' DIA.

S2
SW-301
RIM = 939.29
INV OUT = 934.08 N (6")
INV IN = 934.18 W (4")

PROPOSED
BUILDING
3,666 SF

FFE= 945.50

BRANDILYNN BLVD.

P
R

A
IR

IE
 P

K
W

Y

PRIVATE DRIVE

P
R

IV
A

TE
 D

R
IV

E

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.
R

E
V

.
D

A
TE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

project no.:

approved by:
checked by:
drawn by:

drawing no.:

QA/QC by:

date:

SHEET

w
w

w
.o

ls
so

n.
co

m
TE

L 
 5

15
.3

31
.6

51
7 

S
ui

te
 1

11
D

es
 M

oi
ne

s,
 IA

 5
03

09

17
17

 In
ge

rs
ol

l A
ve

V
E

R
ID

IA
N

 C
R

E
D

IT
 U

N
IO

N
B

R
A

N
D

IL
Y

N
N

 B
LV

D

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
LL

S
, I

A
20

22

RMG
BAF
BAF
BAF

0210-05599

06.10.2022

V
E

H
IC

LE
 A

C
C

E
S

S
 P

LA
N

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

C_TURN01_A2105599

C5.0

VEHICLE PROFILE
NOT TO SCALE

PAVING LEGEND

302

Item 15.

/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q


R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.
R

E
V

.
D

A
TE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

project no.:

approved by:
checked by:
drawn by:

drawing no.:

QA/QC by:

date:

SHEET

w
w

w
.o

ls
so

n.
co

m
TE

L 
 5

15
.3

31
.6

51
7 

S
ui

te
 1

11
D

es
 M

oi
ne

s,
 IA

 5
03

09

17
17

 In
ge

rs
ol

l A
ve

V
E

R
ID

IA
N

 C
R

E
D

IT
 U

N
IO

N

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
LL

S
, I

A
20

22

RMG

0210-05599

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
E

TA
IL

S
S

IT
E

 P
LA

N

C_DTL01_A2105599
4.20.2022

C6.0

N.T.S.
ADA PARKING DETAIL

N.T.S.
ADA PARKING SIGN DETAIL

N.T.S.
BOLLARD DETAIL

N.T.S.
ADA PAVEMENT MARKING DETAIL

N.T.S.
PCC DRIVE AISLE PAVEMENT DETAIL

N.T.S.
HEAVY PCC PAVEMENT DETAIL

N.T.S.
SIDEWALK PAVEMENT DETAIL

N.T.S.
CONCRETE JOINT DETAILS

N.T.S.
PCC PARKING STALL PAVEMENT DETAILN.T.S.

IN-LINE ADA RAMP

N.T.S.
6" SQUARED CURB DETAIL

N.T.S.
STANDARD PCC CURB

N.T.S.
6" INTEGRAL CURB DETAIL

N.T.S.
SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUT

303

Item 15.



P
A

R
C

E
L "L"

FILE
 # 2022-00013090

(P
A

R
C

E
L N

O
T ID

E
N

TIFIE
D

O
N

 A
S

S
E

S
S

O
R

 W
E

B
 S

ITE
)

PROPOSED
BUILDING
3,666 SF

FFE= 945.50

BRANDILYNN BLVD.

P
R

A
IR

IE
 P

K
W

Y

PRIVATE DRIVE

P
R

IV
A

TE
 D

R
IV

E

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

S
T

STSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTSTST

ST

SS

SS

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

24
5 

L.
F.

 O
F 

6"
 P

V
C

 @
 1

.0
0%

SSSSSSSS 165 L.F. OF 4" PVC @ 2.19%

S
S

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

D1
SW-403, 84'' X 54''
RIM = 939.98
INV IN = 927.68 S (30")
INV OUT = 924.54 E (60")
INV IN = 924.62 W (60")

S1
SW-301

RIM = 939.65
INV IN = 931.63 S (6")

INV OUT = 931.52 N (6")
INV IN = 931.63 W (4")

INV OUT = 930.55 N (30")
INV IN = 934.25 W (18")
INV IN = 933.75 NW (18")

MARK END WITH POST
INV = 934.35

D3
NYLOPLAST, 24'' DIA.
RIM = 943.55
INV OUT = 939.10 E (18")
INV IN = 939.25 SW (18")

D4
NYLOPLAST, 24'' DIA.

S2
SW-301
RIM = 939.29
INV OUT = 934.08 N (6")

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.
R

E
V

.
D

A
TE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

project no.:

approved by:
checked by:
drawn by:

drawing no.:

QA/QC by:

date:

SHEET

w
w

w
.o

ls
so

n.
co

m
TE

L 
 5

15
.3

31
.6

51
7 

S
ui

te
 1

11
D

es
 M

oi
ne

s,
 IA

 5
03

09

17
17

 In
ge

rs
ol

l A
ve

V
E

R
ID

IA
N

 C
R

E
D

IT
 U

N
IO

N
B

R
A

N
D

IL
Y

N
N

 B
LV

D

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
LL

S
, I

A
20

22

RMG
BAF
BAF
BAF

0210-05599

06.10.2022

E
R

O
S

IO
N

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

P
LA

N
S

IT
E

 P
LA

N

C_ERC01_A2105599

C6.0

“ ”

EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL NOTES

CONSTRUCTION AND EROSION CONTROL SCHEDULE 

PLAN
SECTION

CONCRETE WASHOUT

EROSION CONTROL PLAN LEGEND:LEGEND

304

Item 15.

/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q


R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.
R

E
V

.
D

A
TE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

project no.:

approved by:
checked by:
drawn by:

drawing no.:

QA/QC by:

date:

SHEET

w
w

w
.o

ls
so

n.
co

m
TE

L 
 5

15
.3

31
.6

51
7 

S
ui

te
 1

11
D

es
 M

oi
ne

s,
 IA

 5
03

09

17
17

 In
ge

rs
ol

l A
ve

V
E

R
ID

IA
N

 C
R

E
D

IT
 U

N
IO

N
B

R
A

N
D

IL
Y

N
N

 B
LV

D

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
LL

S
, I

A
20

22

RMG
BAF
BAF
BAF

0210-05599

06.10.2022

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 D
E

TA
IL

S
S

IT
E

 P
LA

N

C_DTL01_A2105599

C7.0

N.T.S.
ADA PARKING DETAIL

N.T.S.
ADA PARKING SIGN DETAIL

N.T.S.
BOLLARD DETAIL

N.T.S.
ADA PAVEMENT MARKING DETAIL

N.T.S.
PCC DRIVE AISLE PAVEMENT DETAIL

N.T.S.
HEAVY PCC PAVEMENT DETAIL

N.T.S.
SIDEWALK PAVEMENT DETAIL

N.T.S.
CONCRETE JOINT DETAILS

N.T.S.
PCC PARKING STALL PAVEMENT DETAILN.T.S.

IN-LINE ADA RAMP

N.T.S.
6" SQUARED CURB DETAIL

N.T.S.
STANDARD PCC CURB

305

Item 15.



LOT 1

LOT 2 LOT 3

LOT 4

P
A

R
C

E
L "L"

FILE
 # 2022-00013090

(P
A

R
C

E
L N

O
T ID

E
N

TIFIE
D

O
N

 A
S

S
E

S
S

O
R

 W
E

B
 S

ITE
)

BRANDILYNN BLVD.

P
R

A
IR

IE
 P

K
W

Y

PINNACLE PRAIRIE COMMERCIAL SOUTH - P
HASE V

A REPLAT OF LOT 2, PINNACLE PRAIRIE COMMERCIAL SOUTH - P
HASE II

FILE # 2022-00001572

OWNER: TIGER LILY INVESTMENTS LLC

PID: 891330351027

OWNER: O
STER PARTNERS LP, AND

GREENHILL ESTATES INC

PID: 891330351024

OWNER: O
STER PARTNERS LP, AND

GREENHILL ESTATES INC

PID: 891330351025

OWNER: O
STER PARTNERS LP, AND

GREENHILL ESTATES INC

PID: 891330351026

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.
R

E
V

.
D

A
TE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

project no.:

approved by:
checked by:
drawn by:

drawing no.:

QA/QC by:

date:

SHEET

w
w

w
.o

ls
so

n.
co

m
TE

L 
 5

15
.3

31
.6

51
7 

S
ui

te
 1

11
D

es
 M

oi
ne

s,
 IA

 5
03

09

17
17

 In
ge

rs
ol

l A
ve

V
E

R
ID

IA
N

 C
R

E
D

IT
 U

N
IO

N

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
LL

S
, I

A
20

22

RMG

0210-05599

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 L

IN
E

 E
X

H
IB

IT

C_PBASE01_02105599
04.20.2022

EX1
306

Item 15.

/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q


PROPOSED
BUILDING
3,666 SF

FFE= 945.50

BRANDILYNN BLVD.

P
R

A
IR

IE
 P

K
W

Y

PRIVATE DRIVE

IR
3

CK
5

JO
7IV

1

1
CR

LB
8

3
JO

1
AB

5
CK

LB
6

CK
5

1
IV

IR
3

4
CK

TG
1

4
SM

5
CK

3
IR

1
IV

AB
1

2
SM

1
CR

3
TW

1
IV

3
IR

3
SM

3
JO

4
CK

5
JO

JO
7

3
SM

1
IV

3
IR

5
CK

3
CK

3
CK

1
JO

3
CK

3
SM

GD
1

1
TG

3
CK

3
JO

JO
3

3
SM

1
SM

3
CK

4
CK

GD
1

LB
4

3
TW

1
CR

1
CR

1
CR

SDSDSDSDSDSDSD

SS

SS

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

24
5 

L.
F.

 O
F 

6"
 P

V
C

 @
 1

.0
0%

SSSSSSSS 165 L.F. OF 4" PVC @ 2.19%

S
S

SD

S1
SW-301

RIM = 939.65
INV IN = 931.63 S (6")

INV OUT = 931.52 N (6")
INV IN = 931.63 W (4")

MARK END WITH POST
INV = 934.35

D3
NYLOPLAST, 24'' DIA.
RIM = 943.55
INV OUT = 939.10 E (18")
INV IN = 939.25 SW (18")

D4
NYLOPLAST, 24'' DIA.

S2
SW-301
RIM = 939.29
INV OUT = 934.08 N (6")
INV IN = 934.18 W (4")

EVERGREEN TREES CODE QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE OPEN SPACE POINTS STREET TREE POINTS

ORNAMENTAL TREES CODE QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE

MP 5 CERCIS CANADENSIS `ROYAL WHITE`
ROYAL WHITE EASTERN REDBUD

1.5" CAL 150

SHADE TREES CODE QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE

AB 2
ACER SACCHARUM 'BAILSTA' TM
FALL FIESTA SUGAR MAPLE

2.5" CAL 80 80

GD 2
GYMNOCLADUS DIOICA 'ESPRESSO'
KENTUCKY COFFEETREE 2.5" CAL 160

TG 2
TILIA CORDATA 'GREENSPIRE'
GREENSPIRE LITTLELEAF LINDEN 2.5" CAL 80 80

SHRUBS CODE QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE

CK 52 CALAMAGROSTIS X ACUTIFLORA 'KARL FOERSTER'
KARL FOERSTER FEATHER REED GRASS 2 GAL 150

IV 5 ILEX VERTICILLATA 'JIM DANDY'
JIM DANDY WINTERBERRY 5 GAL 20

IR 15 ILEX VERTICILLATA 'RED SPRITE'
RED SPRITE WINTERBERRY 5 GAL 60

JO 32 JUNIPERUS VIRGINIANA 'GREY OWL'
GREY OWL EASTERN REDCEDAR 5 GAL 50

LB 17
LEUCANTHEMUM X SUPERBUM 'BECKY'
BECKY SHASTA DAISY 2 GAL 90

SM 19 SYRINGA MEYERI 'PALIBIN'
DWARF KOREAN LILAC

5 GAL 90

TW 3 TAXUS X MEDIA 'WARDII'
WARD ANGLO-JAPANESE YEW

5 GAL 30

GROUND COVERS CODE QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE

TD2 12,168 SF TURF SEED DROUGHT TOLERANT DWARF FESCUE BLEND SEED

4,620 SF DOUBLE GROUND HARDWOOD MULCH

2 EXISTING STREET TREES 4" CAL 200

TOTAL 960 360

PLANT SCHEDULE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.
R

E
V

.
D

A
TE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

project no.:

approved by:
checked by:
drawn by:

drawing no.:

QA/QC by:

date:

SHEET

w
w

w
.o

ls
so

n.
co

m
TE

L 
 5

15
.3

31
.6

51
7 

S
ui

te
 1

11
D

es
 M

oi
ne

s,
 IA

 5
03

09

17
17

 In
ge

rs
ol

l A
ve

V
E

R
ID

IA
N

 C
R

E
D

IT
 U

N
IO

N
B

R
A

N
D

IL
Y

N
N

 B
LV

D

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
LL

S
, I

A
20

22

RMG
BAF
BAF
BAF

0210-05599

06.10.2022

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 P
LA

N
S

IT
E

 P
LA

N

C_LSC01_A2105599

L1.0
307

Item 15.

/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q
/cgi/c?32112206&target=q


R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

N
O

.
R

E
V

.
D

A
TE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

project no.:

approved by:
checked by:
drawn by:

drawing no.:

QA/QC by:

date:

SHEET

w
w

w
.o

ls
so

n.
co

m
TE

L 
 5

15
.3

31
.6

51
7 

S
ui

te
 1

11
D

es
 M

oi
ne

s,
 IA

 5
03

09

17
17

 In
ge

rs
ol

l A
ve

V
E

R
ID

IA
N

 C
R

E
D

IT
 U

N
IO

N
B

R
A

N
D

IL
Y

N
N

 B
LV

D

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
LL

S
, I

A
20

22

RMG
BAF
BAF
BAF

0210-05599

06.10.2022

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 D
E

TA
IL

S
S

IT
E

 P
LA

N

C_LSC01_A2105599

L1.1

Shrub Planting Detail

Evergreen Tree Planting Detail Deciduous Tree Planting Detail1 2

3 V-Trench Edging Detail4

308

Item 15.



309

Item 15.



310

Item 15.



311

Item 15.



312

Item 15.



313

Item 15.



314

Item 15.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  
 
 FROM: Brett Armstrong, Civil Engineer I 
 
 DATE: August 1, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: 2022 University Avenue Bio Cells Project 
  City Project Number: ST-115-3147 
  Contract Documents 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Form of Contract; the Performance, 
Payment, and Maintenance Bonds; Certificates of Insurance; and Form of Proposal with 
Benton Sand & Gravel, Inc. for the construction of the 2022 University Avenue Bio Cells 
Project. 
 
This project consists furnishing and installing four bio-retention cells located along the 
University Avenue corridor, which will include placement of 6 inch diameter storm sewer 
sub-drains, placement of four (4) modified storm sewer intakes, sub-drain clean outs, 
curb and gutter replacement, engineered soil placement, and a variety of native 
plantings.   
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving and 
executing the contract with Benton Sand & Gravel, Inc. for the construction of the 2022 
University Avenue Bio Cells Project. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
  
  

 
 
 

315

Item 16.



316

Item 16.



317

Item 16.



318

Item 16.



319

Item 16.



320

Item 16.



321

Item 16.



322

Item 16.



323

Item 16.



324

Item 16.



325

Item 16.



326

Item 16.



327

Item 16.



328

Item 16.



329

Item 16.



330

Item 16.



331

Item 16.



332

Item 16.



333

Item 16.



334

Item 16.



335

Item 16.



336

Item 16.



337

Item 16.



338

Item 16.



339

Item 16.



340

Item 16.



341

Item 16.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: July 22, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: 2022 Seal Coat Project 
  City Project Number: SC-000-3273 
  Contract Documents 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Form of Contract; the Performance, 
Payment, and Maintenance Bonds; Certificates of Insurance; and Form of Proposal with 
Blacktop Service Company for the construction of the 2022 Seal Coat Project.  
 
This project involves seal coating 16 street sections, multiple single lane drives within 3 
cemeteries and 1 parking lot, covering 51,040 S.Y. Work shall include proper surface 
preparation and proper placement and compaction of the surface.    
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving and 
executing the contract with Blacktop Service Company for the construction of the 2022 
Seal Coat Project.  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
  
  

 
 
 

342

Item 17.



343

Item 17.



344

Item 17.



345

Item 17.



346

Item 17.



347

Item 17.



348

Item 17.



349

Item 17.



350

Item 17.



351

Item 17.



352

Item 17.



353

Item 17.



354

Item 17.



355

Item 17.



356

Item 17.



357

Item 17.



358

Item 17.



359

Item 17.



360

Item 17.



361

Item 17.



362

Item 17.



363

Item 17.



364

Item 17.



365

Item 17.



366

Item 17.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: July 22, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Olive Street Box Culvert Replacement Project 
  City Project Number: BR-106-3215 
  Bid Opening 
   

On Friday, July 22, 2022 at 2:00 p.m. bids were received and opened for the Olive 
Street Box Culvert Replacement Project. One (1) bid was received, with Peterson 
Contractors, Inc. the only bidder: 
 

 Base Bid 

Engineering Estimate $2,205,932.61 

Peterson Contractors, Inc. $2,699,537.74 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $2,205,932.61. Peterson Contractors, Inc. 
of Reinbeck, Iowa submitted the low bid in the amount of $2,699,537.74. Attached is the 
bid tabulation for your reference. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends acceptance of 
the one bid from Peterson Contractors, Inc. in the amount of $2,699,537.74. On August 
15, 2022, the Contract, Bonds, and Insurance Certificate will be submitted for City 
Council approval. 
 
Xc: Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer   
 
 

367

Item 18.



Line Item Item Code Item Description UofM Quantity Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension

1 2010 CLEARING AND GRUBBING UNITS 170 60.00$            10,200.00$        125.00$          21,250.00$        

2 DOT 2104 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, CHANNEL CY 171.4 25.00$            4,285.00$           32.50$            5,570.50$           

3 2010 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, ROADWAY CY 195 18.50$            3,607.50$           35.00$            6,825.00$           

4 2010 EXCAVATION, CLASS 20 CY 2494.1 35.00$            87,293.50$        0.01$               24.94$                

5 2010 REMOVALS, STRUCTURAL BASES EACH 3 2,000.00$       6,000.00$           1,500.00$       4,500.00$           

6 2010 SUBBASE, GRANULAR SY 520 25.00$            13,000.00$        17.50$            9,100.00$           

7 DOT 2115 SUBBASE, MODIFIED CY 37.8 23.00$            869.40$              90.00$            3,402.00$           

8 2010 SUBBGRADE PREPARATION, 12 IN. SY 520 2.50$               1,300.00$           2.50$               1,300.00$           

9 2010 SUBGRADE TREATMENT, GEOGRID SY 100 8.00$               800.00$              2.50$               250.00$              

10 2010 TOPSOIL, ONSITE CY 150 14.00$            2,100.00$           25.00$            3,750.00$           

11 2010 TOPSOIL, OFFSITE CY 50 26.00$            1,300.00$           42.50$            2,125.00$           

12 DOT 2107 SPECIAL BACKFILL CY 1182.1 35.00$            41,373.50$        70.00$            82,747.00$        

13 DOT 2210 MACADAM STONE BASE TON 515 25.00$            12,875.00$        42.50$            21,887.50$        

14 DOT 2401 REMOVAL OF EXISTING STRUCTURES LS 1 10,000.00$    10,000.00$        90,000.00$    90,000.00$        

15 DOT 2402 EXCAVATION, CLASS 20 CY 2494.1 25.00$            62,352.50$        30.00$            74,823.00$        

16 DOT 2402 EXCAVATION, CLASS 23, BOULDERS, CONCRETE RIP RAP, GABION CY 50 35.00$            1,750.00$           30.00$            1,500.00$           

17 DOT 2402 SPECIAL BACKFILLFOR BLANKET AND SUBDRAIN TON 625.9 32.00$            20,028.80$        35.00$            21,906.50$        

18 DOT 2402 COMPACTION WITH MOISTURE CONTROL (STRUCTURES) CY 1182.1 6.00$               7,092.60$           7.50$               8,865.75$           

19 DOT 2403 STRUCTURAL CONCRETE (MISCELLANEOUS) CY 42.5 1,500.00$       63,750.00$        1,275.00$       54,187.50$        

20 DOT 2403 STRUCTURAL CONCRETE (RCB CULVERT) CY 60.7 600.00$          36,420.00$        1,400.00$       84,980.00$        

21 DOT 2404 REINFORCING STEEL LB 15079 1.50$               22,618.50$        2.15$               32,419.85$        

22 DOT 2414 STRUCTURAL STEEL PEDESTRIAN HAND RAILING LF 88 260.00$          22,880.00$        600.00$          52,800.00$        

23 DOT 2415 PRECAST CONCRETE BOX CULVERT, TWIN 14 FT X 6 FT LF 228 2,800.00$       638,400.00$      3,700.00$       843,600.00$      

24 DOT 2415 PRECAST CONCRETE BOX CULVERT, STRAIGHT END SECTION, TWIN 14 FT X 6 FT EACH 1 30,000.00$    30,000.00$        34,500.00$    34,500.00$        

25 DOT 2415 SPECIAL PRECAST CONCRETE BOX CULVERT, STRAIGHT END SECTION, 14FT. X 6FT. EACH 1 12,000.00$    12,000.00$        38,500.00$    38,500.00$        

26 DOT 2506 FLOWABLE MORTAR CY 429.2 200.00$          85,840.00$        178.00$          76,397.60$        

27 DOT 2507 ENGINEERING FABRIC SY 416 3.50$               1,456.00$           2.50$               1,040.00$           

28 DOT 2518 SAFETY CLOSURE EACH 4 200.00$          800.00$              100.00$          400.00$              

29 DOT 2518 SAFETY FENCING LF 800 8.00$               6,400.00$           23.50$            18,800.00$        

30 DOT 2523 ELECTRICAL CIRCUITS LF 320 20.00$            6,400.00$           13.00$            4,160.00$           

31 DOT 2523 LIGHT POLE REMOVAL EACH 1 700.00$          700.00$              650.00$          650.00$              

32 DOT 2523 TYPE 1 LIGHTING POLES EACH 6 6,000.00$       36,000.00$        8,500.00$       51,000.00$        

33 DOT 2524 REMOVAL OF TYPE A SIGN ASSEMBLY EACH 2 50.00$            100.00$              200.00$          400.00$              

34 DOT 2524 TYPE A SIGNS, REMOVAL AND REINSTALL EACH 5 500.00$          2,500.00$           300.00$          1,500.00$           

35 11020 MOBILIZATION LS 1 140,000.00$  140,000.00$      263,500.00$  263,500.00$      

36 DOT 2602 OPEN-THROAT CURB INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER EACH 4 10.00$            40.00$                150.00$          600.00$              

37 DOT 2602 MAINTENANCE OF OPEN-THROAT CURB INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER EACH 4 20.00$            80.00$                20.00$            80.00$                

38 DOT 2602 REMOVAL OF OPEN-THROAT CURB INTAKE SEDIMENT FILTER EACH 4 20.00$            80.00$                20.00$            80.00$                

39 DOT 2602 TEMPORARY INTAKE OR MANHOLE COVER ASSEMBLY EACH 1 20.00$            20.00$                350.00$          350.00$              

40 DOT 2602 MAINTENANCE OF TEMPORARY INTAKE OR MANHOLE COVER ASSEMBLY EACH 1 20.00$            20.00$                40.00$            40.00$                

41 DOT 2602 REMOVAL OF TEMPORARY INTAKE OR MANHOLE COVER ASSEMBLY EACH 1 20.00$            20.00$                40.00$            40.00$                

42 DOT 2602 PERIMETER AND SLOPE SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE, 12 IN. LF 250 20.00$            5,000.00$           2.25$               562.50$              

43 DOT 2602 PERIMETER AND SLOPE SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE, 9 IN. LF 250 1.75$               437.50$              3.00$               750.00$              

44 DOT 2602 REMOVAL OF PERIMETER AND SLOPE SEDIMENT CONTROL DEVICE LF 500 0.60$               300.00$              0.75$               375.00$              

45 DOT 2602 ROLLED EROSION CONTROL PRODUCT, TYPE II SQ 62 12.00$            744.00$              15.00$            930.00$              

46 3010 REPLACEMENT OF UNSUITABLE BACKFILL MATERIAL CY 50 57.00$            2,850.00$           50.00$            2,500.00$           

47 4020 REMOVAL OF SANITARY SEWER, LESS THAN 36 IN. LF 50 12.00$            600.00$              40.00$            2,000.00$           

48 4020 SANITARY ABANDONMENT, PLUG AND FILL, LESS THAN 36 IN. LF 246 20.00$            4,920.00$           25.00$            6,150.00$           

49 4020 REMOVAL OF STORM SEWER, LESS THAN 36 IN. LF 99 12.00$            1,188.00$           40.00$            3,960.00$           

50 4020 SANITARY SEWER, TRENCHED, TRUSS, 8 IN. LF 10 85.00$            850.00$              230.00$          2,300.00$           

51 4020 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 15 IN. LF 58 75.00$            4,350.00$           110.00$          6,380.00$           

52 4020 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, RCP, CLASS III, 18 IN. LF 76 80.00$            6,080.00$           115.00$          8,740.00$           

53 4020 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, HDPE, 6 IN. LF 34 16.00$            544.00$              75.00$            2,550.00$           

54 4040 SUBDRAIN OUTLETS AND CONNECTIONS, EXISTING SUBDRAIN, 6 IN. EACH 4 350.00$          1,400.00$           650.00$          2,600.00$           

55 4040 SUBDRAIN OUTLETS AND CONNECTIONS, PER PLAN, 6 IN. EACH 6 200.00$          1,200.00$           650.00$          3,900.00$           

56 4040 SUBDRAIN, TYPE S, 6 IN. LF 1217 16.00$            19,472.00$        16.00$            19,472.00$        

57 5010 FITTINGS BY COUNT, DUCTILE IRON, 8 IN TO 4 IN, REDUCER EACH 2 600.00$          1,200.00$           1,000.00$       2,000.00$           

58 5010 FITTINGS BY COUNT, DUCTILE IRON, 8 IN, 45? ELBOW EACH 4 500.00$          2,000.00$           1,000.00$       4,000.00$           

59 5010 FITTINGS BY COUNT, DUCTILE IRON, 4 IN, 90? ELBOW EACH 4 500.00$          2,000.00$           1,000.00$       4,000.00$           

60 5010 WATER MAIN, DIRECT BURIED, DUCTILE IRON PIPE (DIP), 4 IN, POLY WRAPPED LF 40 115.00$          4,600.00$           125.00$          5,000.00$           

61 5010 WATER MAIN, DIRECT BURIED, DUCTILE IRON PIPE (DIP), 8 IN, POLY WRAPPED LF 110 120.00$          13,200.00$        90.00$            9,900.00$           

62 5010 WATER SERVICE STUB, COPPER, 3/4 IN LF 59.7 110.00$          6,567.00$           65.00$            3,880.50$           

63 5020 VALVE, GATE, DIP, 8 IN EACH 2 3,500.00$       7,000.00$           3,250.00$       6,500.00$           

64 6010 ADJUSTMENT OF EXISTING MANHOLE OR INTAKE, MAJOR EACH 1 2,000.00$       2,000.00$           5,250.00$       5,250.00$           

65 6010 INTAKE, SW-507 EACH 3 5,200.00$       15,600.00$        8,750.00$       26,250.00$        

66 6010 INTAKE, SW-513 (36"X36") EACH 2 8,400.00$       16,800.00$        9,600.00$       19,200.00$        

67 6010 MANHOLE, SW-401, 48 IN. EACH 1 5,200.00$       5,200.00$           7,000.00$       7,000.00$           

68 6010 INTAKE, NYLOPLAST HEAVY DUTY 3' X 3' GRATE EACH 1 3,000.00$       3,000.00$           5,750.00$       5,750.00$           

69 6010 REMOVALS, MANHOLE OR INTAKE EACH 1 550.00$          550.00$              1,250.00$       1,250.00$           

70 6010 SANITARY SEWER, MANHOLE, SW-301, 48 IN. EACH 1 4,100.00$       4,100.00$           7,000.00$       7,000.00$           

71 7010 STANDARD OR SLIP FORM PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE PAVEMENT, CLASS C, CLASS 3 DURABILITY, 8 IN. SY 416.8 60.00$            25,008.00$        95.00$            39,596.00$        

72 7010 CURB AND GUTTER LF 36 58.00$            2,088.00$           70.00$            2,520.00$           

73 7030 DETECTABLE WARNINGS, CAST IRON SF 10 52.00$            520.00$              52.00$            520.00$              

74 7030 DRIVEWAYS, PCC, 6 IN. SY 104.6 45.00$            4,707.00$           75.00$            7,845.00$           

75 7030 PCC SIDEWALK, PCC, 4 IN. SY 179.6 40.00$            7,184.00$           60.00$            10,776.00$        

76 7030 PCC SIDEWALK, PCC, 6 IN. SY 3.8 50.00$            190.00$              300.00$          1,140.00$           

77 7030 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK, SHARED USE PATH, OR DRIVEWAY SY 914 9.00$               8,226.00$           7.50$               6,855.00$           

78 7040 REMOVAL OF CURB AND GUTTER LF 36 10.00$            360.00$              7.50$               270.00$              

79 7040 REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT SY 421.4 7.50$               3,160.50$           7.50$               3,160.50$           

80 7040 SAWCUT FOR REMOVALS LF 123.8 8.00$               990.40$              12.00$            1,485.60$           

81 8010 HANDHOLES AND JUNCTION BOXES EACH 1 900.00$          900.00$              750.00$          750.00$              

82 8030 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 6,000.00$       6,000.00$           3,600.00$       3,600.00$           

83 9010 SEEDING, FERTILIZING, AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING ACRE 0.2 6,000.00$       1,200.00$           5,000.00$       1,000.00$           

84 9010 TEMPORARY HYDRO-SEEDING TYPE 4 ACRE 0.2 6,000.00$       1,200.00$           3,500.00$       700.00$              

85 9010 WATERING MGAL 100 160.00$          16,000.00$        50.00$            5,000.00$           

86 DOT 2507 REVETMENT, CLASS E TON 317 60.00$            19,020.00$        42.50$            13,472.50$        

87 9080 HANDRAILING, REMOVAL AND REINSTALLATION LF 18 60.00$            1,080.00$           115.00$          2,070.00$           

88 9080 REMOVAL OF HANDRAILING LF 155 35.00$            5,425.00$           35.00$            5,425.00$           

89 9060 VINYL FENCE, 72 IN. LF 185 80.00$            14,800.00$        95.00$            17,575.00$        

90 9060 VINYL GATE, 72 IN. EACH 1 400.00$          400.00$              750.00$          750.00$              

91 11010 DEMOLITION, HOUSE LS 1 25,000.00$    25,000.00$        13,000.00$    13,000.00$        

92 11050 CONCRETE WASHOUT LS 1 7,000.00$       7,000.00$           750.00$          750.00$              

93 DOT 2501 TEMPORARY SHORING LS 1 50,000.00$    50,000.00$        240,000.00$  240,000.00$      

94 7030 LANDSCAPING LS 1 84,000.00$    84,000.00$        100,000.00$  100,000.00$      

95 9030 LANDSCAPE PAVERS SF 7860 30.00$            235,800.00$      15.00$            117,900.00$      

96 7030 LANDSCAPE PAVERS REMOVE AND REPLACE LS 50 30.00$            1,500.00$           20.00$            1,000.00$           

97 DOT 2304 TEMPORARY PAVEMENT, 6 IN. SF 225 68.00$            15,300.00$        55.00$            12,375.00$        

Origional Engineers Estimate (Including 5% Contingency): $2,205,932.61

Peterson Contractors IncEngineer Estimate

Olive Street Box Culvert Replacement Project (#8111280)

Owner: Cedar Falls IA, City of

07/22/2022 02:00 PM CDT

2,699,537.74$                                2,063,563.70$                                Engineers Estimate After Addendum No. 1 & Addendum No. 2:

368

Item 18.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: August 1, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement, Foth Infrastructure & Environment 
  Center Street Corridor Streetscape Project 
  City Project Number: MC-000-3206 
  Supplemental Agreement No. 1 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval is the Supplemental Agreement No. 1 to the 
Professional Services Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and Foth 
Infrastructure & Environment, L.L.C. for the Center Street Corridor Streetscape Project. 
This Supplemental Agreement provides for additional design services, right-of-way, 
lighting, additional landscaping, and for construction related adjustments to the project. 
Compensation for the services shall be on an hourly basis and in a total amount not to 
exceed $38,800.00.  
 
The City of Cedar Falls entered into a Professional Services Agreement with Foth 
Infrastructure & Environment, L.L.C. for the Center Street Corridor Streetscape Project 
on September 16, 2019. The project will be funded by Emergency Reserve, Storm 
Water Fund, Cedar Falls Utilities, and Private Contribution 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department requests your consideration 
and approval of this Supplemental Agreement No. 1 with Foth Infrastructure & 
Environment, L.L.C. for the Center Street Corridor Streetscape Project.  
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 

369

Item 19.



 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

 
OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE DIVISION 
2200 TECHNOLOGY PKWY 
319-273-8629 
FAX 319-273-8632 
 

 

ENGINEERING DIVISION 
220 CLAY STREET 
319-268-5161 

FAX 319-268-5197 

  
  
  
     
 

 

WATER RECLAMATION DIVISION 
501 E. 4TH STREET 
319-273-8633 
FAX 319-268-5566 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT NO. 1 
 

Center Street Corridor Streetscape Project 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number: MC-000-3206  
 

 
  
WHEREAS, a Professional Services Agreement was entered into by Foth Infrastructure & Environment, LLC, 
411 6th Avenue SE, Suite 400, Cedar Rapids, Iowa 50401, hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT" and 
City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter referred to as “CLIENT”, dated September 
16, 2019 for professional engineering services; and  
 
WHEREAS, the CLIENT and CONSULTANT desire to amend the previous agreement to include engineering 
services to complete the project, 
 
NOW THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed to amend the original Professional Services Agreement as follows: 
 
I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 Additional design services: 

• Add shoulder gravel areas (design, quantities/cost estimating, plan sheet development) 

• Lighting alternatives development  

• Additional landscaping design 

• Re-design efforts: pedestrian pads, geometrics/driveways, avoiding temporary easements 
 
II.  COMPENSATION AND TERMS OF PAYMENT 
 
 Compensation for the services shall be on an hourly basis in accordance with the hourly fees and 

other direct expenses in effect at the time the services are performed. Total compensation is a not 
to exceed a fee of thirty-eight thousand eight hundred dollars ($38,800.00). The compensation for 
this supplemental agreement will be added to the original agreement amount. 

 
III. In all other aspects, the obligations of the Client and Consultant shall remain as specified in the 

Professional Services Agreement dated September 16, 2019. 
 
  

370

Item 19.



  
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year written below. 
 
APPROVED FOR CLIENT  APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT 
 
 
By:  By:  
 
 
Printed Name:  _______________________  Printed Name: Aaron Moniza                 
 
 
Title: __Mayor of Cedar Falls  Title: Senior Client Manager                              
 
 
Date:  Date:  

371

Item 19.

APM
Text Box
7/25/22



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
  
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Luke Andreasen, PE 
 
 DATE: August 1, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Main Street Reconstruction (6th St. to University) 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3283 
  Property Acquisitions & Temporary Easements 
 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to reconstruct Main Street from 6th Street to 
University Avenue from a 4 lane roadway to a 3 lane roadway. Included in the project 
will be the intersections at Seerley Boulevard, 18th Street, 12th Street, and potentially 6th 
Street which will be replaced with single-lane roundabouts to improve the overall traffic 
safety and flow in all directions of travel. The project will also include improvements to 
the water main, sanitary sewer, storm sewer, sidewalks, and other miscellaneous 
roadway items. The project will require the acquisition of temporary easements from 
one-hundred twenty-nine (129) properties to complete construction. The owners of the 
following thirty (30) properties have accepted our offer: 
 

Parcel # Owner Address/Parcel ID Acquisition Type 

53 Permanent Planning, Inc. 1702 Main Street Temporary Easement 

73 Joshua & Danielle Priebe 1422 Main Street Temporary Easement 

75 Michael Bond Shymansky & Maureen J. 
Turk; and Brock James & Julie Ann S. 
Shymansky; and James Andrew & 
Teresa G. Shymansky 

1405 Main Street Temporary Easement 

116  First Presbyterian Church 902 Main Street Temporary Easement 

122 Michael Bond Shymansky & Maureen J. 
Turk; and Brock James & Julie Ann S. 
Shymansky; and James Andrew & 
Teresa G. Shymansky 

824 Main Street Temporary Easement 

123 Michael Bond Shymansky & Maureen J. 
Turk; and Brock James & Julie Ann S. 
Shymansky; and James Andrew & 
Teresa G. Shymansky 

816 Main Street Temporary Easement 

130 DEV Properties, L.L.C. 720 Main Street Temporary Easement 

132A Wyth Flats, L.L.C. 706 & 710 Main Street Temporary Easement 

132B James C. & Christina B. Bauch 708 & 712 Main Street Temporary Easement 

157 Nelson Funeral Home, Inc. 613 Main Street Temporary Easement 

372

Item 20.



167 Kasey J. & Theresa D. Schmitt 801 Main Street Temporary Easement 

169 M.J. Knox, L.L.C. 811 Main Street Temporary Easement 

202 Donald R. & Kathleen D. Rasmusson 1204 Washington 
Street 

Temporary Easement 

203 Estate of Patricia M. Rasmusson and 
Jack P. Rasmusson Family Trust 

114 W. 12th Street Temporary Easement 

212 Nancy L. Ascherl 1303 Main Street Temporary Easement 

215 Bianca Pontious 1321 Main Street Temporary Easement 

231 David Henry Stiner & Emily M. Stiner 1503 Main Street Temporary Easement 

234 Mitchel & Karen Bloomquist 1523 Main Street Temporary Easement 

243 MAKA Properties, L.L.C. 1603 Main Street Temporary Easement 

254 Freed Rentals, L.L.C. 1715 Main Street Temporary Easement 

260 Thomas J. & Leann M. Vetter 1901 Main Street Temporary Easement 

261 Daryl R. & Georgia M. Slinker 1907 Main Street Temporary Easement 

263 Matthew T. & Jennifer A. Reisetter 1925 Main Street Temporary Easement 

264 Jeremy & Jennifer Clayton 1929 Main Street Temporary Easement 

265 Richard L. Robert 1931 Main Street Temporary Easement 

266 Kenneth A. & Patricia L. Budke 1935 Main Street Temporary Easement 

272 James B. & Penny J. Nuss 2009 Main Street Temporary Easement 

279 Sandra L. & Thomas J. Benak (Owners);  
Brad Jacobson (Tenant) 

2103 Main Street Temporary Easement 

283 Kent N. & Michelle L. Purdy 2125 Main Street Temporary Easement 

290 Jeffrey A. & Mary L. Schwake 2215 & 2217 Main 
Street 

Temporary Easement 

 
Attached is a strip map of the entire project where these properties can by identified by 
parcel number. 
 
The City will use a combination of General Obligation and Street Construction Funds for 
the design and right of way portion of this project. The City entered into a Professional 
Services Agreement with Foth Infrastructure and Environmental, LLC, of Cedar Rapids, 
Iowa on July 19, 2021 for property acquisition and design services. Funds for this 
project are identified in the Cedar Falls Capital Improvements Program in FY22 - FY27 
under item number 118. If approved, the City Attorney will prepare the necessary 
closing documents and staff will complete the acquisition process for these parcels. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends that the City 
Council state their support in the form of a resolution approving the acquisitions and 
authorize the Mayor to execute the agreements for the Main Street Reconstruction 
Project. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 

373

Item 20.



p
w

:/
/f

o
th

-p
w

.b
e
n

tl
e
y

.c
o

m
:f

o
th

-p
w

-0
1

/D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ts
/C

li
e
n

ts
/C

e
d

a
r 

F
a
ll

s
 I

A
 C

/M
a
in

 S
tr

e
e
t 

R
e
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

/C
A

D
/D

is
p

la
y

s
/A

lt
e
rn

a
ti

v
e
s
/S

tr
ip

M
a
p

_
U

lt
im

a
te

_
P

U
B

5
/2

3
/2

0
2

2

11
14

15

16

17

18

21

22

23

24 27

28

29

30

31

33

32

40

39

38

37

36

41

44

42 43

45

46

47

50

51

52

53

54 55
56

57

58

59

62

63 64 65

66

67

68

71

72

73

74 75

76 79

80

81

82

83

84

87

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

102

103

104

105

106
107

108

109

110

111 114

115

116

117

120

121

122

123

124

125

126 129

130 131 132 133

134

135

138 139
142

150

151

154

155

156
157158

159

162

163

166

167

168

169
170

171

174

175

176177178179

180183

184

185

186

187

188

191

192

193

194

195

196

197

198

199

202

203

204

205

206

207

208
211

212213214

215

216

217

218

221

222223224225

226

227

230

231

232233

234

235

236

237240

241

242

244245

246

243

247
250

251

252

253

254

255

256

259

261

260

262
263

264

265
266

267
270

271

272

273

274

275

278

280

281

282

283

279

284

288

287

289

290

291

292

293

294295

296

298

300

299

BUS-45

AASHTO 2018 (US)
(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

B
U

S
-

4
5

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

B
U

S
-

4
5

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

BUS-45

AASHTO 2018 (US)
(c) 2022 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

B
U

S
-

4
5

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c)
 2

02
2 

Tra
ns

oft
 S

olu
tio

ns
, I

nc
. A

ll 
rig

hts
 re

se
rve

d.

FEET

0 100

 WASHINGTON ST

Cedar Falls, Iowa
Main Street Reconstruction

STATE ST

W
 2

0
T

H
 S

T

 W
 2

1
S

T
 S

T

W
 2

2
N

D
 S

T

 S
E
E

R
L
E

Y
 B

L
V

D

 E
 2

0
T

H
 S

T

E
 2

1
S

T
 S

T

 W
 1

7
T

H
 S

T

W
 1

8
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

5
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

6
T

H
 S

T

 WASHINGTON ST

 E
 1

6
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

5
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

4
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

3
T

H
 S

T

W
 7

T
H

 S
T

 E
 7

T
H

 S
T

 W
 9

T
H

 S
T

W
 1

0
T

H
 S

T

 W
 1

1
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

1
T

H
 S

T

STATE ST

 W
 6

T
H

 S
T

 WASHINGTON ST

 E
 6

T
H

 S
T

W
 8

T
H

 S
T

E
 8

T
H

 S
T

E
 9

T
H

 S
T

E
 1

0
T

H
 S

T

STATE ST

 W
 1

2
T

H
 S

T

 E
 1

2
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

3
T

H
 S

T

E
 1

4
T

H
 S

T

2604 MAIN ST

D AND J INVESTMENTS INC
110 E SEERLEY BLVD

HARDING ENTERPRISES L C 2310 MAIN ST

LINCOLN SAVINGS BANK

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

201 E 22ND ST

201 PROPERTIES LLC

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

2120 MAIN ST

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

TWIN CARD HOLDINGS LLC

107 E 21ST ST

105 E 21ST ST

WEVERINK, MICHELE L

115 E 21ST ST

TRAETOW, MARY A

2018 MAIN ST

2C PROPERTIES LLC

106 E 21ST ST

104 E 21ST ST

MAI, JASON J

114 E 21ST ST

SULLIVAN,DIANE M TRUST

SULLIVAN,DANIEL E TRUST

2C PROPERTIES LLC

ANGOVE,VICKI TRUST

ANGOVE,GREGORY TRUST

111 E 20TH ST

SCHWAN, EMILY

MASON, THOMAS

115 E 20TH ST

ROBERTS, DONALD

1934 MAIN ST

DJS PROPERTIES LLC

DJS PROPERTIES LLC

T & R RENTALS LLC

106 E 20TH ST

MANLEY, LYNN A

114 E 20TH ST

DAGIT, DEBORAH K

DAGIT, SCOTT K

1932 MAIN ST

1930 MAIN ST

T & R RENTALS LLC

1820 MAIN ST

DEERY INVESTMENTS INC

1922 MAIN ST

KLEIN STORAGE LLC

1904 MAIN ST

DEERY INVESTMENTS INC

103 E 18TH ST

PROPERTIES L C

GRACIE MAE 

113 E 18TH ST

111 E 18TH ST

109 E 18TH ST

107 E 18TH ST

HESSE,C AND L LLC

123 E 18TH ST

ROUNDABOUT CENTER LLC

CVVC PROPERTIES L L C

120 E 18TH ST

118 E 18TH ST

TRP PROPERTIES L L C

1718 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1702 MAIN ST

PERMANENT PLANNING INC

1624 MAIN ST

CREW, JUDY L

1616 MAIN ST

RENTALS LLC

CHRISTOPHERSON 1612 MAIN ST

BIENFANG, MARY K

1604 MAIN ST

HAND, MARCEY J

HAND, CHRISTOPHE M

115 E 16TH ST

CRONKHITE, SARA N

CRONKHITE, LEE J

CRONKHITE, SARA N

CRONKHITE, LEE J

120 E 16TH ST

MONAGHAN, BRIAN P

MONAGHAN, BRIDGETTE R

1524 MAIN ST

ROLFES, LANA

ROLFES, DENNIS

1516 MAIN ST

CRALL, MICHAEL G

1504 MAIN ST

CRALL, MICHAEL

115 E 15TH ST

GREDER, GRANT

KEW, BRANDON C

119 E 15TH ST

STRICKLAND, JANE M

121 E 15TH ST

PEVERILL, TAMARA K

PEVERILL, KENNETH W

116 E 15TH ST

GEMINI PROPERTIES L L C

110 E 15TH ST

KRAAYENBRINK, MARLA R

KRAAYENBRINK, RANDY L

1422 MAIN ST

PRIEBE, JOSHUA

PRIEBE, DANIELLE

1416 MAIN ST

VORLAND, DAVID E

1404 MAIN ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

1403 STATE ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

114 E 14TH ST

PAULI, JACOB

PAULI, NIKOLE

1322 MAIN ST

MALBEC PROPERTIES LLC

1316 MAIN ST

KOG PROPERTIES LLC

1310 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1303 STATE ST

PAGEL, LA DONNA K

PAGEL, LARRY E

110 E 13TH ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1121 STATE ST

KUEHL, JEANETTE M

1124 MAIN ST

MARTINEZ, SHEREE

MARTINEZ, MICHAEL R
1120 MAIN ST

LILLY, JAMES A

LILLY, JOSEPHINE A

1116 MAIN ST

COLLINS, JOHNPAUL

1112 MAIN ST

MC FARLANE, DIANE M

MC FARLANE, MONTELL G

1108 MAIN ST

CV PROPERTIES II LLC

1104 MAIN ST

TENTINGER, PETER

111 E 11TH ST

RENTALS OF IOWA LLC

115 E 11TH ST

GERKEN, SUSAN K

GERKEN, ROBERT D

1103 STATE ST

MB RENTALS II LLC

1021 STATE ST

SOUTER, JASMINE M

GASSMAN, MICHAEL

112 E 11TH ST

MC CARTY RENTALS LLC

1022 MAIN ST

SMITH, CHARLOTTE I

1018 MAIN ST

AIRJB LLC

1014 MAIN ST

1012 MAIN ST

1010 MAIN ST

WERNIMONT LLC 1006 MAIN ST

SMIGELSKI, JUSTIN P

1004 MAIN ST

WELSH INVESTMENTS LLC

109 E 10TH ST

HERNANDEZ, THERESA M

GRIFFIN, ELAINE C

117 E 10TH ST

RENTALS OF IOWA LLC

1003 STATE ST

JOHNSON, CHARLES T

JOHNSON, MELINDA C
921 STATE ST

JRICE, MIMI

114 E 10TH ST

MELICK, KENT

MELICK, JEAN

902 MAIN ST

FIRST PRESBYTER, IAN CHURCH C

FIRST PRESBYTER, IAN CHURCH C

124 E 9TH ST

KNAPP, WENDY S

114 E 9TH ST

RUSSELL, NATASHA K

RUSSELL, JAMES C

824 MAIN ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

816 MAIN ST

SHYMANSKY, BROCK JAMES

SHYMANSKY, JAMES ANDREW

SHYMANSKY, MICHAEL BOND

802 MAIN ST

800 MAIN ST

ST PATRICKS CHU, RCH

113 E 8TH ST

PIGGOTT, KAIA A

PIGGOTT, JUSTIN G

803 STATE ST

801 STATE ST

KEL MAR LC

721 STATE ST

PIGGOTT, KAIA A

PIGGOTT, JUSTIN G

720 MAIN ST

DEV PROPERTIES LLC

716 MAIN ST

WILCOX, PETER J

712 MAIN ST

710 MAIN ST

708 MAIN ST

706 MAIN ST

BAUCH, CHRISTINA B

BAUCH, JAMES C

702 MAIN ST

702 MAIN LLC

115 E 7TH ST

PROPERTIES LLC

RANDYS RENTAL 

703 STATE ST

123 E 7TH ST

RETH, ADAM

622 MAIN ST

KNUTSON, MARK L

KNUTSON, THERESA B
602 MAIN ST

FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF CF

528 MAIN ST

524 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

515 MAIN ST

FARMERS STATE BANK

516 WASHINGTON ST

CHEVROLET CO INC

RASMUSSON 

HI YIELD LLC

116 W 6TH ST

RICHARDSON FUNERAL HOME INC

601 MAIN ST

CASEYS MARKETING COMPANY

613 MAIN ST

NELSON FUNERAL HOME INCHI YIELD LLC

123 W 7TH ST

HI YIELD LLC

123 W 8TH ST

705 MAIN ST

ST PATRICK CHURCH

115 W 8TH ST

ST PATRICK CHURCH

804 WASHINGTON ST

KEISER, CAROLINE

KEISER, DOUGLAS B

801 MAIN ST

SCHMITT, THERESA D

SCHMITT, KASEY J

805 MAIN ST

CNC INVESTMENTS L L C

811 MAIN ST

M J KNOX LLC
815 MAIN ST

JUANITA LLC

822 WASHINGTON ST

BECKER, AMY L

BECKER, BRIAN C

904 WASHINGTON ST

HARTON, HELEN C

116 W 9TH ST

RICKARD, CLARK J

RICKARD, TWYLA J

903 MAIN ST

RICKARD, CLARK J

909 MAIN ST

HOVENGA, MICHELLE

HOVENGA, REGGIE S

915 MAIN ST

CHASE, SCOTT A

921 MAIN ST

SHUMAKER, CHARLES A

SHUMAKER, AMANDA L

920 WASHINGTON ST

NEWTON, MARK R

122 W 10TH ST

PITZENBERGER, MARY

112 W 10TH ST

STICKFORT, SUSAN G

STICKFORT, THOMAS E

1003 MAIN ST

CHRISTMAN, JESSICA A

CHRISTMAN, KEVIN J

1009 MAIN ST

WILSON CLASBY, NIKKI J

CLASBY, DANIEL B

1015 MAIN ST

CALVARY BAPTIST, CHURCH OF C

1022 WASHINGTON ST

BUTLER, BETTY J

BUTLER, MICHAEL J

120 W 11TH ST

RUSSELL, MEGHAN D

RUSSELL, BEN J

118 W 11TH ST

COLSCH, JOSHUA

COLSCH, JENNIFER

COLSCH, JONATHAN

1103 MAIN ST

1103 MAIN CO OP INC

1109 MAIN ST

MERSHON RENTALS LLC

1115 MAIN ST

CUNNINGHAM, MICHAEL E

1117 MAIN ST

ANDERSON, JOYCE E1123 MAIN ST

1125 MAIN ST

K3D LLC

109 W 12TH ST

K3D LLC

1124 WASHINGTON ST

BEARDSLEY, BRYAN L

1204 WASHINGTON ST

RASMUSSON, DONALD R

114 W 12TH ST

RASMUSSON,JACK R FAMILY TRUST

RASMUSSON,PATRICIA M

1203 MAIN ST

CHRISTOPHERSON, VALERIE K

CHRISTOPHERSON, DAVID J

1209 MAIN ST

TIGERHAWK RENTALS LLC

1217 MAIN ST

MOSSMAN, OLIVIA

MOSSMAN, JONATHAN

1221 MAIN ST

MEINDERS, KOREY J

MEINDERS, CLAYTON

1220 WASHINGTON ST

WINTERHOF, KIM A

WINTERHOF, GARY L

1304 WASHINGTON ST

LEEPER, JENNIFER R

LEEPER, BRADLY D

1303 MAIN ST

ASCHERL, NANCY L

1309 MAIN ST

TURNER, PATRICIA M

TURNER, JOSEPH W

1315 MAIN ST

TURNER, PATRICIA M

TURNER, JOSEPH W

1321 MAIN ST

PONTIOUS, BIANCA

111 W 14TH ST

PURDY, KENT N

115 W 14TH ST

SCHLICHER, MARY A

1322 WASHINGTON ST

PHILLIPS, ANDREA L

1404 WASHINGTON ST

FUCHS, MIKAYLA

FUCHS, BENJAMIN

1403 MAIN ST

COURTNEY, JAY J

1411 MAIN ST

1409 MAIN ST

1407 MAIN ST

MAIN PROPERTIES LLC

1415 MAIN ST

RICHTER, RENELL S

RICHTER, DOUGLAS A

1421 MAIN ST

WEBB, KAREN J

WEBB, DALE S

115 W 15TH ST

RIDENOUR, KIMIE A

1422 WASHINGTON ST

RIDENOUR, KIMIE A

1504 WASHINGTON ST

NORTHWESTERN BELL TELEPHONE CO

1503 MAIN ST

STINER, EMILY M

STINER, DAVID HENRY

1509 MAIN ST

KOTZ, SUE A
1515 MAIN ST

MORAN, AIDAN

1523 MAIN ST

BLOOMQUIST, KARIN

BLOOMQUIST, MITCHEL

115 W 16TH ST

GILGEN, JAMES D

117 W 16TH ST

WERNIMONT REALTY LLC

1520 WASHINGTON ST

WERNIMONT REALTY LLC

1604 WASHINGTON ST

PROPERTIES L L C

OTTER CREEK

114 W 16TH ST

SWAYNE, JENNIFER

110 W 16TH ST

EVERSON, JULIE

1609 MAIN ST

BUNDY, STEVEN J

1615 MAIN ST

KOTZ, LINDSEY A1621 MAIN ST

MB RENTALS II LLC

1603 MAIN ST

MAKA PROPERTIES LLC

1622 WASHINGTON ST

FAUSER, JANE A

FAUSER, RICHARD D

1702 WASHINGTON ST

HOUG, DUSTIN W

1703 MAIN ST

KOG PROPERTIES LLC

1709 MAIN ST

MORD, SHARON J

MORD, JAN K

1711 MAIN ST

FISHER, MARY C

1715 MAIN ST

FREED RENTALS L L C

1721 MAIN ST

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1722 WASHINGTON ST

DT RENTALS LLC

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

1907 MAIN ST

SLINKER, GEORGIA M

SLINKER, DARYL R

1901 MAIN ST

VETTER, LEANN M

VETTER, THOMAS J

1915 MAIN ST

KELLY R & J FAM TRUST

1925 MAIN ST

REISETTER, JENNIFER A

REISETTER, MATTHEW T

1929 MAIN ST

CLAYTON, JENNIFER

CLAYTON, JEREMY

1931 MAIN ST

ROBERT, RICHARD L

1935 MAIN ST

BUDKE, PATRICIA L

BUDKE, KENNETH A

115 W 20TH ST

ROBERT, RICHARD L
2004 WASHINGTON ST

HOEL, TERRY D

2003 MAIN ST

DOLLYS RENTALS LLC

2009 MAIN ST

NUSS, JAMES B

2017 MAIN ST

CHRISTOPHERSON, DAVID J

2021 MAIN ST

CBJ HOLDINGS LLC

2022 WASHINGTON ST

KERR, KATHLEEN A

110 W 21ST ST

SOUTHGATE PROPERTIES L C

2109 MAIN ST

REFSHAUGE, BONITA M

2115 MAIN ST

SOUTHGATE PROPERTIES L C

2121 MAIN ST

HICKS, BONNIE K

HAHN, JERRY W

2125 MAIN ST

PURDY, KENT N

2103 MAIN ST

THOMPSON, SANDRA L

117 W 22ND ST

ANDERA, JORDAN D

2203 MAIN ST

JACOBSON, DONALD L

2204 WASHINGTON ST

THOMPSON, JOANNA L

2205 MAIN ST

COULTHARD, VERLA F

COULTHARD, ALVIN E2215 MAIN ST

2217 MAIN ST

SCHWAKE, MARY L

SCHWAKE, JEFFREY A

2221 MAIN ST

RIVERSIDE INVESTMENTS LLC

2301 MAIN ST

RIVERSIDE INVESTMENTS LLC

2303 MAIN ST

CV PROPERTIES II LLC

2309 MAIN ST

EMAAD LLC

2323 MAIN ST

EMAAD LLC

2322 WASHINGTON ST

PARTNERSHIP

IVERSON AND REIGHARD

204 SEERLEY BLVD

Z PROPERTIES LLC

7404 UNIVERSITY AVE

D AND J INVESTMENTS INC

STATE OF IOWA

374

Item 20.

AndreasenL
Line



375

Item 20.



376

Item 20.



377

Item 20.



378

Item 20.



379

Item 20.



380

Item 20.



381

Item 20.



382

Item 20.



383

Item 20.



384

Item 20.



385

Item 20.



386

Item 20.



387

Item 20.



388

Item 20.



389

Item 20.



390

Item 20.



391

Item 20.



392

Item 20.



393

Item 20.



394

Item 20.



395

Item 20.



396

Item 20.



397

Item 20.



398

Item 20.



399

Item 20.



400

Item 20.



401

Item 20.



402

Item 20.



403

Item 20.



404

Item 20.



405

Item 20.



406

Item 20.



407

Item 20.



408

Item 20.



409

Item 20.



410

Item 20.



411

Item 20.



412

Item 20.



413

Item 20.



414

Item 20.



415

Item 20.



416

Item 20.



417

Item 20.



418

Item 20.



419

Item 20.



420

Item 20.



421

Item 20.



422

Item 20.



423

Item 20.



424

Item 20.



425

Item 20.



426

Item 20.



427

Item 20.



428

Item 20.



429

Item 20.



430

Item 20.



431

Item 20.



432

Item 20.



433

Item 20.



434

Item 20.



435

Item 20.



436

Item 20.



437

Item 20.



438

Item 20.



439

Item 20.



440

Item 20.



441

Item 20.



442

Item 20.



443

Item 20.



444

Item 20.



445

Item 20.



446

Item 20.



447

Item 20.



448

Item 20.



449

Item 20.



450

Item 20.



451

Item 20.



452

Item 20.



453

Item 20.



454

Item 20.



455

Item 20.



456

Item 20.



457

Item 20.



458

Item 20.



459

Item 20.



460

Item 20.



461

Item 20.



462

Item 20.



463

Item 20.



464

Item 20.



465

Item 20.



466

Item 20.



467

Item 20.



468

Item 20.



469

Item 20.



470

Item 20.



471

Item 20.



472

Item 20.



473

Item 20.



474

Item 20.



475

Item 20.



476

Item 20.



477

Item 20.



478

Item 20.



479

Item 20.



480

Item 20.



481

Item 20.



482

Item 20.



483

Item 20.



484

Item 20.



485

Item 20.



486

Item 20.



487

Item 20.



488

Item 20.



489

Item 20.



490

Item 20.



491

Item 20.



492

Item 20.



493

Item 20.



494

Item 20.



495

Item 20.



496

Item 20.



497

Item 20.



498

Item 20.



499

Item 20.



500

Item 20.



501

Item 20.



502

Item 20.



503

Item 20.



504

Item 20.



505

Item 20.



506

Item 20.



507

Item 20.



508

Item 20.



509

Item 20.



510

Item 20.



511

Item 20.



512

Item 20.



513

Item 20.



514

Item 20.



515

Item 20.



516

Item 20.



517

Item 20.



518

Item 20.



519

Item 20.



520

Item 20.



521

Item 20.



522

Item 20.



523

Item 20.



524

Item 20.



525

Item 20.



526

Item 20.



527

Item 20.



528

Item 20.



529

Item 20.



530

Item 20.



531

Item 20.



532

Item 20.



533

Item 20.



534

Item 20.



535

Item 20.



536

Item 20.



537

Item 20.



538

Item 20.



539

Item 20.



540

Item 20.



541

Item 20.



542

Item 20.



543

Item 20.



544

Item 20.



545

Item 20.



546

Item 20.



547

Item 20.



548

Item 20.



549

Item 20.



550

Item 20.



551

Item 20.



552

Item 20.



553

Item 20.



554

Item 20.



555

Item 20.



556

Item 20.



557

Item 20.



558

Item 20.



559

Item 20.



560

Item 20.



561

Item 20.



562

Item 20.



563

Item 20.



564

Item 20.



565

Item 20.



566

Item 20.



567

Item 20.



568

Item 20.



569

Item 20.



570

Item 20.



571

Item 20.



572

Item 20.



573

Item 20.



574

Item 20.



575

Item 20.



576

Item 20.



577

Item 20.



578

Item 20.



579

Item 20.



580

Item 20.



581

Item 20.



582

Item 20.



583

Item 20.



584

Item 20.



585

Item 20.



586

Item 20.



587

Item 20.



588

Item 20.



589

Item 20.



590

Item 20.



591

Item 20.



592

Item 20.



593

Item 20.



594

Item 20.



595

Item 20.



596

Item 20.



597

Item 20.



598

Item 20.



599

Item 20.



600

Item 20.



601

Item 20.



602

Item 20.



603

Item 20.



604

Item 20.



605

Item 20.



606

Item 20.



607

Item 20.



608

Item 20.



609

Item 20.



610

Item 20.



611

Item 20.



612

Item 20.



613

Item 20.



614

Item 20.



615

Item 20.



616

Item 20.



617

Item 20.



618

Item 20.



619

Item 20.



620

Item 20.



621

Item 20.



622

Item 20.



623

Item 20.



624

Item 20.



625

Item 20.



626

Item 20.



627

Item 20.



628

Item 20.



629

Item 20.



630

Item 20.



631

Item 20.



632

Item 20.



633

Item 20.



634

Item 20.



635

Item 20.



636

Item 20.



637

Item 20.



638

Item 20.



639

Item 20.



640

Item 20.



641

Item 20.



642

Item 20.



643

Item 20.



644

Item 20.



645

Item 20.



646

Item 20.



647

Item 20.



648

Item 20.



649

Item 20.



650

Item 20.



651

Item 20.



652

Item 20.



653

Item 20.



654

Item 20.



655

Item 20.



656

Item 20.



657

Item 20.



658

Item 20.



659

Item 20.



660

Item 20.



661

Item 20.



662

Item 20.



663

Item 20.



664

Item 20.



665

Item 20.



666

Item 20.



667

Item 20.



668

Item 20.



669

Item 20.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 
 DATE: August 1, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: USGS Streamgaging Station for the Cedar River in Cedar Falls 
  City Project Number: MC-039-1653 
 
Attached is the Joint Funding Agreement with the U.S. Geological Survey for the federal 
fiscal year 2022 for the continuing support, operation, and maintenance of the 
streamgage site on the Cedar River in Cedar Falls. The agreement also includes the 
continued development of real–time stream flow data at the streamgage site. This is a 
cooperative agreement whereby the U.S. Geological Survey and the City of Cedar Falls 
cost share the operation and maintenance of the streamgage site. 
 
The streamgage is known locally as the “river gauge” and provides the stage readings 
that are the basis for the public alerts given during high water events on the Cedar 
River. The stage readings enable flood forecasts to be generated for Cedar Falls by the 
River Forecast Center of the National Weather Service. The streamgage is located on 
south side of the Highway 57/1st Street Bridge over the Cedar River. 
 
Funding for the continued operation of the streamgage was budgeted for in the 
Engineering Services Budget. This agreement is for the period October 1, 2022 through 
September 30, 2023 in the amount of $11,590.00. 
 
It is recommended that this agreement be approved and returned to me for further 
processing.  If you have any questions or comments regarding this matter, feel free to 
contact me. 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
  
 

670

Item 21.



United States Department of the Interior
U.S. GEOLOGICAL SURVEY

CENTRAL MIDWEST WATER SCIENCE CENTER
MISSOURI

1400 Independence Rd. MS100
Rolla, MO 65401

ILLINOIS
405 N. Goodwin Ave.

Urbana, IL 61801

IOWA
400 S. Clinton St. Rm 269

Iowa City, IA 52240

July 21, 2022

David Wicke        
City Engineer
City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street Engineering Division
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Dear Mr. Wicke: 

Attached is our standard joint-funding agreement for the operation and maintenance of one streamgaging station and 
one waste-water survey on the Cedar River in Cedar Falls, IA, for the period October 1, 2022 through September 30, 
2023 in the amount of $11,590 from your agency. U.S. Geological Survey contributions for this agreement are $5,760 
for a combined total of $17,350. Please sign and return one fully-executed original to Alex D. Arduser via email at 
aarduser@usgs.gov.

Federal law requires that we have a signed agreement before we start or continue work. Please return the signed 
agreement by October 1, 2022. If, for any reason, the agreement cannot be signed and returned by the date shown 
above, please contact Jon Nania by phone number (319) 358-3655 or email jfnania@usgs.gov to make alternative 
arrangements.

This is a fixed cost agreement to be billed annually via Down Payment Request (automated Form DI-1040). Please 
allow 30-days from the end of the billing period for issuance of the bill. If you experience any problems with your 
invoice(s), please contact Alex Arduser at phone number (319) 358-3656 or email at aarduser@usgs.gov.  

The results of all work performed under this agreement will be available for publication by the U.S. Geological 
Survey. We look forward to continuing this and future cooperative efforts in these mutually beneficial water 
resources studies. 

Sincerely, 

Jon Nania  
Deputy Director, Central Midwest WSC

Enclosure
23NEJFA103

671

Item 21.



Form 9-1366 
(May 2018) 

U.S. Department of the Interior 
U.S. Geological Survey 

Joint Funding Agreement 
FOR 

Water Resource Investigations 

Customer #: 6000001608 
Agreement #: 23NEJFA103 
Project #: NE009KT 
TIN #: 42-60038591 

 Fixed Cost Agreement  YES[ X ] NO[   ] 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into as of the October 1, 2022, by the U.S. GEOLOGICAL SURVEY, Central Midwest 
Water Science Center, UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, party of the first part, and the City of 
Cedar Falls party of the second part. 

1. The parties hereto agree that subject to the availability of appropriations and in accordance with their respective
authorities there shall be maintained in cooperation, the operation and maintenance of one streamgaging station
and one waste-water survey on the Cedar River in Cedar Falls, IA, herein called the program. The USGS legal
authority is 43 USC 36C; 43 USC 50, and 43 USC 50b.

2. The following amounts shall be contributed to cover all of the cost of the necessary field and analytical work
directly related to this program. 2(b) include In-Kind-Services in the amount of $0.00

(a) $5,760 by the party of the first part during the period 
October 1, 2022 to September 30, 2023 

(b) $11,590 by the party of the second part during the period 
October 1, 2022 to September 30, 2023 

(c) Contributions are provided by the party of the first part through other USGS regional or national programs,
in the amount of: $0

Description of the USGS regional/national program:

(d) Additional or reduced amounts by each party during the above period or succeeding periods as may be
determined by mutual agreement and set forth in an exchange of letters between the parties.

(e) The performance period may be changed by mutual agreement and set forth in an exchange of letters
between the parties.

3. The costs of this program may be paid by either party in conformity with the laws and regulations respectively
governing each party.

4. The field and analytical work pertaining to this program shall be under the direction of or subject to periodic review
by an authorized representative of the party of the first part.

5. The areas to be included in the program shall be determined by mutual agreement between the parties hereto or
their authorized representatives. The methods employed in the field and office shall be those adopted by the party of
the first part to insure the required standards of accuracy subject to modification by mutual agreement.

6. During the course of this program, all field and analytical work of either party pertaining to this program shall be
open to the inspection of the other party, and if the work is not being carried on in a mutually satisfactory manner,
either party may terminate this agreement upon 60 days written notice to the other party.

7. The original records resulting from this program will be deposited in the office of origin of those records. Upon
request, copies of the original records will be provided to the office of the other party.

8. The maps, records or reports resulting from this program shall be made available to the public as promptly as
possible. The maps, records or reports normally will be published by the party of the first part. However, the party of
the second part reserves the right to publish the results of this program, and if already published by the party of the
first part shall, upon request, be furnished by the party of the first part, at cost, impressions suitable for purposes of
reproduction similar to that for which the original copy was prepared. The maps, records or reports published by
either party shall contain a statement of the cooperative relations between the parties. The Parties acknowledge that
scientific information and data developed as a result of the Scope of Work (SOW) are subject to applicable USGS
review, approval, and release requirements, which are available on the USGS Fundamental Science Practices
website (https://www.usgs.gov/about/organization/science-support/science-quality-and-integrity/fundamental-science-
practices).

672

Item 21.



9. Billing for this agreement will be rendered annually. Invoices not paid within 60 days from the billing date will bear
Interest, Penalties, and Administrative cost at the annual rate pursuant the Debt Collection Act of 1982, (codified at
31 U.S.C. § 3717) established by the U.S. Treasury.

USGS Technical Point of Contact

Name: Jon Nania
Supervisory Hydrologist

Address: 400 S Clinton St Rm 269
Iowa City, IA 52240

Telephone: (319) 358-3655
Fax: (319) 358-3606
Email: jfnania@usgs.gov

Customer Technical Point of Contact

Name: David Wicke
City Engineer

Address: 220 Clay Street Engineering Division
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Telephone: (319) 268-5161
Fax: (319) 268-5197
Email: david.wicke@cedarfalls.com

USGS Billing Point of Contact

Name: Alex Arduser
Budget Analyst

Address: 400 S Clinton St Room 269
Iowa City, IA 52240

Telephone: (319) 358-3656
Fax: (319) 358-3606
Email: aarduser@usgs.gov

Customer Billing Point of Contact

Name: David Wicke
City Engineer

Address: 220 Clay Street Engineering Division
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613

Telephone: (319) 268-5161
Fax: (319) 268-5197
Email: david.wicke@cedarfalls.com

U.S. Geological Survey
United States

Department of Interior

Signature

By_______________________ Date: 07/21/2022
Name: Amy Beussink
Title: Director, Central Midwest WSC

City of Cedar Falls

Signatures

By_______________________ Date: _________
Name:
Title:

By_______________________ Date: _________
Name:
Title:

By_______________________ Date: _________
Name:
Title:

Form 9-1366
(May 2018)

U.S. Department of the Interior
U.S. Geological Survey

Joint Funding Agreement
FOR 

Water Resource Investigations

Customer #: 6000001608
Agreement #: 23NEJFA103
Project #: NE009KT
TIN #: 42-60038591

Sig

By_______________ _________
Namem : Amy Beussink

673

Item 21.



674

Item 21.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS  

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 MEMORANDUM 
 

  

  

 

 

 
  
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 
 DATE: July 25, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Seerley Park Improvements  
  City Project Number: PI-107-3303 
  Professional Services Agreement, Ritland-Kuiper Landscape Architects 
 
Please find attached the Professional Services Agreement between the City of Cedar 
Falls and Ritland & Kuiper Landscape Architects which outlines the scope of services 
and costs for the Seerley Park Improvement Project. 
 
The enclosed agreement with Ritland & Kuiper Landscape Architects provides for the 
detail work, services, materials, equipment, and supplies necessary to complete the 
design phase of the Seerley Park Improvements Project for the City of Cedar Falls. The 
fees of this agreement are based on hourly rates and fixed expenses and shall not to 
exceed the total amount of $35,100.00.  
 
This project is included in the City of Cedar Falls Capital Improvements Program #150 
for Consultant Inspecting in FY23. The primary source of funding source will be from the 
hotel-motel fund with a private contribution of 25%. The project would be scheduled for 
a bid letting in calendar year 2024 with construction continuing in the spring of 2025. 
 
The department of Public Works requests your consideration and approval of this 
Professional Service Agreement with Ritland & Kuiper Landscape Architects for the 
Seerley Park Improvements Project. 
 
If you have any questions or comments, feel free to contact me.  
 
 
xc:  Stephanie Houk-Sheetz, Director of Community Development 
   

675

Item 22.



 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

 
OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE DIVISION 
2200 TECHNOLOGY PKWY 
319-273-8629 
FAX 319-273-8632 
 

 

ENGINEERING DIVISION 
220 CLAY STREET 
319-268-5161 

FAX 319-268-5197 

  
  
  
     
 

 

WATER RECLAMATION DIVISION 
501 E. 4TH STREET 
319-273-8633 
FAX 319-268-5566 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 
 

Seerley Park Improvements 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number: PI-107-3303  
 

 
  
This Agreement is made and entered by and between RITLAND+KUIPER Landscape Architects, 531 
Commercial Street, Mezzanine A, Waterloo, Iowa 50703, hereinafter referred to as “CONSULTANT" and 
City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereinafter referred to as "CLIENT.” 
 
IN CONSIDERATION of the covenants hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto mutually agree as follows: 
 
I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 CONSULTANT shall perform professional Services (the "Services") in connection with CLIENT's 

facilities in accordance with the Scope of Services set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto. 
 
II.  CONSULTANT'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 CONSULTANT shall, subject to the terms and provisions of this Agreement: 
  
 (a) Appoint one or more individuals who shall be authorized to act on behalf of CONSULTANT 

and with whom CLIENT may consult at all reasonable times, and whose instructions, 
requests, and decisions will be binding upon CONSULTANT as to all matters pertaining to 
this Agreement and the performance of the parties hereunder. 

 
 (b) Use all reasonable efforts to complete the Services within the time period mutually agreed 

upon, except for reasons beyond its control, as set forth in Exhibit A. 
 
 (c) Perform the Services in accordance with generally accepted professional engineering 

standards in existence at the time of performance of the Services. If during the two year 
period following the completion of Services, it is shown that there is an error in the Services 
solely as a result of CONSULTANT's failure to meet these standards, CONSULTANT shall 
re-perform such substandard Services as may be necessary to remedy such error at no 
cost to CLIENT. Since CONSULTANT has no control over local conditions, the cost of labor 
and materials, or over competitive bidding and market conditions, CONSULTANT does not 
guarantee the accuracy of any construction cost estimates as compared to contractor's bids 
or the actual cost to the CLIENT. CONSULTANT makes no other warranties either express 
or implied and the parties’ rights, liabilities, responsibilities and remedies with respect to the 
quality of Services, including claims alleging negligence, breach of warranty and breach of 
contract, shall be exclusively those set forth herein. 

 

676

Item 22.



 (d) CONSULTANT shall, if requested in writing by CLIENT, for the protection of CLIENT, 
require from all vendors and subcontractors from which CONSULTANT procures 
equipment, materials or services for the project, guarantees with respect to such 
equipment, materials and services. All such guarantees shall be made available to CLIENT 
to the full extent of the terms thereof. CONSULTANT's liability with respect to such 
equipment, and materials obtained from vendors or services from subcontractors, shall be 
limited to procuring guarantees from such vendors or subcontractors and rendering all 
reasonable assistance to CLIENT for the purpose of enforcing the same. 

 
(e) CONSULTANT will be providing estimates of costs to the CLIENT covering an extended 

period of time. CONSULTANT does not have control over any such costs, including, but not 
limited to, costs of labor, material, equipment or services furnished by others or over 
competitive bidding, marketing or negotiating conditions, or construction contractors’ 
methods of determining their prices. Accordingly, it is acknowledged and understood that 
any estimates, projections or opinions of probable project costs provided herein by 
CONSULTANT are estimates only, made on the basis of CONSULTANT’s experience and 
represent CONSULTANT’s reasonable judgment as a qualified professional. 
CONSULTANT does not guarantee that proposals, bids or actual project costs will not vary 
from the opinions of probable costs prepared by CONSULTANT, and the CLIENT waives 
any and all claims that it may have against CONSULTANT as a result of any such variance.  

 
III. CLIENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 CLIENT shall at such times as may be required for the successful and expeditious completion of the 

Services: 
 
 (a) Provide all criteria and information as to CLIENT’s requirements; obtain all necessary 

approvals and permits required from all governmental authorities having jurisdiction over 
the project; and designate a person with authority to act on CLIENT’s behalf on all matters 
concerning the Services. 

  
 (b) Furnish to CONSULTANT all existing studies, reports and other available data pertinent to 

the Services, and obtain additional reports, data and services as may be required for the 
project. CONSULTANT shall be entitled to rely upon all such information, data and the 
results of such other services in performing its Services hereunder. 

 
IV. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CONSULTANTS FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  

The provisions of the document entitled, "Insurance Requirements for Consultants for the City of 
Cedar Falls," dated March 27, 2019 consisting of 10 pages, which are attached hereto, marked 
Exhibit B, are hereby made a part of this Agreement as if set out word for word herein. 
  
CONSULTANT shall furnish to CLIENT a certificate or certificates of insurance containing all 
coverages, endorsements and other provisions required by the Insurance Requirements set forth 
in Exhibit B. In the event of any conflict between the provisions of Exhibit B and the other terms of 
this Agreement, the provisions of Exhibit B shall control. 
 

 CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain an insurance policy or policies that meet the provisions 
set out in the Insurance Requirements for Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls, attached hereto 
and marked Exhibit B. 

 
V. STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR CONTRACTS BETWEEN CONTRACTORS WHO 

PERFORM PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
 
 The provisions of the documents entitled “Standard Terms and Conditions for Contracts Between 

Contractors Who Perform Professional Services and the City of Cedar Falls,” consisting of two 

677

Item 22.



pages are incorporated into this Agreement by the Client and attached as Exhibit C. 
 
VI. COMPENSATION AND TERMS OF PAYMENT 
 
 Compensation for the services shall be on an hourly basis in accordance with the hourly fees and 

other direct expenses in effect at the time the services are performed. Total compensation is a 
not to exceed a fee of Thirty-Five Thousand, One Hundred Dollars ($35,100).  
 
CONSULTANT may bill the CLIENT monthly for services completed at the time of billing. CLIENT 
agrees to pay CONSULTANT the full amount of such invoice within thirty (30) days after receipt 
thereof. In the event CLIENT disputes any invoice item, CLIENT shall give CONSULTANT written 
notice of such disputed item within ten (10) days after receipt of invoice and shall pay to 
CONSULTANT the undisputed portion of the invoice according to the provisions hereof. CLIENT 
agrees to abide by any applicable statutory prompt pay provisions currently in effect. 

 
VII. TERMINATION 
 
 CLIENT may, with or without cause, terminate the Services at any time upon fourteen (14) days 

written notice to CONSULTANT. The obligation to provide further Services under this Agreement 
may be terminated by either party upon fourteen (14) days' written notice in the event of substantial 
failure by the other party to perform in accordance with the terms hereof through no fault of the 
terminating party, providing such defaulting party has not cured such failure, or, in the event of a 
non-monetary default, commenced reasonable actions to cure such failure. In either case, 
CONSULTANT will be paid for all expenses incurred and Services rendered to the date of the 
termination in accordance with compensation terms of Article VI. 

 
VIII. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 
 

(a) Sealed original drawings, specifications, final project specific calculations and other 
instruments of service which CONSULTANT prepares and delivers to CLIENT pursuant to 
this Agreement shall become the property of CLIENT when CONSULTANT has been 
compensated for Services rendered. CLIENT shall have the right to use such instruments 
of service solely for the purpose of the construction, operation and maintenance of the 
Facilities. Nothing contained in this paragraph shall be construed as limiting or depriving 
CONSULTANT of its rights to use its basic knowledge and skills to design or carry out other 
projects or work for itself or others, whether or not such other projects or work are similar to 
the work to be performed pursuant to this Agreement.  CONSULTANT shall not be liable for 
any unauthorized reuse of modification of its work product. 

 
(b) Any files delivered in electronic medium may not work on systems and software different 

than those with which they were originally produced and CONSULTANT makes no 
warranty as to the compatibility of these files with any other system or software. Because of 
the potential degradation of electronic medium over time, in the event of a conflict between 
the sealed original drawings and the electronic files, the sealed drawings will govern. 

 
IX. MEANS AND METHODS 
 

(a) CONSULTANT shall not have control or charge of and shall not be responsible for 
construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for safety 
measures and programs including enforcement of Federal and State safety requirements, 
in connection with construction work performed by CLIENT's construction contractors. Nor 
shall CONSULTANT be responsible for the supervision of CLIENT's construction 
contractors, subcontractors or of any of their employees, agents and representatives of 
such contractors; or for inspecting machinery, construction equipment and tools used and 
employed by contractors and subcontractors on CLIENT's construction projects and shall 
not have the right to stop or reject work without the thorough evaluation and approval of the 

678

Item 22.



CLIENT. In no event shall CONSULTANT be liable for the acts or omissions of CLIENT's 
construction contractors, subcontractors or any persons or entities performing any of the 
construction work, or for the failure of any of them to carry out construction work under 
contracts with CLIENT. 

 
X. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 
 CONSULTANT shall be an independent contractor with respect to the Services to be performed 

hereunder. Neither CONSULTANT nor its subcontractors, nor the employees of either, shall be 
deemed to be the servants, employees, or agents of CLIENT. 

 
XI. PRE-EXISTING CONDITIONS 
 
 Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, CONSULTANT shall have no legal responsibility or 

liability for any and all pre-existing contamination. "Pre-existing contamination" is any hazardous or 
toxic substance present at the site or sites concerned which was not brought onto such site or sites 
by CONSULTANT. CLIENT agrees to release CONSULTANT from and against any and all liability 
to the CLIENT which may in any manner arise in any way directly or indirectly caused by such pre-
existing contamination except if such liability arises from CONSULTANT's sole negligence or willful 
misconduct. 

 
 CLIENT shall, at CLIENT’s sole expense and risk, arrange for handling, storage, transportation, 

treatment and delivery for disposal of pre-existing contamination. CLIENT shall be solely 
responsible for obtaining a disposal site for such material. CLIENT shall look to the disposal facility 
and/or transporter for any responsibility or liability arising from improper disposal or transportation of 
such waste. CONSULTANT shall not have or exert any control over CLIENT in CLIENT’s 
obligations or responsibilities as a generator in the storage, transportation, treatment or disposal of 
any pre-existing contamination. CLIENT shall complete and execute any governmentally required 
forms relating to regulated activities including, but not limited to generation, storage, handling, 
treatment, transportation, or disposal of pre-existing contamination.  

 
 For CONSULTANT's Services requiring drilling, boring, excavation or soils sampling, CLIENT shall 

approve selection of the contractors to perform such services, all site locations, and provide 
CONSULTANT with all necessary information regarding the presence of underground hazards, 
utilities, structures and conditions at the site.  
 

XII. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 
 If a dispute arises out of, or relates to, the breach of this Agreement and if the dispute cannot be 

settled through negotiation, then the CONSULTANT and the CLIENT agree to submit the dispute to 
mediation. In the event CONSULTANT or the CLIENT desires to mediate any dispute, that party 
shall notify the other party in writing of the dispute desired to be mediated. If the parties are unable 
to resolve their differences within 10 days of the receipt of such notice, such dispute shall be 
submitted for mediation in accordance with the procedures and rules of the American Arbitration 
Association (or any successor organization) then in effect. The deadline for submitting the dispute 
to mediation can be changed if the parties mutually agree in writing to extend the time between 
receipt of notice and submission to mediation. The expenses of the mediator shall be shared 50 
percent by CONSULTANT and 50 percent by the CLIENT. This requirement to seek mediation shall 
be a condition required before filing an action at law or in equity. However, prior to or during the 
negotiations or the mediation either party may initiate litigation that would otherwise be barred by a 
statute of limitations, and CONSULTANT may pursue any property liens or other rights it may have 
to obtain security for the payment of its invoices. 

 
 This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa and any action at law or other 

judicial proceeding arising from this Agreement shall be instituted in Black Hawk County District 
Court, Waterloo, Iowa. 

679

Item 22.



 
XIII. MISCELLANEOUS 
 
 (a) This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto and 

supersedes any oral or written representations, understandings, proposals, or 
communications heretofore entered into by or on account of the parties and may not be 
changed, modified, or amended except in writing signed by the parties hereto. In the event 
of any conflict between this contract document and any of the exhibits hereto, the terms 
and conditions of Exhibit C shall control. In the event of any conflict among the exhibits, 
Exhibit C shall control. 

 
 (b) This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Iowa. 
 
 (c) CONSULTANT may subcontract any portion of the Services to a subcontractor approved 

by CLIENT. In no case shall CLIENT's approval of any subcontract relieve CONSULTANT 
of any of its obligations under this Agreement.  

 
 (d) In the event CLIENT uses a purchase order form to administer this Agreement, the use of 

such form shall be for convenience purposes only, and any typed provision in conflict with 
the terms of this Agreement and all preprinted terms and conditions contained in or on such 
forms shall be deemed stricken and null and void. 

 
 (e) This Agreement gives no rights or benefits to anyone other than CLIENT and 

CONSULTANT and does not create any third party beneficiaries to the Agreement. 
 

(f) Except as may be explicitly set forth above, nothing contained in this Agreement or its 
exhibits limits the rights and remedies, including remedies related to damages, of either 
party that are available to either party under the law. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement on the day and year written 
below. 
 
APPROVED FOR CLIENT  APPROVED FOR CONSULTANT 
 
 
By:  By:  
 
 
Printed Name:  _Robert M. Green________  Printed Name:   Mark Kuiper, ASLA, LEED AP            
 
 
Title: __Mayor of Cedar Falls  Title:         Principal                      
 
 
Date:  Date:_________07/21/22  

680

Item 22.



Seerley Park Improvements 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. PI-107-3303 

 

    

Exhibit A 
 

Seerley Park Improvements 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number PI-107-3303 
 

   
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

You have requested our services for final design construction documents and 
construction related services to assist you in the renovation of Seerley Park. We 
are proposing the following services: 

 
1. Construction Documents 

 
This will include work required to create a set of construction documents for 
the park renovation, including: 

 
a. Attend a project kickoff meeting with the Client and other interested 

parties to gather input on the final design for the park based upon review 
of the park concept plan. 

b. Make revisions of the park concept plan as required based upon Client 
feedback and input from the neighborhood. 

c. Attend a second meeting with the Client and other parties to review the 
final design concept and updated cost opinion prior to proceeding with 
construction documents. 

d. Attend up to two public input meetings and one City Council meeting to 
provide information about the project to interested parties. 

e. Provide construction documents (plan details and specifications) for 
demolition, site grading, paving, landscaping, site furniture, signage, 
playground surfacing, and playground equipment. Included in these 
tasks will be the typical cross sections, tabulations and quantities, final 
plan and elevation sheets, detail layouts, and technical specifications.  

f. Provide plans for site lighting (pedestrian and area lighting) fixture 
selection and power supply (including power to gazebo) based upon 
design supplied by the Client for inclusion into the bid documents.  

g. Provide plans for a gazebo structure based upon pre-manufactured 
products selected by the Client similar in design to those discussed for 
the preliminary park design for inclusion into the bid documents. 

681

Item 22.



 

Seerley Park Improvements 

  Cedar Falls, Iowa 

  City Project No. PI-107-3303 

 

h. Expected timeline for construction documents would be a City letting in 
spring/summer of 2023, and construction in 2023/2024. 

i. Assistance with bidder selection. 

 

2. Construction Related Services 
 
Client will be assuming most of the construction related services for this 
project. The Landscape Architect will provide limited support during the 
construction phase of the project as defined by the following tasks: 
 

a. Attend a preconstruction conference attended by representatives of the 
Contractor, Subcontractors, Client, Consultants, and affected utilities. 

b. Answer design interpretation questions from the Client, Contractor, 
review staff and appropriate agencies.   

c. Landscape Architect will make periodic visits to the site of the 
construction to observe the progress and quality of the construction work 
and to determine, in general, if the results of the construction work are in 
accordance with the Drawings and Specifications. On the basis of these 
on-site observations, the Landscape Architect shall endeavor to guard 
the Client against apparent defects and deficiencies in the permanent 
work constructed by the Contractor but does not guarantee the 
performance of the Contractor. The Landscape Architect shall not be 
required to make exhaustive or continuous on-site observations to check 
the quality or quantity of the construction work. The Landscape Architect 
is not responsible for construction means, methods, techniques, 
sequences, procedures, time of performance, programs, or for any 
safety precautions in connection with the construction work. The 
Landscape Architect is not responsible for the Contractor's failure to 
execute the work in accordance with the Construction Contract. 

d. Report to the Client any work believed to be unsatisfactory, faulty or 
defective or does not conform to the contract documents and advise the 
Client of any work that should be corrected or rejected. 

e. Participate in a review of the project with the Client and review staff near 
completion and prepare a list of items to be completed or corrected. 

 

 

682

Item 22.



DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACCORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)

GENERAL LIABILITY

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y/N

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

OFFICE/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

(Mandatory in NH)

If yes, describe under DESCRIPTION OF
OPERATIONS below

064991338-
06

02/25/22 02/25/23A Professional Liability

EACH OCCURANCE

DAMAGE TO RENTED
PREMISES (Ea occurance)

MED EXP (Any one person)

PERSONAL & AND INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT (Ea
accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

PROPERTY DAMAGE (Per
accident)

EACH OCCURANCE

AGGREGATE

WC STATU-
TORY LIMITS

OTHER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISESAE - EA
EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE
THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

N/A

$2,000,000
$2,000,000

Per Occurrence:

Annual Aggregate:

 INSURER D:

CorRisk Solutions
180 N Stetson Ave Suite 4500

Chicago, IL 60601

RITLAND+KUIPER Landscape Architects
501 Sycamore Street

Mezzanine A
Waterloo, IA 50703

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

INSURED

PRODUCER

 THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
 INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
 CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
 EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

COVERAGES

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

07/21/2022

 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE  NAIC #

 INSURER A:

 INSURER B:

 INSURER C:

New Hampshire Insurance Company 23841

TYPE OF INSURANCE
INSR
LTR

ADD'L
INSRD

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
LIMITS

POLICY EFF
(MM/DD/YYYY)

SUBR
WVD

 CONTACT
 NAME:

 PHONE
 (A/C, No, Ext):

 E-MAIL
 ADDRESS:

312-637-8755

Karen Bronson

kbronson@corrisksolutions.com

 FAX
 (A/C, No, Ext):

CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa
2200 TECHNOLOGY PKWY

Cedar Falls, IA 50613

Seerley Park Improvements
City Project Number: PI-107-3303

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

 INSURER E:

 INSURER F:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS MADE OCCUR

POLICY PROJECT LOC

ANY AUTO

ALL OWNED
AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DED RETENTION $

OCCUR

CLAIMS MADE

DOES NOT APPLY

DOES NOT APPLY

DOES NOT APPLY

DOES NOT APPLY

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
ACORD 25 (2010/05) © 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. Allrights reserved.

683

Item 22.



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXPTYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $

PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT 

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS

HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $

PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N
N / A

(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

RITTL-1 OP ID: JT

07/21/2022

The Sinnott Agency, Inc.
622 W 4th St., PO Box 1918
Waterloo, IA 50704
Kyle Hildman

319-233-6103 319-234-8133
janant@sinnottagency.com

Nationwide Insurance

RITLAND KUIPER LLC
DBA RITLAND+KUIPER LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECTS
501 SYCAMORE ST
WATERLOO, IA 50703

A X 1,000,000
X X X ACP3048691646 04/01/2022 04/01/2023 100,000

5,000
1,000,000
2,000,000

X 2,000,000

1,000,000A

X X ACP3048691646 04/01/2022 04/01/2023

X X

XX 3,000,000
X

A
X ACP3048691646 04/01/2022 04/01/2023 3,000,000

0X
XA

X ACP3048691646 04/01/2022 04/01/2023 1,000,000
Y 1,000,000

1,000,000

WHEN REQUIRED IN WRITTEN CONTRACT.                                          
SEE 2ND PAGE.                                                               
                                                                            
PROJECT: SEERLEY PARK IMPROVEMENTS, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA                       
CITY PROJECT NUMBER PI-107-3303

CITYOCF

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS
220 CLAY ST
CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

319-233-6103

684

Item 22.



Date
HOLDER CODE   
INSURED'S NAME

PAGE
NOTEPAD:

WHEN REQUIRED IN WRITTEN CONTRACT:                                        
                                                                          
THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, INCLUDING ALL ITS ELECTED AND APPOINTED          
OFFICIALS, ALL ITS EMPLOYEES, ITS BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND/OR AUTHORITIES  
AND THEIR BOARD MEMBERS, EMPLOYEES ARE INCLUDED AS ADDITIONAL INSURED ON  
THE GENERAL LIABILITY POLICY ON A PRIMARY & NON-CONTRIBUTORY BASIS        
INCLUDING COMPLETED OPERATIONS PER CG7323 12/16, CG2037 4/13.             
GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES ENDORSEMENT INCLUDED.                             
WAIVER OF SUBROGATION UNDER THE GENERAL LIABILITY PER CG7323 12/16, WORK  
COMP PER WC000313 4/84.  30 DAY CANCELLATION NOTICE PER IL7002 9/11.      
                                                                          
PROJECT: SEERLEY PARK IMPROVEMENTS, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA                     
CITY PROJECT NUMBER PI-107-3303

CITYOCF 2
RITLAND KUIPER LLC 07/21/2022

RITTL-1
OP ID: JT

685

Item 22.



 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
 CG 73 23 12 16 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

CONTRACTORS ENHANCEMENT PLUS ENDORSEMENT 

INCLUDING MEDICAL PAYMENTS 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:  

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

 

A. Lost Key Coverage 

1. Under Section I – Coverages, Coverage A       
Bodily Injury And Property Damage 
Liability, coverage is extended to include 
the following:  

If a customer's master or grand key, 
excluding electronic key card, is lost, 
damaged or stolen while in your care, 
custody or control we will pay the cost of 
replacing the keys, including the master lock 
and all keys used in the same lock, the cost 
of adjusting locks to accept the new keys, or 
the cost to replace the locks, whichever is 
less.   

2. Limit of Insurance – For the purpose of this 
coverage the most we will pay is $ 10,000 
per “occurrence”. 

B. Voluntary Property Damage 

1. Section I – Coverages, Coverage A Bodily 
Injury And Property Damage Liability, 
coverage is extended to include the following: 

At your request, we will pay for “property 
damage” to property of others caused by you 
and while in your possession, arising out of your 
business operations and occurring during the 
policy period. 

2. Limit of Insurance – For the purpose of this 
coverage the most we will pay is $1,500 per 
“occurrence”.  

C. Non-Owned Watercraft  

Under Section I – Coverages, Coverage A 
Bodily Injury And Property Damage Liability, 
2. Exclusions, Exclusion g. Aircraft, Auto Or 
Watercraft Paragraph (2) (a) is replaced with: 

(a) Less than 51 feet long; and 

D. Expanded Property Damage Coverage 

1. For the purposes of this endorsement only: 

Section I – Coverages, Coverage A       
Bodily Injury And Property Damage 
Liability, 2. Exclusions, Exclusion j. 
Damage To Property is amended as follows: 
a. Paragraphs (3), (5), and (6) are deleted 

in their entirety. 

b. Paragraph (4) is deleted in its entirety 
and replaced with: 

(4) Personal property in the care, 
custody, or control of the insured: 

(a) for storage or sale at premises 
you own, rent or occupy; or 

(b) while being transported by any 
aircraft, "auto" or watercraft 
owned or operated by or rented 
to or loaned to any insured. 

c. The coverage provided by this 
endorsement does not apply to 
“property damage”: 

(1) Arising out of the disappearance or 
loss of use of personal property; or 

(2) Included in the “products-completed 
operations hazard”. 

2. Limit of Insurance - The most we will pay 
for loss arising out of any one “occurrence” 
is $5,000.   

3. Deductible - Our obligation to pay for a 
covered loss applies only to the amount of 
loss in excess of $250.  

We will pay the deductible amount to effect 
settlement of any claim or ”suit” and, upon 
notification of this action having been taken, 
you shall promptly reimburse us for the 
deductible as has been paid by us.  

 

CG 73 23 12 16 Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc.,  
with its permission. 

Page 1 of 5 

 
686

Item 22.



CG 73 23 12 16 

This insurance is primary to any expanded 
property damage coverage provided by a 
separate endorsement attached to this 
policy, and it will supplant any deductible in 
said endorsement  

E. Damage To Premises Rented To You 

1. Under Section I – Coverages, Coverage A 
Bodily Injury And Property Damage 
Liability, the last paragraph of 2. 
Exclusions  is replaced with: 

If Damage To Premises Rented To You is 
not otherwise excluded, Exclusions c. 
through n. do not apply to damage by fire, 
lightning, explosion, smoke, or sprinkler 
leakage to premises while rented to you or 
temporarily occupied by you with permission 
of the owner.   

2. Under Section III – Limits Of Insurance, 
Paragraph 6 is replaced with: 

6. Subject to 5. above, the Damage To 
Premises Rented To You Limit is the 
most we will pay under Coverage A for 
damages because of “property damage” 
to any one premises, while rented to 
you, or in the case of damage by fire, 
lightning, explosion, smoke or sprinkler 
leakage, while rented to you or 
temporarily occupied by you with 
permission of the owner. The limit is 
increased to $1,000,000. 

3. Under Section IV – Commercial General     
Liability Conditions, 4. Other Insurance, b.  
Excess Insurance (1) (a) (ii) is replaced 
with: 

(ii) That is Fire, Lightning, Explosion, Smoke 
or Sprinkler leakage insurance for 
premises rented to you or temporarily 
occupied by you with permission of the 
owner. 

F. Supplementary Payments 

Under Section I – Coverages, Supplementary 
Payments – Coverages A and B Paragraphs 
1.b and 1.d. are replaced with: 

b. Up to $2,500 for cost of bail bonds required 
because of accidents or traffic law violations 
arising out of the use of any vehicle to which 
the Bodily Injury Liability Coverage applies. 
We do not have to furnish these bonds. 

d. All reasonable expenses incurred by the 
insured at our request to assist us in the 
investigation or defense of the claim or 
“suit”, including actual loss of earnings up to 
$500 a day because of time off from work. 

G. Newly Formed And Acquired Organizations 

Under SECTION II – WHO IS AN INSURED 
Paragraph 3.a. is replaced with: 

a. Coverage under this provision is afforded 
only until the 180th day after you acquire or 
form the organization or the end of the policy 
period, whichever is earlier; 

H. Additional Insured – Automatic Status When 
Required In An Agreement Or Contract With 
You  

Section II – Who Is An Insured is amended to 
include:  

1. Any person(s) or organization(s) described 
in Paragraph a. – d. below with whom you 
have agreed in writing in a contract or 
written agreement that such person or 
organization be added as an additional 
insured on your policy during the policy 
period shown in the Declarations.   

2. Any other person or organization you are 
required to add as an additional insured 
under the contract or agreement described 
in Paragraph 1. above. 

The person or organization added as an 
insured by this endorsement is an insured 
only for liability due to: 

a. Lessors of Leased Equipment – with 
respect to their liability for “bodily injury”, 
“property damage”, or “personal and 
advertising injury”, caused in whole or in 
part by your maintenance, operation, or 
use of equipment leased to you by such 
person(s) or organization(s).  This 
insurance does not apply to any 
“occurrence” which takes place after the 
equipment lease expires. 

However, their status as additional 
insured under this policy ends when 
their lease, contract, or agreement with 
you for such leased equipment expires. 

b. Managers or Lessors of Premises – 
with respect to liability arising out of the 
ownership, maintenance, or use of that 
part of the premises you own, rent, 
lease, or occupy. 

Page 2 of 5 Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc.,  

with its permission. 
CG 73 23 12 16 

 
687

Item 22.



 CG 73 23 12 16 

This insurance does not apply to: 

(1) Any “occurrence” which takes place 
after you cease to be a tenant in 
that premises. 

(2) Structural alterations, new con-
struction, or demolition operations 
performed by or on behalf of the 
person or organization. 

However, their status as additional 
insured under this policy ends when you 
cease to be a tenant of such premises. 

c. State or Political Subdivision – 
Permits Relating to Premises – with 
respect to the following hazards for 
which the state or political subdivision 
has issued a permit or authorization in 
connection with premises you own, rent, 
or control and to which this insurance 
applies. 

(1) The existence, maintenance, repair, 
construction, erection, or removal of 
advertising signs, awnings, 
canopies, cellar entrances, coal 
holes, driveways, manholes, 
marquees, hoist away openings, 
sidewalk vaults, street banners, or 
decorations and similar exposures; 
or 

(2) The construction, erection, or 
removal of elevators; or 

(3) The ownership maintenance or use 
of any elevators covered by this 
insurance. 

This insurance does not apply to: 

(1) “Bodily injury” or “property damage” 
or “personal or advertising injury” 
arising out of operations performed 
for the state or municipality; or  

(2) “Bodily injury” or “property damage” 
included within the “products-
completed operations hazard”. 

However, such state or political 
subdivision’s status as additional 
insured under this policy ends when the 
permit ends. 

d. Owners, Lessees, or Contractors – 
with respect to liability for "bodily injury", 
"property damage", or "personal and 
advertising injury" caused in whole or in 
part, by: 

(1) Your acts or omissions; or 

(2) The acts or omissions of those 
acting on your behalf; in the 
performance of your ongoing 
operations performed for that 
additional insured, whether the work 
is performed by you or on your 
behalf. 

The insurance does not apply to: 

(1) “Bodily injury”, “property damage”, 
or “personal and advertising injury” 
arising out of the rendering of or the 
failure to render any professional 
architectural, engineering, or survey 
services, including: 

(a) The preparing, approving, or 
failing to prepare or approve 
maps, shop drawings, opinions, 
reports, survey, field orders, 
change orders, or drawings and 
specifications; or 

(b) Supervisory, inspection, archi-
tectural or engineering activities.   

This exclusion applies even if 
the claims against any insured 
allege negligence or other 
wrongdoing in the supervision, 
hiring, employment, training or 
monitoring of others by that 
insured, if the “occurrence” 
which caused the “bodily injury” 
or “property damage”, or the 
offense which caused the 
“personal and advertising 
injury”, involved the rendering 
of, or failure to render, any 
professional, architectural, 
engineering, or surveying 
services.   

(2) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" 
occurring after: 

(a) All work, including materials, 
parts, or equipment furnished in 
connection with such work, on 
the project (other than service, 
maintenance, or repairs) to be 
performed by or on behalf of the 
additional insured(s) at the 
location of the covered 
operations has been completed; 
or  

 

CG 73 23 12 16 Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc.,  

with its permission. 
Page 3 of 5 

 
688

Item 22.



CG 73 23 12 16  

(b) That portion of "your work" out 
of which the injury or damage 
arises has been put to its 
intended use by any person or 
organization other than another 
contractor or subcontractor 
engaged in performing 
operations for a principal as a 
part of the same project.  

However, a person or organization’s 
status as additional insured under 
this policy ends when your 
operations for that additional insured 
are completed. 

With respect to the insurance afforded to 
such additional insureds a. – d. described 
above, the following is added to Section III 
– Limits Of Insurance: 

If coverage provided to the additional 
insured is required by a contract or 
agreement, the most we will pay on behalf of 
the additional insured is the amount of 
insurance: 

1. Required by the contract or agreement; 
or 

2. Available under the applicable Limits of 
Insurance shown in the Declarations: 

whichever is less. 

This endorsement shall not increase the 
applicable Limits of Insurance shown in the 
Declarations. 

However, the insurance afforded to such 
additional insureds a. – d. described above: 

1. Only applies to the extent permitted by 
law; and 

2. Will not be broader than that which you 
are required by the contract or 
agreement to provide for such additional 
insured. 

3. Primary and Noncontributory – Other 
Insurance Conditions 

The following is added to the Other 
Insurance Condition and supersedes any 
provisions to the contrary: 

Primary and Noncontributory Insurance 

This insurance is primary to and will not 
seek contribution from any other insurance 
available to an additional insured under your 
policy provided that: 

a. The additional insured is a Named 
Insured under such other insurance; and 

b. You have agreed in writing in a contract 
or agreement that this insurance would 
be primary and would not seek 
contribution from any other insurance 
available to the additional insured. 

I. Employee Bodily Injury To Another Employee 

Under Section II – Who Is An Insured The 
following is added to Paragraph 2.a.(1): 

Paragraphs 2.a.(1) (a), (b) and (c) do not apply 
to “bodily injury” to a co-“employee” in the 
course of the co-“employee’s” employment by 
you, or to “bodily injury” to a co-“volunteer 
worker” while performing duties related to the 
conduct of your business. 

J. Broad Form Named Insured 

Under Section II – Who Is An Insured The 
following is added to Paragraph 2.: 

e. Any business entity incorporated or 
organized under the laws of the United State 
of America (including any State thereof), its 
territories or possessions, or Canada 
(including any Province thereof) in which the 
Named Insured shown in the Declarations 
owns, during the policy period, an interest of 
more than fifty percent. If other valid 
collectible insurance is available to any 
business entity covered by this solely by 
reason of ownership by the Named Insured 
shown in the Declarations in excess of fifty 
percent, this insurance is excess over the 
other insurance, whether primary, excess, 
contingent, or on any other basis.  

K. Aggregate Limit Per Location 

Under Section III – Limits Of Insurance the 
following is added to Paragraph 2: 

The General Aggregate Limit under Section III 
Limits Of Insurance applies separately to each 
of your locations owned by or rented to you or 
temporarily occupied by you with the permission 
of the owner. For the purposes of this provision, 
location means premises involving the same or 
connecting lots, or premises whose connection 
is interrupted only by a public street, roadway, 
waterway or railroad right-of-way. 

L. Aggregate Limit Per Project 

Under Section III – Limits Of Insurance The 
following paragraph is added to Paragraph 2: 

The General Aggregate Limit under Section III 
Limits Of Insurance applies separately to each 
of your construction projects away from 
premises owned by or rented to you. 

Page 4 of 5 Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc.,  

with its permission. 
CG 73 23 12 16 

 

689

Item 22.



 CG 73 23 12 16 

M. Medical Payments 

Under Section III – Limits Of Insurance, 
Paragraph 7. is replaced with: 

7. Subject to 5. above, the higher of: 

a. $10,000; or 

b. The amount shown in the Declarations 
for Medical Expense Limit is the most 
we will pay under Coverage C for all 
medical expenses because of “bodily 
injury” sustained by one person. 

This coverage does not apply if Coverage C 
– Medical Payments is excluded either by 
the provisions of any coverage forms 
attached to the policy or by endorsement. 

N. Knowledge Of An Occurrence 

Under Section IV – Commercial General 
Liability Conditions, the following is added to 
2. Duties In The Event Of Occurrence, 
Offense, Claim Or Suit: 

e. Knowledge of an occurrence, offense, claim 
or suit by an agent or employee of any 
insured shall not in itself constitute 
knowledge of the insured unless you, a 
partner, if you are a partnership; or an 
executive officer or insurance manager, if 
you are a corporation receives such notice 
of an occurrence, offense, claim or suit from 
the agent or employee. 

f. The requirements in Paragraph b. will not 
be considered breached unless there is 
knowledge of occurrence as outlined in 
Paragraph e. above. 

O. Unintentional Failure To Disclose Hazard 

Under Section IV – Commercial General    
Liability Conditions, Condition 6. 
Representations the following paragraph is 
added: 

d. Your failure to disclose all hazards or prior 
“occurrences” or offenses existing as of the  

inception date of the policy shall not 
prejudice the coverage afforded by this 
policy provided such failure to disclose all 
hazards or prior “occurrences” or offenses is 
not intentional.  This provision does not 
affect our right to collect additional premium 
or exercise our right of cancellation or non-
renewal. 

P. Waiver Of Subrogation 

Under Section IV – Commercial General    
Liability Conditions, 8. Transfer Of Rights Of 
Recovery Against Others To Us the following 
paragraph is added: 

If required by a written contract executed prior to 
loss, we waive any right of subrogation we may 
have against the contracting person or 
organization because of payments we make for 
injury or damage arising out of your ongoing 
operations or “your work” done under a contract 
with that person or organization and included in 
the “products-completed operations hazard”. 

Q. Liberalization 

Under Section IV – Commercial General 
Liability Conditions, the following paragraph is 
added: 

10. Liberalization 

If we revise this coverage form to provide more 
coverage without additional premium charge, 
your policy will automatically provide the 
additional coverage as of the day the revision is 
effective in your state. 

R. Broadened Bodily Injury Definition (Mental 
Anguish) 

Under Section V – Definitions Definition 3. 
“Bodily Injury” is replaced with: 

3. “Bodily injury” means physical injury, 
sickness, or disease to a person and if 
arising out of the foregoing, mental anguish, 
mental injury, shock, or humiliation, 
including death at any time resulting 
therefrom.  

All terms and conditions of this policy apply unless modified by this endorsement. 

CG 73 23 12 16 Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc.,  

with its permission. 
Page 5 of 5 

 

690

Item 22.



ACP GLDO3048691646 LJN1 22202 INSURED COPY 43 0001733
691

Item 22.



ANY PERSON OR ORGANIZATION TO WHOM YOU ARE OBLIGATED BY
WRITTEN CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL INSURED
COVERAGE UNDER YOUR POLICY LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION OF

COMPLETED OPERATIONS HAVE BEEN PERFORMED FOR THE ADDITIONAL
INSURED UNDER THE WRITTEN CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT.

ACP GLDO3048691646 LJN1 22202 INSURED COPY 43 0001734
692

Item 22.



GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY IN FAVOR OF THE CITY OF
CEDAR FALLS, INCLUDING ALL ITS ELECTED AND

APPOINTED OFFICIALS, ALL ITS EMPLOYEES, ITS BOARDS

COMMISSIONS AND/OR AUTHORITIES AND THEIR BOARD

MEMBERS, EMPLOYEES.

220 CLAY ST, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613.

ACP GLDO30 4 8691646 LJN1 INSURED COPY 43 0001735
693

Item 22.



THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, INCLUDING ALL 220 CLAY ST,

ITS ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613.

SEE BLANK FORM 28

ACP GLDO3048691646 LJN1 22202 INSURED COPY 43 0001736
694

Item 22.



RE: IL7002

28 (01-86)

THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, INCLUDING ALL ITS ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS,
ALL ITS EMPLOYEES, ITS BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND/OR AUTHORITIES AND THEIR BOARD

MEMBERS & EMPLOYEES.

220 CLAY ST, CEDAR FALLS, IA 50613

28 (01-86)

ACP GLDO3048691646 LJN1 22202 INSURED COPY 43 0001737

695

Item 22.



ANY PERSON OR ORGANIZATION WITH WHOM YOU HAVE ENTERED INTO A
WRITTEN CONTRACT WHERE A CONDITION OF THIS CONTRACT REQUIRES
YOU TO OBTAIN THIS AGREEMENT.

THIS ENDORSEMENT IS EFFECTIVE ONLY WHERE PERMITTED BY
STATUTE OR REGULATION.

ACP WCA 3048691646 LLQY INSUREDS COPY 43 0001753
696

Item 22.



 

  Seerley Park Improvements 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. PI-107-3303 
 

 

    

Exhibit C 
 

Seerley Park Improvements 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 

City Project Number PI-107-3303 
 

  2/9/12 
 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR CONTRACTS BETWEEN 
CONTRACTORS WHO PERFORM PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AND THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS 
 

 This document outlines the Standard Terms and Conditions for all Contractors 
who perform work or services for the City of Cedar Falls under a contract.  The term, 
“Contractor,” as used in this document, includes an engineer, an architect, and any other 
design professional providing professional services to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
under a contract (but excludes construction contractors). 
 
 1. This Contract may not be modified or amended except by a writing signed 
by an authorized representative of the City of Cedar Falls and of the Contractor. 
 
 2. Time is of the essence of this Contract. 
 
 3. Contractor shall be an independent contractor with respect to the services 
to be performed under this Contract.  Neither Contractor nor its subcontractors, agents, 
or employees, shall be deemed to be employees or agents of the City. 
 
 4. Contractor shall perform all duties in accordance with all applicable 
federal, state and local laws and regulations. 
 
 5. If Contractor breaches this Contract, the City shall have all remedies 
available to it at law or in equity. 
 
 6. Severability.  If any provision of this Contract is declared invalid, illegal, or 
incapable of being enforced by any court of competent jurisdiction, all of the remaining 
provisions of this Contract shall nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and no 
provision shall be deemed dependent upon any other provision unless so expressed 
herein. 
 
 7. Assignment.  Contractor may not assign this Contract or any of its rights 
or obligations hereunder, without the prior written consent of the City, which consent 
may be withheld in the sole and absolute discretion of the City. 
 
 8. Survival of Obligations.  All obligations and duties which by their nature 
extend beyond the term of this Contract shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Contract. 
 

697

Item 22.



 

  Seerley Park Improvements 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. PI-107-3303 
 

 

 9. Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Venue and Trial.  This Contract shall be 
construed in accordance with, and all disputes hereunder shall be governed by, the laws 
of the State of Iowa, excluding its conflicts of law rules.  The parties hereto agree that 
the exclusive jurisdiction and venue shall be in the Iowa District Court for Black Hawk 
County, and in no other jurisdiction or location, and shall not be removed to federal 
court.  The parties hereby agree to waive the right to trial by jury and agree to submit all 
disputes to a trial by judge alone.  The parties agree that no disputes under this Contract 
shall be submitted to binding arbitration, but may be submitted to mediation by mutual 
consent of both parties. 
 
 10. Any failure of Contractor to comply with the Insurance Requirements for 
Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls set forth on Attachment A, shall constitute a 
default under this Contract. 
 
 11. Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event of litigation, the City shall under no 
circumstances be obligated for payment of any attorneys’ fees of Contractor or any other 
party, arising out of such litigation. 
 
 12. Payment.  Payment of Contractor’s invoices shall be due no sooner than 
thirty (30) days from the date of invoice.  In the event any invoices are not paid within 
thirty (30) days, the City shall pay interest thereon at the rate provided for by 
Section 668.13(3), Code of Iowa, computed monthly. 
 
 13. The City shall not be obligated to maintain confidentiality of Contractor 
documents or records that are furnished to the City if such documents are public records 
under the Iowa Open Records Law, Chapter 22, Code of Iowa, and the City shall have 
no responsibility to Contractor for disclosure of such records. 
 
 14. Under no circumstances shall the City waive any damages against the 
Contractor or any other party arising out of any breach of this Contract, whether 
consequential, indirect, special, or punitive damages. 
 
 15. Under no circumstances shall the Contractor’s liability to the City be 
limited to any specific amount or sum, whether that amount is the compensation paid by 
the City to the Contractor under this Contract, or the dollar amount of coverage provided 
for in the Insurance Requirements for Contractors for the City of Cedar Falls, Attachment 
A. 
 
 16. No waiver of the City’s subrogation rights against the Contractor or any 
other party shall conflict with the provisions of the City Insurance Requirements, 
Attachment A. 
 
 17. Limitations Period.  There shall be no limitation, except as provided for by 
Iowa law, on the period of time within which the City may make any claim against the 
Contractor or other party under the provisions of this Contract. 
 
 18. This Contract shall not be binding on the City unless and until approved 
by the City Council of the City at a duly constituted meeting, and signed by the Mayor 
and City Clerk of the City. 

698

Item 22.



 

  Seerley Park Improvements 
  Cedar Falls, Iowa 
  City Project No. PI-107-3303 
 

 

 
 19. Representations. Consultant represents that all services furnished to the 
City under this Contract shall be consistent with the Consultant’s Responsibilities set 
forth and defined in the Agreement, and in accordance with the degree of skill and care 
that is required by the Consultant’s industry or profession, and as otherwise required by 
applicable law. 
 
 20. Force Majeure.  Neither party to this Contract shall be liable to the other 
party for delays in performing the services, or for the direct or indirect cost resulting from 
such delays, that may result from acts of God, acts of governmental authorities, 
extraordinary weather conditions or other natural catastrophes, or any other cause 
beyond the reasonable control or contemplation of either party.  Each party will take 
reasonable steps to mitigate the impact of any force majeure. 

699

Item 22.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Green & City Council Members 

  FROM: Jacque Danielsen, City Clerk 

 DATE: July 22, 2022 

 SUBJECT:  Designation of Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging Spaces 

 
In November 2019, City Council approved a pilot program for installation and 
designation of a public electric vehicle charging parking space on West 2nd Street 
(located just north of City Hall). Although the charging unit that was installed had two 
charging cables, we started with designating only one space to determine how much 
use it would get. During the test period, we did not draft an ordinance, but we posted 
signs designating the space for actively charging electric vehicles only, and we 
monitored the space by giving other vehicles warnings. 
 
Since installation, the number of charging sessions has been increasing and the second 
charging cable has been pulled over to other parking areas and even pulled across the 
sidewalk, creating potential hazards. As the usage continues to increase, CFU and City 
staff feel that designation of the second charging space is needed to safely 
accommodate the additional vehicles wanting to use both charging spaces at this 
location. Therefore, we recommend designating the adjacent parking space as an 
electric vehicle charging space and adopting the attached ordinance to enable 
enforcement of proper use of the spaces. 
 
Please feel free to contact Jennifer Rodenbeck or myself with any questions.  

700

Item 23.



ORDINANCE NO. _____ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE IV, 
STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING, OF CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND 
MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR 
FALLS, IOWA, BY ENACTING A NEW SECTION 23-372, ELECTRIC VEHICLE 
(EV) CHARGING SPACE. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 
IOWA: 

Division I, Generally, of Article IV, Stopping, Standing and Parking, of Chapter 
23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, 
Iowa is hereby amended by adding thereto a new Section 23-372, Electric vehicle 
(EV) charging space, as follows: 

Sec. 23-372. Electric vehicle (EV) charging space. 

(a) For the purposes of this section, "electric vehicle charging space" means a public 
parking space that is located on a public street or in a public parking lot that is 
served by charging equipment that has as its primary purpose the transfer of 
electric energy to a battery or other energy storage device in an electric vehicle. 

(b) Where signs are posted, no person shall stop, stand, or park a vehicle in a 
designated electric vehicle charging space if the vehicle is not electrically 
connected to the charging equipment via the electric charging cord, and where 
the electric vehicle charging station is indicated by signage identifying the station 
as an electric vehicle charging station and indicating that it is only for electric 
vehicle charging. 

(c) Violations of this section are subject to fines enumerated in Section 23-356. 

 

INTRODUCED:         

PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:       

PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:       

PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:       

ADOPTED:          

 
 
___________________________ 

                                                                           Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

701

Item 23.



702

Item 24.



703

Item 24.



704

Item 24.



705

Item 24.



706

Item 24.



707

Item 24.



708

Item 24.



709

Item 24.



710

Item 24.



711

Item 24.



712

Item 24.



713

Item 24.



714

Item 24.



715

Item 24.



716

Item 24.



717

Item 24.



718

Item 24.



719

Item 24.



720

Item 24.



721

Item 24.



722

Item 24.



723

Item 24.



724

Item 24.



725

Item 24.



726

Item 24.



727

Item 24.



728

Item 24.



729

Item 24.



730

Item 24.



731

Item 24.



732

Item 24.



733

Item 24.



734

Item 24.



735

Item 24.



736

Item 24.



737

Item 24.



738

Item 24.



739

Item 24.



740

Item 24.



741

Item 24.



742

Item 24.



743

Item 24.



744

Item 24.



745

Item 24.



746

Item 24.



747

Item 24.



748

Item 24.



749

Item 24.



750

Item 24.



751

Item 24.



752

Item 24.


	Top
	Item 1.	Regular meeting of July 18, 2022
	220718MINUTES

	Item 2.	Proclamation-Gastroparesis
	2022-08_Gastroparesis_Month

	Item 3.	PH-2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project
	1. PH Memo - 2022 Sidewalk Assessment
	2. Engineer's Estimate - 2022 Asessment

	Item 4.	Ord. 3014-Rezoning-2209 N. Union Road
	1. CC Staff Report for 2209 N. Union Road Rezoning 7-18-2022
	2. Location Map
	3. Rezoning Plat 5-9-22
	4. Ord-Rezoning-2209 N. Union Road

	Item 5.	Committee Minutes - 07-18-22
	07-18-22 Administrative Committee Minutes-Final

	Item 6.	Appointment-Blair-Broeker
	2022-07-26_LBOT_Broeker

	Item 7.	Certified List - PSO
	PublicSafetyOfficer-CertList7-2022

	Item 8.	Departmental Monthly Report
	06 - June 2022 Dept Monthly Report

	Item 9.	Liquor Beer 8-1-22
	Liquor Beer 8-1-22

	Item 10.	Council Meeting Procedures
	CFD 1121.TBD - City Council Meeting Procedures-07-18-22

	Item 11.	Accounting Policies and Procedures and Purchasing Manual update
	Acct & Pur Manual Council Memo 062022
	Accounting & Purchasing Manual August2022Redlined

	Item 12.	CARES Act CDBG-CV3-Operation Threshold
	1  Council memo for OT sec amend CV3 funds
	2. second amendment OT sign

	Item 13.	INRCOG-CDGB Administration & Technical Services
	1. Council memo 8-6-22
	2. contract and extra

	Item 14.	INRCOG-HOME Technical services
	1. Council memo 8-6-22
	2. contract and extra

	Item 15.	HWY-1 Site Plan review for Veridian Credit Union (SP22-007)
	1_CC staff report for Veridian Site Plan
	2. ZoningLocationMap
	3. 22.07.25_Veridian_Cedar Falls SP
	4. VERIDIAN CEDAR FALLS COLOR SUBMITTAL

	Item 16.	Contracts-2022 University Avenue Bio Cells Project
	1. Memo Contracts - 2022 University Ave Biocells
	2. Form of Contract-2022 University Bio Cells
	3. PPM-2022 University Ave Bio Cells
	4. COI Bentons Sand & Gravel-2022 University Ave Bio Cells
	5. Form of Proposal - 2022 University Ave Bio Cells

	Item 17.	Contracts-2022 Seal Coat Project
	1. Memo Contracts - Seal Coat 2022
	2. Form of Contract-Blacktop Service
	3. PPM-Blacktop Service
	4. COI-Blacktop Service - 2022 Seal Coat
	5. Form of Proposal-Blacktop Service Co.

	Item 18.	Bid - Olive Street Box Culvert
	1. Memo Low Bid - Olive Box
	2. Low Bid - Olive Box

	Item 19.	SA No. 1 - Center Street Corridor Streetscape Project
	1. SA #1 - Center Streetscape
	2. Supplemental Agreement 1_Center Street Corridor Streetscape

	Item 20.	ROW Acquisitions-Main Street Reconstruction Project
	1. ROW Acquisition Memo - Main Street Reconstruction
	2. Main Street Strip Map (2022-0523)
	3. ROW Files

	Item 21.	Joint Funding Agreement-USGS River Gauge
	1. 2022 River Gauge Agreement Memo
	2. 23NEJFA103_City of Cedar Falls

	Item 22.	PSA-Seerley Park Improvements
	1. PSA Memo
	2. PSA - Ritland

	Item 23.	Ord - EV Parking Spaces
	1-EV space memo
	2-Ord-EV Parking Spaces

	Item 24.	Bills and Claims 8-1-22
	1 Daily Invoices 080122
	2 Council Invoices 080122

	Bottom

